
MarkWest Core Principles

MarkWest believes every employee is important to the company and its success, and we 
are committed to build a culture based on trust, accountability, safety and teamwork. 

MarkWest is focused on delivering best-of-class service.  MarkWest will seek true 
understanding of our customers’ requirements and will strive to provide solutions 
exceeding their expectations.

MarkWest will aim for innovative concepts in all that we do, and the company will support 
and encourage the search for innovation at all levels. Creation of substantial value will be 
the primary criteria for any new endeavor.

MarkWest seeks a fair profit and will maintain a strong balance sheet and appropriate 
expense controls through continuous process improvement.

MarkWest’s reputation rests on our ability to act with honesty, integrity and trustworthiness.  
To that end, we have adopted and communicated our Code of Conduct & Ethics as the 
cornerstone of our business.
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 Year Ended December 31, 
 2005 2004 2003
Statement of Operating Data ($000)  
Revenues ___________________________________________________________________  $ 499,084 $ 301,314 $ 117,430
Net Income _________________________________________________________________  $ 2,355 $ 9,962 $ 4,759
General Partner’s Interest in Net Income _________________________________________  $ 2,113 $    (723) $         (654)
Limited Partners’ Interest in Net Income _________________________________________  $ 242 $ 10,685 $ 5,413
Net Income per Limited Partner Unit (Basic) ______________________________________  $ .02 $ 1.31 $ 0.95
Weighted Average Units Outstanding (Basic) _____________________________________  10,895 8,151 5,722
  
Cash Flow Data
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
   Operating Activities _________________________________________________________  $ 42,090 $ 42,275 $ 21,229
   Investing Activities __________________________________________________________  $ (469,308)  $ (273,176) $ (112,893)
   Financing Activities _________________________________________________________  $  423,060 $  (246,411) $ 97,641

Other Financial Data
Distributable Cash Flow* ______________________________________________________  $ 44,041 $ 37,014 $ 16,254
Declared Distributions per Limited Partner Unit ___________________________________  $ 3.24 $ 2.97 $ 2.47

Balance Sheet Data
Working Capital _____________________________________________________________  $ 11,944 $ 10,547 $ 2,457
Total Assets  _________________________________________________________________  $ 1,046,093 $ 529,422 $ 212,871
Long-Term Debt  _____________________________________________________________  $ 601,262 $ 225,000 $ 126,200
Total Partner Capital __________________________________________________________  $ 307,175 $ 241,142 $ 64,944 

Operating Data     
East Texas: (1)

 Gathering systems throughput (Mcf/d) ________________________________________  321,000  259,300  NA 
 NGL product sales (gallons) _________________________________________________  126,476,000 41,478,000   NA
Oklahoma:
 Foss Lake gathering systems throughput
  (Mcf/d) (2)  ______________________________________________________________  75,800 60,900  57,000  
 Arapaho NGL product sales (gallons) (3) ______________________________________  60,903,000 45,273,000   2,910,000
Southwest: __________________________________________________________________
 Appleby gathering systems throughput
  (Mcf/d) (4)  ______________________________________________________________  33,400 27,100  23,800 
 Other gathering systems throughput
  (Mcf/d) (4)  ______________________________________________________________  16,500 17,000  20,500 
 Lateral throughput volumes (Mcf/d) (5)  ________________________________________  81,000 75,500  32,100 
Appalachia:
 Natural gas processed for a fee (Mcf/d) (6)  ____________________________________  197,000 203,000   202,000
 NGLs fractionated for a fee (Gal/day)  ________________________________________  430,000 475,000  458,000 
 NGL product sales (gallons) _________________________________________________  41,700,000  42,105,000   40,305,000
Michigan:
 Natural gas processed for a fee (Mcf/d) _______________________________________  6,600 12,300  15,000 
 NGL product sales (Mcf/d) __________________________________________________  5,697,000 9,818,000   11,800,000
 Crude oil transported for a fee (Bbl/d) (7) ______________________________________  14,200 14,700  15,100

(1)  We acquired our East Texas System in late July 2004. Volumes are for the period of time we owned the facility during 2004.
(2)  We acquired our Foss Lake gathering system in December 2003.
(3)  We acquired our Arapaho processing plant in December 2003.
(4)  We acquired our Pinnacle gathering systems in late March 2003.
(5)  We acquired our Lubbock pipeline (a/k/a the Power-tex Lateral Pipeline) in September 2003 and our Hobbs lateral pipeline in April 2004. The Lubbock and Hobbs pipelines are the only laterals 

we own  that produce revenue on a per-unit-of-throughput basis. We receive a flat fee from our other lateral pipelines  and, consequently, the throughput data from these lateral pipelines is 
excluded from this statistic.

(6)  Includes throughput from our Kenova, Cobb, and Boldman processing plants.
(7)  We acquired our Michigan Crude Pipeline in December 2003.

*Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures to GAAP Measures (thousands) Year Ended December 31,
 2005 2004 2003
Net income _________________________________________________________________  $ 2,355 $ 9,962 $ 4,759 

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Distributable Cash Flow
   Depreciation, Amortization, & Accretion _______________________________________  29,349  19,209 7,548 
    Impairment _______________________________________________________________  -- 130 1,148
 Amortization of deferred financing costs ______________________________________  6,780 5,236 984
 Distributions in excess of earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries_______________  4,002 73 --
 Non-cash Compensation Expense ____________________________________________  3,131 3,342 2,269 
 Other ____________________________________________________________________  605 225 587
Sustaining Capital Expenditures ________________________________________________  (2,181) (1,163) (1,041)
Distributable Cash Flow _______________________________________________________  $ 44,041 $   37,014 $   16,254

Financial and Operational Summary

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., a master limited partnership, is a midstream 
energy company primarily engaged in the gathering, processing and 

transportation of natural gas and refinery off-gas; the transportation, 
fractionation and storage of natural gas liquids (NGLs); and the gathering 

and transportation of crude oil.  MarkWest charges fees for its services 
and in many cases retains a portion of the hydrocarbon product in 
exchange for services rendered.  During 2005, approximately 49% 
of the partnership’s net operating margin was derived from fee-
based contracts and 51% from the sale of retained gas or liquids.  
MarkWest’s operations are diversified both geographically and by 

activity.  In 2005, MarkWest completed two acquisitions and formed 
the Gulf Coast Business Unit.  The Gulf Coast Business Unit consists 
of gathering and processing facilities on the coast and offshore in 
Texas and Louisiana.  MarkWest’s Southwest Business Unit consists 
of natural gas gathering, transportation and processing facilities 

located primarily in Texas and Oklahoma.  Since 2003, MarkWest has 
expanded its Southwest Business Unit to include 17 gathering systems, 

two processing plants and four lateral pipeline systems.  MarkWest’s 
Northeast Business Unit owns or operates five gas processing facilities 
that generate stable cash flow streams from gathering and processing 
natural gas from long-lived gas reserves in the Appalachian Basin and from 
gathering, processing and transporting natural gas and transporting crude oil 
via its facilities in Michigan. 

MarkWest’s goal is to continue to grow the partnership and its distributions by 
pursuing a multi-tiered and risk-weighted strategy to increase its asset base and 

service capability.  The primary elements of this strategy include:

• Increasing utilization of existing facilities
• Expanding operations through incremental investment in core areas
• Completing strategic, accretive acquisitions and
• Improving stability of cash flow with long-term, fee-based contracts

The partnership is managed by MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., which is 89.2% owned 
by MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., an Englewood, Colorado-based energy company.  
Since its initial public offering of 2,415,000 common units at $20.50 on May 24, 
2002, MarkWest has raised nearly $300 million through a combination of public and 
private equity offerings.  There are approximately 12.9 million units outstanding as of 
March 15, 2006, which includes approximately 2.5 million units owned by MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, Inc.  Common units of the partnership are listed on the American Stock 
Exchange under the symbol MWE.  

Disclaimer
The statements contained in this Annual Report contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Securities Act of 
1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended.  These forward-looking statements (which in many instances can 
be identified by words like “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “believes” and other comparable words), are based on the 
Partnership’s current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effects on the Partnership, but are not 
guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties.  You are urged to carefully review and consider the cautionary 
statements and other disclosures made in the Partnership’s enclosed Form 10-K for fiscal year 2005, including under the heading 
“Risk Factors,” which identify and discuss significant risks, uncertainties and various other factors that could cause actual results to vary 
significantly from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements.
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We created MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. in 2002 to unlock the value of the midstream 
assets that were held by MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.  In three short years, we have 
achieved measurable success.

• We have increased assets by 1,100% from $86 million at the 2002 IPO to $1 billion at 
the end of 2005 

• Our revenue has increased by 1,400%, from $33 million in 2002 to $499 million at 
the end of 2005

• Distributions to unitholders on a per unit basis have increased at a compound annual 
rate of approximately 15%

• Share price has increased by 124%, from $20.50 at our IPO to $46.00 at the end 
of 2005

Equally important, we have significantly increased the quality and diversity of cash flows, 
which will continue to deliver long-term value for our shareholders.

We completed two acquisitions totaling approximately $400 million in 2005 bringing 
the total number of acquisitions to eight since the company was founded in May 2002.  
We also deployed nearly $70 million of growth capital for several high return projects 
primarily in the Southwest Business Unit.  As a result, our total assets at the end of 2005 
were just over $1 billion versus $86 million at our IPO, more than a ten-fold increase.  

As with any fast-growing company, we experienced some challenges with the integration 
of the acquired assets into our business.  Specifically, our 2004 financial statements were 
delayed due to a review of the accounting treatment for certain non-cash compensation to 
key employees and directors of the company, which led to the restatement of the financial 
statements for 2002 and 2003.  Also, we identified internal control deficiencies, which 
were contributing factors in the delay.  Resolution of these issues was a big focus for our 
team in 2005, and I am very pleased with the progress achieved to remediate the areas 
of weakness and also strengthen our processes.  We have made significant progress 
enhancing our organizational capabilities during 2005 and, with our continued focus, we 
are optimistic about our ability to take MarkWest to the next level.

Measurable asset growth

In 2005, we achieved another milestone with the acquisition of a non-operating 50% 
interest in the Starfish Pipeline Company, our first venture into the Gulf of Mexico.  The 
$42.1 million acquisition serves both the shelf and deep-water regions in the central Gulf 
of Mexico with offshore pipelines, compression facilities and an onshore dehydration 
facility in southern Louisiana.  We are excited about the long-term value of these assets, 
but their contribution to 2005 results was substantially reduced due to the impact 
of Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.  The system suffered substantial damage due to the 
hurricanes and as a result, much of the connected production was shut-in for several 
months, reducing the system throughput and the corresponding revenue.  In addition, 

Letter to Unitholders
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substantial capital has been spent to repair the damage, although we believe that property 
and business interruption insurance will ultimately offset a significant portion of this cost.  
As of February 2006, much of the production is back online.  But the added reason we are 
excited about the Starfish system is the potential upside from new deep water discoveries in 
the areas served by the system and because Starfish positions us to participate in projects 
to bring imported liquefied natural gas (LNG) into the U.S.  Both deep-water development 
and LNG imports could significantly increase system utilization and the profitability of 
our investment.
 
In September 2005, MarkWest announced its eighth and largest acquisition to date.  For 
$357 million plus working capital, MarkWest acquired the Javelina facilities, which include 
a gas processing and fractionation facility and associated pipeline in Corpus Christi, Texas.  
The Javelina facilities treat and process off-specification gas that is produced as part of 
the refining process from six Gulf Coast refineries.  Liquids generated from processing 
are then fractionated into component products and delivered or sold to third parties.  In 
addition to its base of business, Javelina presents a number of upgrade opportunities 
where MarkWest can generate greater returns by increasing volumes, increasing the 
percentage of higher value liquids and expanding access to the market for the liquid sales. 

Measurable internal growth and asset optimization

While acquisitions have been the major contributor to MarkWest’s growth, we do not rely 
solely on acquisitions to achieve our targets.  Organic growth through increased capacity 
utilization and expansion of existing systems is an integral part of our business strategy.  
Every asset we acquire is evaluated for expansion potential, and one measure of our 
acquisition success is the development of those expansion opportunities.  All of our major 
gathering systems in the Southwest have experienced significant growth in both natural gas 
throughput and NGL product sales.  In 2005, we spent nearly $70 million on expansion 
of existing systems.  That included the construction of a processing facility and associated 
liquids pipeline on our Carthage system in East Texas, construction of the Blocker Field 
gathering system also in East Texas, installation of compression and gathering around 
our Appleby gathering system in Texas and our Foss Lake system in Oklahoma, and the 
replacement of our Cobb Processing Plant in Appalachia with a new, more efficient facility.  
We will continue to grow by utilizing the remaining capacity, constructing additional 
capacity where warranted, restructuring our contracts to ensure a stable cash flow and 
focusing on efficient operations to reduce our cost and enhance our profitability.

Measurable value creation

Our business strategy has been very successful as evidenced by our financial results.  We 
reported $499.4 million of revenues, a 65% increase over 2004, and our distributable 
cash flow increased 19% to $44 million.  Our quarterly cash distribution per limited 
partner unit has increased 64% since our IPO to $0.82 per unit.  Our cumulative 
distribution of $9.91 per unit represents a return of 48% of our $20.50 initial public 
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offering price, while our unit price has more than doubled during that time, generating a 
total return of 175% since our IPO. 

We continued to strengthen our management team during 2005 with the addition of 
Nancy Masten, our Chief Accounting Officer, Richard Ostberg, our Vice President of Risk 
and Compliance and Steve Dickerson, our Vice President for our Gulf Coast Business Unit.

We are committed to delivering superior and sustainable returns for unitholders and best-
of-class service for our customers.  Our team is very focused on these objectives and has 
established a proven record of success.  We are also very optimistic about our ability to 
continue to thrive in this very competitive market, and specifically we are excited about the 
prospects for 2006.  Our financial results in 2005 were significantly impacted by the cost 
to repair the Appalachia pipeline system, lost revenues caused by the hurricane damage 
and increased third-party costs required to address our accounting and financial reporting 
problems.  In 2006 we have the benefit of a return-to-normal operations.  We will also 
have the full impact of the new processing plant in East Texas, which began operation in 
January 2006, together with a full year’s contribution from the Javelina facility, which was 
acquired in November 2005.  In addition, we have implemented an extensive hedging 
program during the fourth quarter of 2005, which will provide significant stability of cash 
flows based on commodity prices.  The entire MarkWest team is excited about the future 
and confident that we will be able to continue to meet or exceed our goal of 
delivering 10% annual distribution growth for our unitholders.  Thank you for your 
continued support.

Frank M. Semple
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 15, 2006
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Gulf Coast Business Unit

We created the Gulf Coast Business Unit in 2005 with two acquisitions, in south Texas 
and the Gulf of Mexico.  In March 2005, we acquired a non-operating 50% interest in the 
Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC, which gathers and transports gas produced in the Gulf 
of Mexico.  While the Starfish system was significantly impacted by Hurricanes Katrina 
and Rita, we expect it to contribute stable fee-based income in 2006 and beyond.  In 
November 2005, we completed the acquisition of the Javelina gas processing business in 
Corpus Christi, Texas.  The Javelina acquisition was our largest acquisition to date and will 
add significant cash flow in 2006.  In 2005, the Javelina facilities generated 2.8% of our 
revenue and 10.4% of our Net Operating Margin (a non-GAAP financial measure defined 
as income (loss) from operations excluding facility cost, selling, general and administrative 
expense, depreciation, amortization, impairments and accretion of asset retirement) 
despite being owned by MarkWest for only two months.  

On November 1, 2005, we closed  the $357 million purchase of the Javelina Gas 
Processing Business from El Paso Corporation, Kerr-McGee Corporation and Valero Energy 
Corporation.  The Javelina facilities, constructed in 1989, consist of a gas processing and 
fractionation plant and 52 miles of associated pipeline.  The facilities treat and process 
off-specification gas produced from six refineries located around Corpus Christi, Texas.  
When refinery gas enters the system it is treated to remove hydrogen sulfide and carbon 
dioxide and then hydrogen and natural gas liquids (NGLs) are stripped from the gas 
stream.  The NGLs are fractionated into their individual product components:  ethane, 
ethylene, propane, propylene, butane and pentanes and sold to third parties.  The residue 
gas is returned to the refineries as fuel, and the recovered hydrogen is sold back to the 
refineries for use in their refining processes.  In 2005, throughput at the plant averaged 
115 MMcf per day of inlet gas and the plant produced 19,500 gallons per day of NGLs.  
MarkWest receives a share of the proceeds from the NGL sales for providing the treating 
and processing services.  We will be taking steps in 2006 to enhance the profitability of the 
facilities by upgrading the technology to produce higher value products.  This is in addition 
to increasing throughput, which has already increased to 125 MMcf per day as the 
refineries have expanded their operations.  The facilities are currently operating at about 
88% of capacity but can be expanded as the off-gas supply increases.

In March 2005, we acquired a 50% interest in Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC for $42.1 
million.  Our non-operating interest in Starfish is accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting.  It will, however, generate cash flow from fee-based services that complement 
our asset mix.  In 2005, we received $1.8 million of cash distributions from Starfish.

Starfish represents our first acquisition in the offshore Gulf of Mexico and consists of the 
Stingray natural gas pipeline, the Triton natural gas gathering system offshore in the Gulf 
of Mexico, and the West Cameron dehydration facility located onshore in Holly Beach, 
Louisiana.  The Triton system consists of some 60 miles of 4-inch to 16-inch gathering 
line that feeds into the 380-mile Stingray pipeline.  The Stingray pipeline serves the High 

Operations
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Island, West Cameron, East Cameron, Vermilion and Garden Banks areas of the Gulf of 
Mexico.  Stingray delivers gas onshore to the West Cameron dehydration facility where it 
is compressed and delivered into the interstate pipeline network.  The system is connected 
to five major production platforms and can transport up to 1.1 billion cubic feet of natural 
gas per day.  It can serve all of the major Gulf of Mexico producing zones, including a 
number of deep-water discoveries.  We believe there is significant potential for expansion 
of the system as deep-water development continues. 

Unfortunately, the Starfish system and surrounding production was significantly affected 
by Hurricane Rita.  Although no structural damage to the offshore platforms has been 
identified, repair and rerouting of at least two sections of offshore pipeline will be required, 
and the onshore facility incurred substantial electrical damage, and the office and 
compressor buildings were significantly damaged.  Natural gas production is back online 
and Starfish Pipeline Company is endeavoring to complete repairs as rapidly as possible. 

Southwest Business Unit

Our Southwest Business Unit consists of our East Texas, Oklahoma and other Southwest 
business segments, and contains 17 gathering systems, two processing plants and four 
lateral pipelines in Texas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, Mississippi and New Mexico.  Since we 
made our first acquisition in the Southwest Business Unit in 2003, it has grown to represent 
81.4% of revenue and 61.2% of Net Operating Margin in 2005. 

Since acquiring the East Texas Gathering system in 2004, we have added approximately 
78 miles of pipeline, 23,900 horsepower of compression, and a 200 MMcf per day 
processing plant, which began operating in January 2006.  The system serves the 
Carthage Field in Panola County, Texas, one of the nation’s largest onshore natural gas 
fields. Operators are actively drilling the Cotton Valley, Pettit and Travis Peak formations 
in the Carthage Field, which has an estimated 18 trillion cubic feet (Tcf) of remaining 
recoverable reserves.  We invested over $45 million in 2005 in systems expansions and 
have budgeted over $10 million for system upgrades and expansion in 2006, completed 
the installation of the Blocker gathering system, which was placed in service in March 
2006, and added compression and pipe to the Carthage system to allow us to keep up 
with drilling activity. 

Our Appleby system, also in East Texas, is a classic example of MarkWest’s acquire-and-
expand strategy.  Since acquiring the system, we have almost doubled throughput to more 
than 40 MMcf per day.  We spent nearly $8 million connecting new wells and expanding 
the capacity of the system to 50 MMcf per day in 2005.  The system now consists of 
approximately 141 miles of low pressure gathering line.  The area surrounding the system 
produces from the prolific Travis Peak formation and operators are rapidly increasing 
production, creating the need for more gathering capacity.
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We have been very active in western Oklahoma with our Foss Lake gathering system and 
Arapaho gas processing plant in Roger Mills and Custer Counties.  Since acquiring the 
assets in 2003, we have upgraded and expanded the system to accommodate significant 
volume increases.  In 2005, capacity of the Foss Lake system was expanded from 65 MMcf 
per day to 100 MMcf per day.  The Foss Lake gathering system consists of approximately 
240 miles of pipeline with 100 MMcf per day of throughput capacity and the Arapaho gas 
processing plant, which can handle 100 MMcf per day of gas.  In 2005, we processed 76 
MMcf per day through the plant and delivered 167,000 gallons per day of liquids.  

Northeast Business Unit

The Northeast Business Unit consists of our Appalachia and Michigan business segments 
and contains natural gas processing plants, fractionation facilities, storage facilities and 
marketing operations in the Appalachian basin in West Virginia and a crude oil pipeline, 
gas gathering system and natural gas processing plant in Michigan.  In 2005, the 
Northeast Business Unit generated 15.8% of our revenue and 28.4% of our Net 
Operating Margin.

We own five natural gas processing plants, the Siloam Fractionation Plant, 136 miles of 
pipelines and 12.5 million gallons of NGL storage in Appalachia.  Production from the 
Appalachian basin is characterized by long-lived reserves, slow decline rates, and high 
liquid content.  MarkWest is the largest processor in the Appalachian Basin with combined 
processing plant capacity in excess of 300 MMcf per day.

Our Michigan assets include a 90-mile gas gathering system and the Fisk Gas Processing 
Plant in Manistee County, Michigan.  Constructed in 1998, it serves producers in western 
Michigan producing natural gas  from the Niagaran Reef Trend in the Michigan Basin. 

We also own a common carrier crude oil pipeline in Michigan.  The system extends from 
production facilities near Manistee, Michigan, to a storage facility near Lewiston, Michigan.  
The trunk line consists of approximately 150 miles of pipe.  Crude oil is gathered into the 
system from 57 injection points, including 52 central production facilities and five truck 
unloading facilities.  
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Throughout this document we make statements that are classified as “forward-looking.” Please refer to the 
“Forward-Looking Statements” included later in this section for an explanation of these types of assertions. Also, in this 
document, unless the context requires otherwise, references to “we,” “us,” “our,” “MarkWest Energy” or the “Partnership” 
are intended to mean MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Glossary of Terms

In addition, the following is a list of certain acronyms and terms used throughout the document:

Bbls  barrels 
Bbl/d  barrels per day 
Bcf  one billion cubic feet of natural gas 
Btu  one British thermal unit, an energy measurement 
Gal/d  gallons per day 
Mcf  one thousand cubic feet of natural gas 
Mcf/d  one thousand cubic feet of natural gas per day 
MMBtu  one million British thermal units, an energy measurement 
MMcf  one million cubic feet of natural gas 
MMcf/d  one million cubic feet of natural gas per day 
MTBE  methyl tertieary butyl ether 
Net operating margin (a non-GAAP financial measure)  revenues less purchased product costs 
NGLs  natural gas liquids, such as propane, butanes and natural gasoline
NA  not applicable 
Tcf  one trillion cubic feet of natural gas 
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Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements 
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We use words such as “may,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,”  “intend,” “project,” 
“anticipate,” and similar expressions to identify forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements are made based upon management’s expectations, estimates, assumptions and 
beliefs concerning future events impacting us and therefore involve a number of risks and uncertainties. We caution that 
forward-looking statements are not guarantees and that actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied 
in the forward-looking statements.

Important factors that could cause our actual results of operations or our actual financial condition to differ include, 
but are not necessarily limited to:

• our ability to successfully integrate our recent or future acquisitions;

• the availability of natural gas supply for our gathering and processing services;

• the availability of crude oil refinery runs to feed our Javelina off-gas processing facility;

• the availability of NGLs for our transportation, fractionation and storage services;

• our dependence on certain significant customers, producers, gatherers, treaters, and transporters of natural gas, 

including MarkWest Hydrocarbon;

• the risks that third-party oil and gas exploration and production activities will not occur or be successful;

• prices of natural gas and NGL products, including the effectiveness of any hedging activities;

• competition from other NGL processors, including major energy companies;

• changes in general economic, market or business conditions in regions where our products are located;

• our ability to identify and complete organic growth projects or acquisitions complementary to our business;

• the success of our risk management policies;

• continued creditworthiness of, and performance by, contract counterparties;

• operational hazards and availability and cost of insurance on our assets and operations;

• the impact of any failure of our information technology systems;

• the impact of current and future laws and government regulations;

• liability for environmental claims;

• damage to facilities and interruption of service due to casualty, weather, mechanical failure or any extended or 

extraordinary maintenance or inspection that may be required;

• the impact of the departure of any key executive officers; and

• our ability to raise sufficient capital to execute our business plan through borrowing or issuing equity.

This list is not necessarily complete. Other unknown or unpredictable factors could also have material adverse 
effects on future results. The Partnership does not update publicly any forward-looking statement with new information or 
future events.  Investors are cautioned not to put undue reliance on forward-looking statements as many of these factors are 
beyond our ability to control or predict. You should read “Risk Factors” included in Item 1A of this Form 10-K for further 
information.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. is a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership formed by MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, Inc. on January 25, 2002, to acquire most of the assets, liabilities and operations of the MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
Midstream Business. We are a master limited partnership engaged in the gathering, transportation and processing of natural 
gas; the transportation, fractionation and storage of NGLs; and the gathering and transportation of crude oil. We are the 
largest processor of natural gas in the Appalachia region. We also have a large natural gas gathering and transmission 
business in the southwestern United States, built primarily through acquisitions and investments: Pinnacle Natural Gas, the 
Lubbock transmission pipeline and the Foss Lake gathering system, all in 2003; the Carthage gathering system in East Texas 
in July 2004; a non-controlling, 50% interest in Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC and the Javelina entities’ natural gas 
processing and fractionation facility and pipeline in Corpus Christi, Texas, both in 2005.

MarkWest Energy Partners generates revenues for providing gathering, processing, transportation, fractionation, and 
storage services. The partnership believes that the largely fee-based nature of its business and the relatively long-term nature
of its contracts provide a relatively stable base of cash flows.  As a publicly traded partnership, we have access to, and 
regularly utilize, both equity and debt capital markets as a source of financing, as well as that provided by our credit facility 
and the ability to use common units in connection with acquisitions.  Our limited partnership structure also provides tax 
advantages to our unitholders.

We conduct our operations in three geographical areas:  the Southwest, the Northeast and the Gulf Coast.  Our assets 
and operations in each of these areas are described below.

• Southwest Business Unit

• East Texas.  We own the East Texas System, consisting of natural gas-gathering system pipelines, 

centralized compressor stations, and a natural gas processing facility and NGL pipeline that are 
currently under construction.

• Western Oklahoma. We own the Foss Lake gathering system and the Arapaho gas-processing plant, 

located in Roger Mills and Custer counties of western Oklahoma.  The gathering portion consists of a 
pipeline system that is connected to natural gas wells and associated compression facilities.

• Other Southwest.  We own 17 natural gas-gathering systems located in Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi 

and New Mexico, including the Appleby Gathering System in Nacogdoches, Texas.  In addition, we 
own four lateral pipelines in Texas and New Mexico.

• Northeast Business Unit

• Appalachia.  We are the largest processor of natural gas in the Appalachian Basin with fully integrated 

processing, fractionation, storage and marketing operations.  Our Appalachian assets include five 
natural gas-processing plants, an NGL pipeline, an NGL fractionation plant and two caverns for storing 
propane.

• Michigan. We own and operate a crude oil pipeline in Michigan, which we refer to as the Michigan 

Crude Pipeline.  We also own a natural gas-gathering system and a natural gas-processing plant in 
Michigan.

• Gulf Coast Business Unit

• Javelina.  We own and operate the Javelina Processing Facility, a natural gas processing facility in 

Corpus Christi, Texas, which processes off-gas from six local refineries.  The facility processes 
approximately 125 to 130 MMcf/d of inlet gas, but is expected to process up to its capacity of 142 
MMcf/d as refinery output continues to grow.
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Industry Overview, Competition

MarkWest Energy Partners provides services in most areas of the natural gas gathering, processing and fractionation 
industry. The following diagram illustrates the typical natural gas gathering, processing and fractionation process:
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The natural gas gathering process begins with the drilling of wells into gas bearing rock formations.  Once 
completed, the well is connected to a gathering system.  Gathering systems typically consist of a network of small diameter 
pipelines and, if necessary, compression systems, that collect natural gas from points near producing wells, and transport it to
larger pipelines for further transmission.

Natural gas has a widely varying composition, depending on the field, the formation reservoir or facility from which 
it is produced. The principal constituents of natural gas are methane and ethane.  Most natural gas also contains varying 
amounts of heavier components, such as propane, butane, natural gasoline and inert substances that may be removed by any 
number of processing methods.

Most natural gas produced at the wellhead is not suitable for long-haul pipeline transportation or commercial use.  It 
must be gathered, compressed and transported via pipeline to a central facility, and then processed to remove the heavier 
hydrocarbon components and other contaminants that interfere with pipeline transportation or the end-use of the gas. Our 
business includes providing these services either for a fee or a percentage of the NGLs removed or gas units processed.  The 
industry as a whole is characterized by regional competition, based on the proximity of gathering systems and processing 
plants to producing natural gas wells, or to facilities that produce natural gas as a by-product of refining crude oil.

MarkWest Energy also provides processing and fractionation services to crude oil refineries in the Corpus Christi, 
Texas, area through its Javelina Gas Processing and Fractionation facility. While similar to the natural gas industry diagram 
outlined above, the following diagram illustrates the significant gas processing and fractionation processes at the Javelina 
Facility:
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Natural gas processing and treating involves the separation of raw natural gas into pipeline-quality natural gas, 
principally methane, and NGLs, as well as the removal of contaminants.  Raw natural gas from the wellhead is gathered at a 
processing plant, typically located near the production area, where it is dehydrated and treated, and then processed to recover
a mixed NGL stream.  In the case of our Javelina facilities, the natural gas inputs to our processing plant are a byproduct of 
the crude oil refining process.

The removal and separation of individual hydrocarbons by processing is possible because of differences in physical 
properties.  Each component has a distinctive weight, boiling point, vapor pressure and other physical characteristics. Natural
gas may also be diluted or contaminated by water, sulfur compounds, carbon dioxide, nitrogen, helium or other components. 
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After being separated from natural gas at the processing plant, the mixed NGL stream is typically transported to a 
centralized facility for fractionation.  Fractionation is the process by which NGLs are further separated into individual, more
marketable components, primarily ethane, propane, normal butane, isobutane and natural gasoline. Fractionation systems 
typically exist either as an integral part of a gas processing plant or as a “central fractionator,” often located many miles from 
the primary production and processing facility. A central fractionator may receive mixed streams of NGLs from many 
processing plants.

Described below are the five basic NGL products and their typical uses:

• Ethane is used primarily as feedstock in the production of ethylene, one of the basic building blocks for a 

wide range of plastics and other chemical products.  Ethane is not produced at our Siloam fractionator, as 
there is little petrochemical demand for ethane in Appalachia.  It remains, therefore, in the natural gas 
stream.  Ethane, however, is produced and sold in our East Texas and Oklahoma operations.

• Propane is used for heating, engine and industrial fuels, agricultural burning and drying, and as a 

petrochemical feedstock for the production of ethylene and propylene.  Propane is principally used as a fuel 
in our operating areas.

• Normal butane is principally used for gasoline blending, as a fuel gas, either alone or in a mixture with 

propane, and as a feedstock for the manufacture of ethylene and butadiene, a key ingredient of synthetic 
rubber.

• Isobutane is principally used by refiners to enhance the octane content of motor gasoline, as well as in the 

production of MTBE, an additive in cleaner-burning motor gasoline.

• Natural gasoline is principally used as a motor gasoline blend stock or petrochemical feedstock.

We face competition for natural gas and crude oil transportation and in obtaining natural gas supplies for our 
processing and related services operations; in obtaining unprocessed NGLs for fractionation; and in marketing our products 
and services. Competition for natural gas supplies is based primarily on the location of gas-gathering facilities and gas-
processing plants, operating efficiency and reliability, and the ability to obtain a satisfactory price for products recovered.
Competitive factors affecting our fractionation services include availability of capacity, proximity to supply and industry 
marketing centers, and cost efficiency and reliability of service. Competition for customers is based primarily on price, 
delivery capabilities, flexibility, and maintenance of high-quality customer relationships.

Our competitors include:

• other large natural gas gatherers that gather, process and market natural gas and NGLs;

• major integrated oil companies;

• medium and large sized independent exploration and production companies;

• major interstate and intrastate pipelines; and

• a large number of smaller gas gatherers of varying financial resources and experience.

Many of our competitors operate as master limited partnerships and enjoy a cost of capital comparable to and, in 
some cases, lower than ours. Other competitors, such as major oil and gas and pipeline companies, have capital resources and 
control supplies of natural gas substantially greater than ours. Smaller local distributors may enjoy a marketing advantage in 
their immediate service areas.

We believe our competitive strengths include:

• Strategic and growing position with high-quality assets in the Southwest and the Gulf Coast.  Our acquisitions 

have allowed us to establish and expand our presence in several long-lived natural gas supply basins in the 
Southwest, particularly in Texas and Oklahoma and the Gulf Coast.  Our two acquisitions in 2005 represent a 
substantial expansion of this strategy by providing direct access to the prolific Gulf Coast region.  All of our 
major acquisitions in these regions have been characterized by several common critical success factors that 
include:
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• an existing strong competitive position;

• access to a significant reserve or customer base with a stable or growing production profile;

• ample opportunities for long-term continued organic growth;

• ready access to markets; and

• close proximity to other acquisition or expansion opportunities.

Specifically, our East Texas System and our Pinnacle gathering systems are located in the East Texas and 
Permian basins in Texas.  Our Foss Lake gathering system and our associated Arapaho gas processing plant, 
which we refer to as our western Oklahoma assets, are located in the Anadarko basin in Oklahoma.  We believe 
the East Texas System and our western Oklahoma assets are located in some of the largest and most prolific 
natural gas-producing regions in the United States.  They also feature new, low-cost gathering systems that 
provide producers with low-pressure and fuel-efficient service, a significant competitive advantage for us over 
many competing gathering systems in those areas.  We believe this competitive advantage is evidenced by our 
growing throughput volumes on our East Texas, Appleby, and Western Oklahoma areas of operations.  We 
believe that both Starfish and Javelina, our 2005 acquisitions, will offer similar opportunities in their areas as 
well.

• Leading position in the Appalachian Basin. We are the largest processor of natural gas in Appalachia.  We 

believe our significant presence and asset base provide us with a competitive advantage in capturing and 
contracting for new supplies of natural gas.  The Appalachian Basin is a large natural gas-producing region 
characterized by long-lived reserves with modest decline rates and natural gas with high NGL content.  These 
reserves provide a stable supply of natural gas for our processing plants and our Siloam NGL fractionation 
facility.  Our concentrated infrastructure, and available land and storage assets in Appalachia should provide us 
with a platform for additional cost-effective expansion.

• Stable cash flows. We believe our numerous fee-based contracts and our active commodity risk management 

program provide us with stable cash flows.  For the year ended December 31, 2005, we generated 
approximately 49% of our net operating margin from fee-based services.  Net operating margin is a non-GAAP 
financial measure.  For a discussion of net operating margin and a reconciliation to income from operations, 
please see “Our Contracts.”  These depend on throughput volume, but are typically not affected by short-term 
changes in commodity prices.  In addition, a portion of our fee-based business is generated by our four lateral 
pipelines in the Southwest, which typically provide fixed transportation fees independent of the volumes 
transported.  We also believe that an active commodity risk management program is a significant component of 
providing stable cash flows as our commodity exposure grows with our expanding operations.

• Common carrier crude oil pipeline in Michigan.  We own a common carrier crude oil gathering pipeline in 

Michigan.  Our pipeline receives oil directly from in-state well production and is connected to Enbridge 
pipeline for transportation to interstate destinations.  We enjoy a competitive advantage over higher cost crude 
oil transportation alternatives such as trucking.  Most of the crude oil we transport in the state is produced from 
the Niagaran Reef Trend, which is generally characterized by long-lived crude oil reserves.

• Long-term Contracts. We believe our long-term contracts, which we define as contracts with remaining terms 

of four years or more, lend greater stability to our cash-flow profile.  For the year ended December 31, 2005, 
approximately 54% of our net operating margin was tied to long-term contracts.  In East Texas, approximately 
77% of our current gathering volumes as of December 31, 2005, are under contract until 2010.  Two of our 
Pinnacle lateral pipelines operate under fixed-fee contracts for the transmission of natural gas that expire in 
approximately 16 and 24 years, respectively.  Approximately 45% of our daily throughput in the Foss Lake 
gathering system and Arapaho processing plant in western Oklahoma is subject to contracts with remaining 
terms of five years or more.  In Appalachia, we have natural gas processing and NGL fractionation contracts 
with remaining terms from 5 to 11 years.  In Michigan, our natural gas transportation, treating and processing 
agreements have remaining terms of 10 to 22 years.

• Experienced management with operational, technical and acquisition expertise.  Each member of our executive 

management team has substantial experience in the energy industry. Our facility managers have extensive 
experience operating our facilities.  Our operational and technical expertise has enabled us to upgrade our 
existing facilities, as well as to design and build new ones.  Since our initial public offering in May 2002, our 
management team has utilized a disciplined approach to analyze and evaluate numerous acquisition 
opportunities, and has completed eight acquisitions.  We intend to continue to use our management’s experience 
and disciplined approach in evaluating and acquiring assets to grow through accretive acquisitions – those 
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acquisitions expected to increase our throughput volumes and cash flow distributable to our unitholders.

• Financial strength and flexibility.  During 2005, we issued approximately $100.0 million of equity.  Our goal is 

to maintain a capital structure with approximately equal amounts of debt and equity on a long-term basis.

As of December 31, 2005, we have available borrowing capacity of approximately $74.8 million under our 
$250.0 million revolving credit facility. This amount is determined on a quarterly basis and is further adjusted 
to take into consideration the cash flow contribution of an acquisition at the time of its closing.  This facility, 
together with our ability to issue additional partnership units for financing and acquisition purposes, should 
provide us with a flexible financial structure that will facilitate the execution of our business strategy.

Our primary business strategy is to grow our business and increase distributable cash flows to our common 
unitholders, improving financial flexibility and increasing our ability to access capital to fund our growth.  We plan to 
accomplish this through the following:

• Increasing utilization of our facilities. We hope to add to, or provide additional services to, our existing 

customers, and to provide services to other natural gas and crude oil producers in our areas of operation.  
Increased drilling activity in our core areas of operation, particularly within certain fields in the Southwest, 
should also produce increasing natural gas and crude oil supplies, and a corresponding increase in utilization of 
our transportation, gathering, processing and fractionation facilities.  In the meantime, we continue to develop 
additional capacity at several of our facilities, which enables us to increase throughput with minimal 
incremental costs.

• Expanding operations through internal growth projects. By expanding our existing infrastructure and customer 

relationships, we intend to continue growing in our primary areas of operation to meet the anticipated need for 
additional midstream services.  During 2005, we spent approximately $70.8 million of growth capital to expand 
several of our gathering and processing operations.  Projects included a new 200 MMcf/d gas processing facility 
and related liquids pipeline in East Texas, initial construction of the Blocker Field gathering system, also in East 
Texas, as well as compression and gathering capacity to support increasing throughput volumes in the fields 
associated with our Appleby gathering system in East Texas and our Foss Lake gathering system in Oklahoma.  
In the first quarter of 2005, we completed a new, more efficient processing plant to replace our Cobb processing 
plant in Appalachia and on January 1, 2006 the aforementioned East Texas processing facility began operation.

• Expanding operations through strategic acquisitions. We intend to continue pursuing strategic acquisitions of 

assets and businesses in our existing areas of operation that leverage our current asset base, personnel and 
customer relationships. During 2005, we spent approximately $398.3 million, including net working capital, to 
acquire Javelina and $41.7 million to acquire a 50% non-controlling interest in Starfish, two strategic assets in 
the Gulf Coast region.  We will also seek to acquire assets in certain regions outside of our current areas of 
operation.

• Securing additional long-term, fee-based contracts. We intend to continue to secure long-term, fee-based 

contracts in both our existing operations and strategic acquisitions, in order to further minimize our exposure to 
short-term changes in commodity prices.

The Partnership engages in risk management activities in order to reduce the effect of commodity price volatility 
related to future sales of natural gas, ethane, propane and crude. It may utilize a combination of fixed-price forward contracts,
fixed-for-floating price swaps and options available in the over-the-counter market, and futures contracts traded on the New 
York Mercantile Exchange. The Partnership monitors these activities through enforcement of our risk management policy 
(see Item 7A, “Commodity Price Risk”).

To better understand our business and the results of operations discussed in Item 6, “Selected Financial Data” and 
Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation,” it is important to have an 
understanding of three factors:

• the nature of the contracts from which we derive our revenues;

• the difficulty in comparing our results of operations across periods because of our acquisition activity; and

• the nature of our relationship with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.
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Our Contracts

We generate substantially all of our revenues and net operating margin (defined as revenues less purchased product 
costs – see explanation of net operating margin below) from natural gas gathering, processing and transmission; NGL 
transportation, fractionation and storage; and crude oil gathering and transportation. We have a variety of contract types.  In
many cases, we provide services under contracts that contain a combination of more than one of the arrangements described 
below.

• Fee-based arrangements.  Under these arrangements, we receive fees for gathering, processing and transmission of 

natural gas; transportation, fractionation and storage of NGLs; and gathering and transportation of crude oil. The 
revenue we earn from these arrangements is directly related to the volume of natural gas, NGLs or crude oil that 
flows through our systems and facilities, and is not directly dependent on commodity prices.  In certain cases, our 
arrangements provide for minimum annual payments. Should a sustained decline in commodity prices result in a 
decline in volumes, however, our revenues from these arrangements would be reduced.

• Percent-of-proceeds arrangements.  Under these arrangements, we generally gather and process natural gas on 

behalf of producers, sell the resulting residue gas and NGLs at market prices, and remit to producers an agreed-upon 
percentage of the proceeds based on an index price. In other cases, instead of remitting cash payments to the 
producer, we deliver an agreed-upon percentage of the residue gas and NGLs to the producer, and sell the volumes 
we keep to third parties at market prices.  Under these types of arrangements, our revenues and net operating 
margins generally increase as natural gas prices and NGL prices increase, and our revenues and net operating 
margins decrease as natural gas and NGL prices decrease. The most common arrangement is a percent of liquids (or 
“POL”) contract.

• Percent-of-index arrangements.  Under these arrangements, we generally purchase natural gas at either (1) a 

percentage discount to a specified index price, (2) a specified index price less a fixed amount, or (3) a percentage 
discount to a specified index price less an additional fixed amount. We then gather and deliver the natural gas to 
pipelines, where we resell the natural gas at the index price, or at a different percentage discount to the index price. 
The net operating margins we realize under these arrangements decrease in periods of low natural gas prices, 
because these net operating margins are based on a percentage of the index price. Conversely, our net operating 
margins increase during periods of high natural gas prices.

• Keep-whole arrangements. Under these arrangements, we gather natural gas from the producer, process the natural 

gas to extract NGLs, sell the NGLs to third parties and pay the producer, in the form of processed gas or its cash 
equivalent, for the full thermal equivalent volume of raw natural gas we received from the producer. Accordingly, 
our net operating margin is a function of the difference between the value of the extracted NGLs that we sell and the 
cost of the processed gas that would replace the thermal equivalent value of those NGLs. The profitability of these 
arrangements is subject not only to the commodity price risk of natural gas and NGLs but also to the price of natural 
gas relative to the price of NGLs. Our net operating margins increase under these arrangements when the value of 
NGLs is high relative to the cost of a thermal equivalent amount of natural gas, and our net operating margins 
decrease when the cost of natural gas is high relative to the value of a thermal equivalent amount of NGLs.

• Settlement margin.  Typically, we are allowed to retain a fixed percentage of the volume gathered to cover the 

compression fuel charges and deemed line losses.  When our gathering systems operate more efficiently than 
specified, per contract allowance, we can retain the difference for our own account.

• Condensate sales.  During the gathering process, thermodynamic forces contribute to changes in operating 

characteristics of the natural gas flowing through the pipeline. As a result, hydrocarbon dew points are reached, 
causing condensation of hydrocarbons in the high-pressure pipelines.  Condensate collected in the system is sold at a 
monthly crude-oil index-based price, and we keep the proceeds.

The terms of our contracts vary based on gas quality, the competitive environment at the time the contracts are 
signed and customer requirements.  Our contract mix and, accordingly, our exposure to natural gas and NGL prices, may 
change due to changes in producer preferences, our expansion in regions where some types of contracts are more common, 
and other market factors.  Any change in mix will affect our financial results.

At December 31, 2005, our primary exposure to keep-whole contracts was limited to our Arapaho (Oklahoma) 
processing plant and our East Texas processing contracts.  At the Arapaho plant inlet, the Btu content of the natural gas meets
the downstream pipeline specification, meaning it does not need to be processed to remove contaminants; however, we have 
the option of extracting NGLs when the processing margin environment is favorable.  In addition, approximately half, as 
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measured in volumes, of the related gas-gathering contracts include additional fees to cover plant operating costs, fuel costs 
and shrinkage costs in a low-processing margin environment.  Because of our ability to operate the plant in several recovery 
modes, including turning it off, coupled with the additional fees provided for in the gas-gathering contracts, our overall keep-
whole contract exposure is limited to a small portion of the operating costs of the plant.

Approximately 25% of the gas processed in East Texas for producers was processed under keep-whole terms.  Our 
keep-whole exposure in this area was offset to a great extent because the East Texas agreements provide for the retention of 
natural gas as a part of the gathering and compression arrangements with all producers on the system.  This excess gas helps 
offset the amount of replacement natural gas purchases required to keep our producers whole on an MMbtu basis, thereby 
creating a partial natural hedge.  The net result is a significant reduction in volatility for these changes in natural gas prices.
The remaining volatility for these contracts results from changes in NGL prices.  The Partnership has an active commodity 
risk management program in place to reduce the impacts of changing NGL prices.

Management evaluates contract performance on the basis of net operating margin (a “non-GAAP” financial 
measure), which is defined as income (loss) from operations, excluding facility expenses, selling, general and administrative 
expense, depreciation, amortization, impairments and accretion of asset retirement obligations.  These charges have been 
excluded for the purpose of enhancing the understanding, by both management and investors, of the underlying baseline 
operating performance of our contractual arrangements, which management uses to evaluate our financial performance, for 
purposes of planning and forecasting future periods.   Net operating margin does not have any standardized definition and, 
therefore, is unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other reporting companies. Net operating margin 
results should not be evaluated in isolation of, or as a substitute for, our financial results prepared in accordance with United
States GAAP. Our usage of net operating margin, and the underlying methodology in excluding certain charges, is not 
necessarily an indication of the results of operations that may be expected in the future, or that we will not, in fact, incur such 
charges in future periods.  The following reconciles this non-GAAP financial measure to income from operations, the most 
comparable GAAP financial measure (in thousands):

  December 31,  

  2005  2004  2003  

Revenues  $ 499,084  $ 301,314   $ 117,430  
       
Purchased product costs  366,878  211,534   70,832  

       
Net operating margin  132,206  89,780   46,598  
       

Facility expenses  47,972  29,911   20,463  
Selling, general and administrative expenses  21,573  16,133   8,598  
Depreciation  19,534  15,556   7,548  
Amortization of intangible assets  9,656  3,640   —  
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  159  13   —  
Impairments  —  130   1,148  

Income from operations  $ 33,312  $ 24,397   $ 8,841  

For the year ended December 31, 2005, the following table summarizes the percentages of revenue and net operating 
margin we generated by types of contracts, exclusive of the impact of commodity derivatives:

  Fee-Based  

Percent-of- 

Proceeds(1)

Percent-of- 

Index(2)  Keep-Whole(3)  Total 

Revenues  13 % 12 % 34 % 41 % 100 %

Net operating margin  49 % 15 % 29 % 7 % 100 %

(1) Includes other types of arrangements tied to NGL prices.
(2) Includes settlement margin, condensate sales and other types of arrangements tied to natural gas prices.
(3) Includes settlement margin, condensate sales and other types of arrangements tied to both NGL and natural gas prices.

Recent Acquisitions

Since our initial public offering, we have completed eight acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of 
approximately $794 million, net of working capital.  The following table sets forth information regarding each of these 
acquisitions:
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Name  Assets  Location  

Consideration

(in millions)  Closing Date 

Javelina Gas processing and 
fractionation 

facility   Corpus Christi, TX   $ 398.3   November 1, 2005
          

Starfish (1) Natural gas 
pipeline, gathering 

system and 
dehydration facility   

Gulf of 
Mexico/Southern 

Louisiana   $ 41.7   March 31, 2005 
         

East Texas Gathering system 
and gas procession 

assets   East Texas   $ 240.7   July 30, 2004 
         

Hobbs  Natural gas pipeline   New Mexico   $ 2.3   April 1, 2004 
         

Michigan Crude 
Pipeline  

Common carrier 
crude oil pipeline   Michigan   $ 21.3   December 18, 2003

         
Western Oklahoma  Gathering system   Western Oklahoma   $ 38.0   December 1, 2003

         
Lubbock Pipeline  Natural gas pipeline   West Texas   $ 12.2   September 2, 2003

         
Pinnacle Natural gas 

pipelines and 
gathering systems   East Texas   $ 39.9   March 28, 2003 

(1) Represents a 50% non-controlling interest.

Our Relationship with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

We were formed by MarkWest Hydrocarbon to acquire most of its natural gas gathering and processing assets and 
NGL transportation, fractionation and storage assets.  Under a Services Agreement between MarkWest Hydrocarbon and us, 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon acts in a management capacity, rendering day-to-day operational, business, asset management, 
accounting, personnel and related administrative services to us.  In return, we reimburse MarkWest Hydrocarbon for all 
expenses incurred on our behalf.

In addition, we entered into various agreements with MarkWest Hydrocarbon in connection with the 2002 closing of 
our initial public offering. Specifically, we entered into:

• an Omnibus Agreement Company governing potential competition and indemnification obligations among 
us and the other parties to the agreement; 

   

• a Gas Processing Agreement governing our obligations with respect to the processing of natural gas at our 
Kenova, Boldman and Cobb processing plants; 

   

• a Pipeline Liquids Transportation Agreement governing our obligations with respect to the transportation 
of mixed NGLs to our Siloam fractionation facility; 

   

• a Fractionation, Storage and Loading Agreement governing our obligations with respect to the unloading 
and fractionation of NGLs and the storage of the NGL products at our Siloam facility; and 

   

• a Natural Gas Liquids Purchase Agreement which governs our obligations with respect to the sale and 
purchase of NGL products we acquire under the Gas-Processing (Maytown) Agreement between a third 
party producer and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, which were assigned to us, as well as any other NGL 
products we acquire. 
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For a more detailed description of these agreements, please see “Part III, Item 13—Certain Relationships and 
Related Transactions.”

Segment Reporting

Segments.  We have six segments, based on geographic areas of operations, described below.  For further 
information, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Our 
Contracts,” included in Item 7 of this Form 10-K, and “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” included in Item 8 of 
this Form 10-K.

Southwest Business Unit

• East Texas.  We own the East Texas System, consisting of natural gas-gathering system pipelines, 

centralized compressor stations, and a natural gas processing facility and NGL pipeline that are currently under 
construction. The East Texas System is located in Panola County and services the Carthage Field, one of Texas’ 
largest onshore natural gas fields.  Producing formations in Panola County consist of the Cotton Valley, Pettit 
and Travis Peak formations, which together form one of the largest natural gas-producing regions in the United 
States.  The Carthage Field has an estimated 18 Tcf of remaining recoverable reserves, and cumulative 
historical production in excess of 12 Tcf.

• Oklahoma. We own the Foss Lake gathering system and the Arapaho gas-processing plant, located in 

Roger Mills and Custer counties of western Oklahoma.  The gathering portion consists of a pipeline system that 
is connected to natural gas wells and associated compression facilities.   All of the gathered gas ultimately is 
compressed and delivered to the processing plant.  After processing, the residue gas is delivered to a third-party 
pipeline and natural gas liquids are sold to a single customer.

• Other Southwest.  We own 17 natural gas-gathering systems located in Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi and 

New Mexico.  These systems generally service long-lived natural gas basins that continue to experience drilling 
activity.  We gather a significant portion of the gas produced from fields adjacent to our gathering systems.  In 
many areas we are the primary gatherer, and in some of the areas served by our smaller systems we are the sole 
gatherer.  In addition, we own four lateral pipelines in Texas and New Mexico.

Northeast Business Unit

• Appalachia.  We are the largest processor of natural gas in the Appalachian Basin with fully integrated 

processing, fractionation, storage and marketing operations.  The Appalachian Basin is a large natural gas-
producing region characterized by long-lived reserves and modest decline rates.  Our Appalachian assets 
include five natural gas-processing plants, an NGL pipeline, an NGL fractionation plant and two caverns for 
storing propane.

• Michigan. We own a common carrier crude oil gathering pipeline in Michigan.  We refer to this system as 

the Michigan Crude Pipeline.  We also own a natural gas gathering system and a natural gas processing plant in 
Michigan

Gulf Coast Business Unit

• Javelina.  On November 1, 2005, we acquired 100% of the equity interests in Javelina Company, Javelina 

Pipeline Company and Javelina Land Company, L.L.C., which were owned 40%, 40% and 20%, respectively, 
by subsidiaries of El Paso Corporation, Kerr-McGee Corporation, and Valero Energy Corporation.  The 
Javelina entities own and operate a natural gas processing facility in Corpus Christi, Texas, which treats and 
processes off-gas from six local refineries.  The facility was constructed in 1989 to recover hydrogen and up to 
28,000 barrels per day of NGLs, including olefins (ethylene and propylene), ethane, propane, mixed butane and 
pentanes.  The facility processes approximately 125 to 130 MMcf/d of inlet gas, but is expected to process up to 
its capacity of 142 MMcf/d as refinery output continues to grow.
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The following summarizes the percentage of our revenue and net operating margin generated by our assets, by 
geographic region, for the year ended December 31, 2005:

  East Texas  Oklahoma  

Other  

Southwest  Appalachia  Michigan  Gulf Coast  Total  

                  
Revenue  17 % 43 % 21 % 13 % 3 % 3 % 100 %

Net Operating 

Margin  36 % 15 % 11 % 21 % 7 % 10 % 100 %

Regulatory Matters

Our activities are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations, as well as orders of regulatory 
bodies, governing a wide variety of matters, including marketing, production, pricing, community right-to-know, protection 
of the environment, safety and other matters.

In many cases, various phases of our gas, liquids and crude oil operations in the states in which we operate are 
subject to rate and service regulation. Applicable statutes generally require that our rates, and terms and conditions of service,
provide no more than a fair return on the aggregate value of the facilities used to render services.

In general, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) has jurisdiction over natural gas pipelines and 
operators that provide natural gas pipeline transportation services in interstate commerce.   Section 1(b) of the Natural Gas 
Policy Act (“NGA”), however, exempts natural gas-gathering facilities from the jurisdiction of FERC. We own a number of 
natural gas pipelines that we have evaluated, and concluded they meet the traditional tests FERC has used to establish a 
pipeline’s status as a gatherer not subject to the agency’s jurisdiction.  Additionally, our intrastate natural gas pipeline 
operations generally are not subject to rate regulation by FERC, although they are regulated by various agencies of the states 
in which they are located, principally the Texas Railroad Commission, or TRRC.

Our Appalachian pipeline carries NGLs across state lines. The primary shipper on the pipeline is MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, which has entered into agreements with us providing for a fixed transportation charge for the term of the 
agreements.  They expire on December 31, 2015. We are the only other shipper on the pipeline. As we neither operate our 
Appalachian pipeline as a common carrier, nor hold it out for service to the public generally, there are currently no third-
party shippers on this pipeline and the pipeline is, and will continue to be, operated as a proprietary facility.  The likelihood 
of other entities seeking to utilize our Appalachian pipeline is remote, so it should not be subject to regulation by the FERC 
in the future. We cannot provide assurance, however, that FERC will not at some point determine that such transportation is 
within its jurisdiction, or that such an assertion would not adversely affect our results of operations. In such a case, we would
be required to file a tariff with FERC and provide a cost justification for the transportation charge.  Regardless of any FERC 
action, however, MarkWest Hydrocarbon has agreed to not challenge the status of our Appalachian pipeline or the 
transportation charge during the term of our agreements. With respect to the Partnership’s Michigan Crude Pipeline, in 
response to a shipper inquiry to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and following unsuccessful FERC-requested rate 
structure discussions with the shippers, FERC recently requested that we file a tariff.   The Partnership filed a tariff with the
agency establishing a cost-of-service rate structure to be effective starting January 1, 2006.  Two shippers and a producer 
protested the filing.  The Partnership vigorously defended its tariff, and on December 29, 2005, the Commission rejected the 
protestors’ request for interim rates and accepted the Partnership’s filing.  The new rate structure became effective January 1,
2006.  The Commission established hearing procedures for the tariff filing, but held them in abeyance pending the outcome 
of FERC-sponsored settlement discussions, which the parties now have been referred to under the agency’s procedures.  The 
Partnership cannot predict whether the FERC tariff protest or any settlement will adversely affect its Michigan Crude 
Pipeline results of operations.

Environmental Matters

General.  Our processing and fractionation plants, pipelines, and associated facilities are subject to multiple 
environmental obligations and potential liabilities under a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulations.  These 
include, without limitation: the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act; the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act; the Clean Air Act; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or the Clean Water Act; the Oil 
Pollution Act; and analogous state and local laws and regulations.  Such laws and regulations affect many aspects of our 
present and future operations, and generally require us to obtain and comply with a wide variety of environmental 
registrations, licenses, permits, inspections and other approvals, with respect to air emissions, water quality, wastewater 
discharges, and solid and hazardous waste management.  Failure to comply with these requirements may expose us to fines, 
penalties and/or interruptions in our operations that could influence our results of operations.  If an accidental leak, spill or 
release of hazardous substances occurs at any facilities that we own, operate or otherwise use, or where we send materials for 
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treatment or disposal, we could be held jointly and severally liable for all resulting liabilities, including investigation, 
remedial and clean-up costs.  Likewise, we could be required to remove or remediate previously disposed wastes or property 
contamination, including groundwater contamination.  We could also be required to perform remedial operations to prevent 
future contamination for properties owned, leased or acquired by us which may have been previously operated by third 
parties that may have released or disposed of hazardous substances or wastes.  Any or all of this could materially affect our 
results of operations and cash flows.

We believe that our operations and facilities are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws and 
regulations, and that the cost of compliance with such laws and regulations will not have a material adverse effect on our 
results of operations or financial condition.  We cannot ensure, however, that existing environmental regulations will not be 
revised or that new regulations will not be adopted or become applicable to us.  The clear trend in environmental regulation is
to place more restrictions and limitations on activities that may be perceived to affect the environment, and thus there can be
no assurance as to the amount or timing of future expenditures for environmental-regulation compliance or remediation, and 
actual future expenditures may be different from the amounts we currently anticipate.  Revised or additional regulations that 
result in increased compliance costs or additional operating restrictions, particularly if those costs are not fully recoverable
from our customers, could have material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flow.

Ongoing Remediation and Indemnification from a Third Party.  The previous owner/operator of our Boldman and 
Cobb facilities has been, or is currently involved in, investigatory or remedial activities with respect to the real property 
underlying these facilities.  These arise out of a September 1994 “Administrative Order by Consent for Removal Actions” 
with EPA Regions II, III, IV, and V; and an “Agreed Order” entered into with the Kentucky Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Cabinet in October 1994.  The previous owner/operator has accepted sole liability and 
responsibility for, and indemnifies MarkWest Hydrocarbon against, any environmental liabilities associated with the EPA 
Administrative Order, the Kentucky Agreed Order or any other environmental condition related to the real property prior to 
the effective dates of MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s lease or purchase of the real property. In addition, the previous 
owner/operator has agreed to perform all the required response actions at its expense in a manner that minimizes interference 
with MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s use of the properties. On May 24, 2002, MarkWest Hydrocarbon assigned to us the benefit of 
this indemnity from the previous owner/operator.  To date, the previous owner/operator has been performing all actions 
required under these agreements and, accordingly, we do not believe that the remediation obligation of these properties will 
have a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

Pipeline Safety Regulations

Our pipelines are subject to regulation by the U.S. Department of Transportation (“DOT”) under the Pipeline Safety 
Act of 1992, as amended (“Pipeline Safety Act”), and the Hazardous Liquid Pipeline Safety Act of 1979 (“HLPSA”), as 
amended; and the Pipeline Integrity Management (“PIM”) in High Consequence Areas (Gas Transmission Pipelines) 
amendment to 49 CFR Part 192, effective February 14, 2004, relating to the design, installation, testing, construction, 
operation, replacement and management of pipeline facilities. The Pipeline Safety Act requires the Research and Special 
Programs Administration of the DOT to consider environmental impacts, as well as its traditional public safety mandate, 
when developing pipeline safety regulations. The DOT’s pipeline operator qualification rules require minimum qualification 
requirements for personnel performing operations and maintenance activities on hazardous liquid pipelines.  HLPSA covers 
crude oil, carbon dioxide, NGL and petroleum products pipelines and requires any entity which owns or operates pipeline 
facilities to comply with the regulations under HLPSA, to permit access to and allow copying of records and to make certain 
reports and provide information as required by the Secretary of Transportation. The Pipeline Integrity Management in High 
Consequence Areas (Gas Transmission Pipelines) amendment to 49 CFR Part 192 (PIM) requires operators of gas 
transmission pipelines to ensure the integrity of their pipelines through hydrostatic pressure testing, the use of in-line 
inspection tools or through risk-based direct assessment techniques.  While we believe that our pipeline operations are in 
substantial compliance with applicable requirements, due to the possibility of new or amended laws and regulations, or 
reinterpretation of existing laws and regulations, there can be no assurance that future compliance with the requirements will 
not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial positions.

On November 8, 2004, a leak and release of vapors occurred in a pipeline transporting NGLs from the Partnership’s 
Maytown gas processing plant to the Partnership’s Siloam fractionator.  This pipeline is owned by a third party, and leased 
and operated by the Partnership’s subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Appalachia, LLC.  A subsequent ignition and fire from the 
leaked vapors resulted in property damage to five homes and injuries to some of the residents.  Pursuant to a Corrective 
Action Order issued by the federal Office of Pipeline Safety (“OPS”) on November 18, 2004 and amended November 24, 
2004, OPS required pipeline and valve integrity evaluation, testing and repair efforts, which MarkWest successfully 
completed on the affected pipeline segment.  Based on, among other things, the successful integrity testing of the affected 
pipeline, OPS authorized a partial return to service of the affected pipeline in October 2005.  Our partial return to service has 
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allowed us to transport substantially all of the volumes through the pipeline that were being transported prior to the incident.
We believe we should be able to satisfy relevant requirements to return to full service and are working with OPS.  We 
anticipate filing a request with OPS in the near future to return to full service.

Employee Safety

The workplaces associated with the processing and storage facilities and the pipelines we operate are also subject to 
oversight from the federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration, (“OSHA”), as well as comparable state statutes 
that regulate the protection of the health and safety of workers. In addition, the OSHA hazard-communication standard 
requires that we maintain information about hazardous materials used or produced in operations, and that this information be 
provided to employees, state and local government authorities, and citizens. We believe that we have conducted our 
operations in substantial compliance with OSHA requirements, including general industry standards, record-keeping 
requirements and monitoring of occupational exposure to regulated substances.

In general, we expect industry and regulatory safety standards to become stricter over time, resulting in increased 
compliance expenditures. While these expenditures cannot be accurately estimated at this time, we do not expect such 
expenditures will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Employees

We do not have any employees. Our general partner, or its affiliates, employs approximately 235 individuals to 
operate our facilities and provide general and administrative services, as our agents. The Paper, Allied Industrial, Chemical 
and Energy Workers International Union Local 5-372 represents 15 employees at our Siloam fractionation facility in South 
Shore, Kentucky. The collective bargaining agreement with this union was renewed on July 11, 2005, for a term of three 
years. The agreement covers only hourly, non-supervisory employees. We consider labor relations to be satisfactory at this 
time.

Available Information

Our principal executive office is located at 155 Inverness Drive West, Suite 200, Englewood, Colorado, 80112-
5000. Our telephone number is 303-290-8700. Our common units trade on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol 
“MWE.”  You can find more information about us at our Internet website, www.markwest.com.  Our annual report on Form 
10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports are 
available free of charge through our internet website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnish
such material with the Securities & Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth elsewhere in this Form 10-K, you should carefully consider the 

following factors when evaluating MarkWest Energy Partners.

Risks Inherent in Our Business

If we are unable to successfully integrate our recent or future acquisitions, our future financial performance may 

suffer.

Our future growth will depend in part on our ability to integrate our recent acquisitions, as well as our ability to 
acquire additional assets and businesses at competitive prices.  We recently completed the Starfish and Javelina acquisitions, 
which geographically expanded our operations into offshore and onshore Gulf of Mexico operations.  We cannot guarantee 
that we will successfully integrate these, or any other, acquisitions into our existing operations, or that we will achieve the
desired profitability and anticipated results from such acquisitions.  Failure to achieve such planned results could adversely 
affect our financial condition and results of operations.

The integration of acquisitions with our existing business involves numerous risks, including:

• operating a significantly larger combined organization and integrating additional midstream operations into 
our existing operations; 

• difficulties in the assimilation of the assets and operations of the acquired businesses, especially if the assets 
acquired are in a new business segment or geographical area; 

• the loss of customers or key employees from the acquired businesses; 

• the diversion of management’s attention from other existing business concerns; 
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• the failure to realize expected synergies and cost savings;

• coordinating geographically disparate organizations, systems and facilities;

• integrating personnel from diverse business backgrounds and organizational cultures; and

• consolidating corporate and administrative functions.

Further, unexpected costs and challenges may arise whenever businesses with different operations or management 
are combined, and we may experience unanticipated delays in realizing the benefits of an acquisition.  Following an 
acquisition, we may discover previously unknown liabilities subject to the same stringent environmental laws and regulations 
relating to releases of pollutants into the environment and environmental protection as our existing plants, pipelines and 
facilities.  If so, our operation of these new assets could cause us to incur increased costs to attain or maintain compliance 
with such requirements.  If we consummate any future acquisition, our capitalization and results of operation may change 
significantly, and unitholders will not have the opportunity to evaluate the economic, financial and other relevant information
that we will consider in determining the application of these funds and other resources.

Our acquisition strategy is based in part on our expectation of ongoing divestitures of assets within the midstream 
petroleum and natural gas industry.  A material decrease in such divestitures could limit our opportunities for future 
acquisitions, and could adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Growing our business by constructing new pipelines and processing and treating facilities subjects us to 

construction risks and risks that natural gas supplies will not be available upon completion of the facilities.

One of the ways we intend to grow our business is through the construction of additions to our existing gathering 
systems and construction of new gathering, processing and treating facilities. The construction of gathering, processing and 
treating facilities requires the expenditure of significant amounts of capital, which may exceed our expectations, and involves
numerous regulatory, environmental, political and legal uncertainties. If we undertake these projects, we may not be able to 
complete them on schedule or at all or at the budgeted cost. Moreover, our revenues may not increase immediately upon the 
expenditure of funds on a particular project. For instance, if we build a new pipeline, the construction will occur over an 
extended period of time, and we will not receive any material increases in revenues until after completion of the project. 
Furthermore, we may have only limited natural gas supplies committed to these facilities prior to their construction. 
Moreover, we may construct facilities to capture anticipated future growth in production in a region in which anticipated 
production growth does not materialize. We may also rely on estimates of proved reserves in our decision to construct new 
pipelines and facilities, which may prove to be inaccurate because there are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating 
quantities of proved reserves. As a result, new facilities may not be able to attract enough natural gas to achieve our expected
investment return, which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our substantial debt and other financial obligations could impair our financial condition, results of operations 

and cash flows, and our ability to fulfill our debt obligations.

We have substantial indebtedness and other financial obligations.

Subject to the restrictions governing our indebtedness and other financial obligations, and the indenture governing 
our outstanding notes, we may incur significant additional indebtedness and other financial obligations.

Our substantial indebtedness and other financial obligations could have important consequences.  For example, they 
could:

• make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our existing debt; 

   

• impair our ability to obtain additional financings in the future for working capital, capital expenditures, 
acquisitions, or general corporate and other purposes; 

   

• have a material adverse effect on us if we fail to comply with financial and restrictive covenants in our 
debt agreements, and an event of default occurs as a result of that failure that is not cured or waived; 

   

• require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to payments on our indebtedness and other 
financial obligations, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital 
expenditures, distributions and other general partnership requirements; 

   

• limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we 
operate; and 
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• place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have proportionately less debt. 

Furthermore, these consequences could limit our ability, and the ability of our subsidiaries, to obtain future 
financings, make needed capital expenditures, withstand a future downturn in our business or the economy in general, 
conduct operations or otherwise take advantage of business opportunities that may arise.  Our existing credit facility contains
covenants requiring us to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy other financial conditions.  We may be unable to meet
those ratios and conditions.  Any future breach of any of these covenants or our failure to meet any of these ratios or 
conditions could result in a default under the terms of our credit facility, which could result in acceleration of our debt and
other financial obligations.  If we were unable to repay those amounts, the lenders could initiate a bankruptcy or liquidation 
proceeding, or proceed against the collateral.

A significant decrease in natural gas and refinery off-gas supplies in our areas of operation, due to a decline in 

production from existing wells, refinery operations, depressed commodity prices, reduced drilling activities or 

other factors, could adversely affect our revenues and operating income and cash flow.

Our profitability depends on the volume of natural gas we gather, transmit and process, and NGLs we transport and 
fractionate at our facilities.  A decrease in natural gas or refinery off-gas supplies in our areas of operation would result in a 
decline in the volume of natural gas delivered to our pipelines and facilities for gathering, transporting and processing, and 
NGLs delivered to our pipelines and facilities for fractionation, storage, transportation and sale.  This would reduce our 
revenue and operating income.  Fluctuations in energy prices can greatly affect production rates, and investments by third 
parties in the development of new oil and natural gas reserves.  Drilling activity generally decreases as oil and natural gas 
prices decrease.  We have no control over the level of drilling activity in our areas of operations, the amount of reserves 
underlying the wells and the rate at which production from a well declines.  In addition, we have no control over producers or 
their production decisions, which are affected by, among other things: prevailing and projected energy prices, demand for 
hydrocarbons, the level of reserves, geological considerations, governmental regulation, and the availability and cost of 
capital.  Failure to connect new wells to our gathering systems would, therefore, result in a reduction of the amount of natural
gas we gather, transmit and process, and the amount of NGLs we transport and fractionate.  Over time, as the current wells 
exhaust, this could cause us to abandon our gathering systems and, possibly, cease gathering operations.  As a consequence 
of such declines, our revenues would drop.

We depend on third parties for the natural gas and refinery off-gas we process, and the NGLs we fractionate at 

our facilities, and a reduction in these quantities could reduce our revenues and cash flow.

Although we obtain our supply of natural gas, refinery off-gas and NGLs from numerous third-party producers, a 
significant portion comes from a limited number of key producers/suppliers who are committed to us under processing 
contracts.  According to these contracts or other supply arrangements, however, the producers are under no obligation to 
deliver a specific quantity of natural gas or NGLs to our facilities.  If these key suppliers, or a significant number of other
producers, were to decrease the supply of natural gas or NGLs to our systems and facilities for any reason, we could 
experience difficulty in replacing those lost volumes.  Because our operating costs are primarily fixed, a reduction in the 
volumes of natural gas or NGLs delivered to us would result not only in a reduction of revenues, but also a decline in net 
income and cash flow of similar magnitude.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from our gas processing, transportation, fractionation and 

storage agreements with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, and its failure to satisfy its payment or other obligations under 

these agreements could reduce our revenues and cash flow.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon accounts for a significant portion of our revenues and net operating margin.  These 
revenues and margins are generated by the volumes of natural gas contractually committed to MarkWest Hydrocarbon by the 
Appalachian producers described above, as well as the fees generated from processing, transportation, fractionation and 
storage services provided to MarkWest Hydrocarbon.  We expect to derive a significant portion of our revenues and net 
operating margin from the services we provide under our contracts with MarkWest Hydrocarbon for the foreseeable future.  
Any default or nonperformance by MarkWest Hydrocarbon could significantly reduce our revenues and cash flows.  Thus, 
any factor or event adversely affecting MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s business, creditworthiness or its ability to perform under its 
contracts with us, or its other contracts related to our business, could also adversely affect us.

The fees charged to third parties under our gathering, processing, transmission, transportation, fractionation and 

storage agreements may not escalate sufficiently to cover increases in costs. The agreements may not be renewed 

or may be suspended in some circumstances.

Our costs may increase at a rate greater than the fees we charge to third parties.  Furthermore, third parties may not 
renew their contracts with us.  Additionally, some third parties’ obligations under their agreements with us may be 
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permanently or temporarily reduced due to certain events, some of which are beyond our control, including force majeure 
events wherein the supply of either natural gas, NGLs or crude oil are curtailed or cut off.  Force majeure events include (but
are not limited to): revolutions, wars, acts of enemies, embargoes, import or export restrictions, strikes, lockouts, fires, 
storms, floods, acts of God, explosions, mechanical or physical failures of equipment or facilities of the Partnership or third
parties.  If the escalation of fees is insufficient to cover increased costs, if third parties do not renew or extend their contracts
with us or if any third party suspends or terminates its contracts with us, our financial results would suffer.

We are exposed to the credit risk of our customers and counterparties, and a general increase in the nonpayment 

and nonperformance by our customers could reduce our revenues and cash flow.

We are diligent in attempting to ensure that we issue credit to only credit-worthy customers. Even if our credit 
review and analysis mechanisms work properly, however, we may experience losses in dealing with operators and other 
parties. Any increase in the nonpayment and nonperformance by our customers could reduce our revenues and cash flow.

We may not be able to retain existing customers, or acquire new customers, which would reduce our revenues 

and limit our future profitability.

The renewal or replacement of existing contracts with our customers at rates sufficient to maintain current revenues 
and cash flows depends on a number of factors beyond our control, including competition from other gatherers, processors, 
pipelines, fractionators, and the price of, and demand for, natural gas, NGLs and crude oil in the markets we serve.  Our 
competitors include large oil, natural gas, refining and petrochemical companies, some of which have greater financial 
resources, more numerous or greater capacity pipelines, processing and other facilities, and greater access to natural gas and 
NGL supplies than we do.  Additionally, our customers that gather gas through facilities that are not otherwise dedicated to 
us may develop their own processing and fractionation facilities in lieu of using our services.  Certain of our competitors may
also have advantages in competing for acquisitions, or other new business opportunities, because of their financial resources 
and synergies in operations.

As a consequence of the increase in competition in the industry, and the volatility of natural gas prices, end-users 
and utilities are reluctant to enter into long-term purchase contracts.  Many end-users purchase natural gas from more than 
one natural gas company and have the ability to change providers at any time.  Some of these end-users also have the ability 
to switch between gas and alternative fuels in response to relative price fluctuations in the market.  Because there are 
numerous companies of greatly varying size and financial capacity that compete with us in the marketing of natural gas, we 
often compete in the end-user and utilities markets primarily on the basis of price.  The inability of our management to renew 
or replace our current contracts as they expire and to respond appropriately to changing market conditions could affect our 
profitability.  For more information regarding our competition, please see “ Industry Overview, Competition” in Item 1 of 
Part I of this report.

Our profitability is affected by the volatility of NGL product and natural gas prices.

Changes in the prices of NGL products have historically correlated closely with changes in the price of crude oil.  
Crude oil, NGL products and natural gas prices have been volatile in recent years in response to relatively minor changes in 
the supply and demand for NGL products and natural gas, market uncertainty, and a variety of additional factors that are 
beyond our control, including:

• the level of domestic oil, natural gas and NGL production;

• demand for natural gas and NGL products in localized markets;

• imports of crude oil, natural gas and NGLs;

• seasonality;

• the condition of the U.S. economy;

• political conditions in other oil-producing and natural gas-producing countries; and

• domestic government regulation, legislation and policies.

Our net operating margins under many of our various types of commodity-based contracts are directly affected by 
changes in NGL product prices and natural gas prices, thus are more sensitive to volatility in commodity prices than our fee-
based contracts.  Additionally, our purchase and resale of gas in the ordinary course of business exposes us to significant risk
of volatility in gas prices due to the potential difference in the time of the purchases and sales, and the existence of a 
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difference in the gas price associated with each transaction.  Finally, changes in natural gas prices may indirectly affect our
profitability, since prices can influence drilling activity and well operations and, thus, the volume of gas we gather and 
process.  In the past, the prices of natural gas and NGLs have been extremely volatile, and we expect this volatility to 
continue.

Our commodity derivative activities may reduce our earnings, profitability and cash flows.

Our operations expose us to fluctuations in commodity prices. We utilize derivative financial instruments related to 
the future price of crude oil, natural gas and certain NGLs with the intent of reducing volatility in our cash flows due to 
fluctuations in commodity prices.

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The extent of our commodity 
price exposure is related largely to the effectiveness and scope of our derivative activities. We have a policy to enter into 
derivative transactions related to only a portion of the volume of our expected production or fuel requirements and, as a 
result, we will continue to have direct commodity price exposure to the unhedged portion.  Please read “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about 
Market Risk.” Our actual future production or fuel requirements may be significantly higher or lower than we estimate at the 
time we enter into derivative transactions for such period. If the actual amount is higher than we estimate, we will have 
greater commodity price exposure than we intended. If the actual amount is lower than the amount that is subject to our 
derivative financial instruments, we might be forced to satisfy all or a portion of our derivative transactions without the 
benefit of the cash flow from our sale or purchase of the underlying physical commodity, resulting in a substantial diminution 
of our liquidity.  As a result of these factors, our hedging activities may not be as effective as we intend in reducing the 
volatility of our cash flows, and in certain circumstances may actually increase the volatility of our cash flows. In addition,
our hedging activities are subject to the risks that a counterparty may not perform its obligation under the applicable 
derivative instrument, the terms of the derivative instruments are imperfect, and our hedging policies and procedures are not 
properly followed. It is possible that the steps we take to monitor our derivative financial instruments may not detect and 
prevent violations of our risk management policies and procedures, particularly if deception or other intentional misconduct 
is involved.

We have found material weaknesses in our internal controls that require remediation and concluded, pursuant to 

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that our internal controls over financial reporting at 

December 31, 2005, were not effective.

As we discuss in our Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in Part II, Item 9A, 
“Controls and Procedures,” of this Form 10-K, we have discovered deficiencies, including material weaknesses, in our 
internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005.  In particular, we identified, and Deloitte & Touche’s 
audit report on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 confirmed the presence of, the following 
material weaknesses:

• Ineffective control environment; and

• Risk management and accounting for derivative financial instruments.

We are fully committed to remediating the material weaknesses described above, and we believe that we are taking 
the steps that will properly address these issues.  Further, our Audit Committee has been and expects to remain actively 
involved in the remediation planning and implementation.  However, the remediation of the design of the deficient controls 
and the associated testing efforts are not complete, and further remediation may be required.  While we are taking immediate 
steps and dedicating substantial resources to correct these material weaknesses, they will not be considered remediated until 
the new and improved internal controls operate for a period of time, are tested and are found to be operating effectively.  
Pending the successful completion of such testing and the hiring of additional personnel, we will perform mitigating 
procedures.  If we fail to remediate any material weaknesses, we could be unable to provide timely and reliable financial 
information, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

We are subject to operating and litigation risks that may not be covered by insurance.

Our industry is subject to numerous operating hazards and risks incidental to processing, transporting, fractionating 
and storing natural gas and NGLs, and to transporting and storing crude oil.  These include:

• damage to pipelines, plants, related equipment and surrounding properties caused by floods and other 
natural disasters; 
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• inadvertent damage from construction and farm equipment; 

   

• leakage of crude oil, natural gas, NGLs and other hydrocarbons; 

   

• fires and explosions; and 

   

• other hazards, including those associated with high-sulfur content, or sour gas, that could also result in 
personal injury and loss of life, pollution and suspension of operations. 

As a result, we may be a defendant in various legal proceedings and litigation arising from our operations.  We may 
not be able to maintain or obtain insurance of the type and amount we desire at reasonable rates.  Market conditions could 
cause certain insurance premiums and deductibles to become unavailable, or available only for reduced amounts of coverage.  
For example, insurance carriers now require broad exclusions for losses due to war risk and terrorist acts.  If we were to incur
a significant liability for which we were not fully insured, it could have a material adverse effect on our financial position.

Transportation on certain of our pipelines may be subject to federal or state rate and service regulation, and the 

imposition and/or cost of compliance with such regulation could adversely affect our profitability.

Some of our gas, liquids and crude oil transmission operations are subject to rate and service regulations under 
FERC or various state regulatory bodies, depending upon jurisdiction.  FERC generally regulates the transportation of natural 
gas and oil in interstate commerce, and FERC’s regulatory authority includes: facilities construction, acquisition, extension or
abandonment of services or facilities; accounts and records; and depreciation and amortization policies.  Intrastate natural gas
pipeline operations are generally not subject to regulation by FERC, and the Natural Gas Act (“NGA”) specifically exempts 
some gathering systems.  Yet such operations may still be subject to regulation by various state agencies.  The applicable 
statutes and regulations generally require that our rates and terms and conditions of service provide no more than a fair return
on the aggregate value of the facilities used to render services. FERC rate cases can involve complex and expensive 
proceedings.  For more information regarding regulatory matters that could affect our business, please see Item 1, Regulatory 
Matters.

We are indemnified for liabilities arising from an ongoing remediation of property on which our facilities are 

located and our results of operation and our ability to make payments of principal and interest on the notes could 

be adversely affected if the indemnifying party fails to perform its indemnification obligation.

Columbia Gas is the previous or current owner of the property on which our Kenova, Boldman, Cobb and Kermit 
facilities are located and is the previous operator of our Boldman and Cobb facilities. Columbia Gas has been or is currently 
involved in investigatory or remedial activities with respect to the real property underlying the Boldman and Cobb facilities 
pursuant to an “Administrative Order by Consent for Removal Actions” entered into by Columbia Gas and the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency and, in the case of the Boldman facility, an “Agreed Order” with the Kentucky Natural 
Resources and Environmental Protection Cabinet.

Columbia Gas has agreed to retain sole liability and responsibility for, and to indemnify MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
against, any environmental liabilities associated with these regulatory orders or the real property underlying these facilities to 
the extent such liabilities arose prior to the effective date of the agreements pursuant to which such properties were acquired
or leased from Columbia Gas. At the closing of our initial public offering, MarkWest Hydrocarbon assigned us the benefit of 
its indemnity from Columbia Gas with respect to the Cobb, Boldman and Kermit facilities. While we are not a party to the 
agreement under which Columbia Gas agreed to indemnify MarkWest Hydrocarbon with respect to the Kenova facility, 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon has agreed to provide to us the benefit of its indemnity, as well as any other third party 
environmental indemnity of which it is a beneficiary. MarkWest Hydrocarbon has also agreed to provide us an additional 
environmental indemnity pursuant to the terms of the Omnibus Agreement. Our results of operation and our ability to make 
cash distributions to our unitholders could be adversely affected if in the future either Columbia Gas or MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon fails to perform under the indemnification provisions of which we are the beneficiary.

Our business is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations with respect to environmental, safety and 

other regulatory matters, and the violation of, or the cost of compliance with, such laws and regulations could 

adversely affect our profitability.

Numerous governmental agencies enforce complex and stringent laws and regulations on a wide range of 
environmental, safety and other regulatory matters.  We could be adversely affected by increased costs due to stricter 
pollution-control requirements or liabilities resulting from non-compliance with operating or other regulatory permits.  New 
environmental laws and regulations might adversely influence our products and activities.  Federal, state and local agencies 
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also could impose additional safety requirements, any of which could affect our profitability.  In addition, we face the risk of
accidental releases or spills associated with our operations. These could result in material costs and liabilities, including those 
relating to claims for damages to property and persons.  Our failure to comply with environmental or safety-related laws and 
regulations could result in administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of investigatory and remedial 
obligations and even injunctions that restrict or prohibit our operations.  For more information regarding the environmental, 
safety and other regulatory matters that could affect our business, please see Item 1, Regulatory Matters, Environmental 
Matters, and Pipeline Safety Regulations.

The amount of gas we process, gather and transmit, or the crude oil we gather and transport, may be reduced if 

the pipelines to which we deliver the natural gas or crude oil cannot, or will not, accept the gas or crude oil.

All of the natural gas we process, gather and transmit is delivered into pipelines for further delivery to end-users.  If 
these pipelines cannot, or will not, accept delivery of the gas due to downstream constraints on the pipeline, we will be forced
to limit or stop the flow of gas through our pipelines and processing systems.  In addition, interruption of pipeline service 
upstream of our processing facilities would likewise limit or stop flow through our processing facilities.  Likewise, if the 
pipelines into which we deliver crude oil are interrupted, we will be limited in, or prevented from conducting, our crude oil 
transportation operations.  Any number of factors beyond our control could cause such interruptions or constraints on 
pipeline service, including necessary and scheduled maintenance, or unexpected damage to the pipeline.  Because our 
revenues and net operating margins depend upon (1) the volumes of natural gas we process, gather and transmit, (2) the 
throughput of NGLs through our transportation, fractionation and storage facilities and (3) the volume of crude oil we gather 
and transport, any reduction of volumes could result in a material reduction in our net operating margin.

Our business would be adversely affected if operations at any of our facilities were interrupted.

Our operations depend upon the infrastructure that we have developed, including processing and fractionation 
plants, storage facilities, and various means of transportation. Any significant interruption at these facilities or pipelines, or 
our inability to transmit natural gas or NGLs, or transport crude oil to or from these facilities or pipelines for any reason, 
would adversely affect our results of operations. Operations at our facilities could be partially or completely shut down, 
temporarily or permanently, as the result of circumstances not within our control, such as:

• unscheduled turnarounds or catastrophic events at our physical plants;

• labor difficulties that result in a work stoppage or slowdown; and

• a disruption in the supply of crude oil to our crude oil pipeline, natural gas to our processing plants or 

gathering pipelines, or a disruption in the supply of NGLs to our transportation pipeline and fractionation 
facility.

Due to our lack of asset diversification, adverse developments in our gathering, processing, transportation, 

transmission, fractionation and storage businesses would reduce our ability to make distributions to our 

unitholders.

We rely exclusively on the revenues generated from our gathering, processing, transportation, transmission, 
fractionation and storage businesses. An adverse development in one of these businesses would have a significantly greater 
impact on our financial condition and results of operations than if we maintained more diverse assets.

A shortage of skilled labor may make it difficult for us to maintain labor productivity, and competitive costs and 

could adversely affect our profitability.

Our operations require skilled and experienced laborers with proficiency in multiple tasks. In recent years, a 
shortage of workers trained in various skills associated with the midstream energy business has caused us to conduct certain 
operations without full staff, which decreases our productivity and increases our costs. This shortage of trained workers is the
result of the previous generation’s experienced workers reaching the age for retirement, combined with the difficulty of 
attracting new laborers to the midstream energy industry. Thus, this shortage of skilled labor could continue over an extended 
period. If the shortage of experienced labor continues or worsens, it could have an adverse impact on our labor productivity 
and costs and our ability to expand production in the event there is an increase in the demand for our products and services, 
which could adversely affect our profitability.
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Risks Related to Our Partnership Structure

Cost reimbursements and fees due our general partner may be substantial and reduce our cash available for 

distribution to unitholders.

Prior to making any distribution on the common units, we reimburse our general partner for all expenses it incurs on 
our behalf. Our general partner has sole discretion in determining the amount of these expenses. Our general partner and its 
affiliates also may provide us other services for which we will be charged fees.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its affiliates have conflicts of interest and limited fiduciary responsibilities, which 

may permit them to favor their own interests to the detriment of the unitholders

MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its affiliates own and control our general partner. MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its 
affiliates also own a significant limited partner interest in us. A number of officers and employees of MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
and our general partner also own interests in the Partnership. Conflicts of interest may arise between MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
and its affiliates, including our general partner and the Partnership. As a result of these conflicts, our general partner may 
favor its own interests, and the interests of its affiliates, over the interests of our unitholders. These conflicts include, among 
others, the following situations:

Conflicts Relating to Control:

• Employees of MarkWest Hydrocarbon who provide services to us also devote significant time to the 
businesses of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and are compensated by MarkWest Hydrocarbon for these services.

   

• Neither our Partnership Agreement nor any other agreement requires MarkWest Hydrocarbon to pursue a 
future business strategy that favors the Partnership or utilizes the Partnership’s assets for processing, 
transportation or fractionation services we provide. MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s directors and officers have a 
fiduciary duty to make these decisions in the best interests of the stockholders of MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

   

• Our general partner is allowed to take into account the interests of other parties, such as MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, in resolving conflicts of interest, which has the effect of limiting its fiduciary duty to our 
unitholders. 

   

• Our general partner may limit its liability and reduce its fiduciary duties, while also restricting the 
remedies available to our unitholders for actions that, without the limitations, might constitute breaches of 
fiduciary duty. As a result of purchasing units, our unitholders consent to some actions and conflicts of 
interest that might otherwise constitute a breach of fiduciary or other duties under applicable state law. 

• Our general partner controls the enforcement of obligations owed to the Partnership by our general partner 

and its affiliates, including the processing, transportation and fractionation agreements with MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon.

• Our general partner decides whether to retain separate counsel, accountants or others to perform services 

for the Partnership.

• In some instances, our general partner may cause us to borrow funds in order to make cash distributions, 

even if the purpose or effect of the borrowing is to make a distribution on the subordinated units or to make 
incentive distributions or to hasten the conversion of subordinated units.

• Our Partnership Agreement gives our general partner broad discretion in establishing financial reserves for 

the proper conduct of our business. These reserves also will affect the amount of cash available for 
distribution. Our general partner may establish reserves for distribution on the subordinated units, but only 
if those reserves will not prevent us from distributing the full minimum quarterly distribution, plus any 
arrearages, on the common units for the following four quarters.

Conflicts Relating to Costs:

• Our general partner determines the amount and timing of asset purchases and sales, capital expenditures, 

borrowings, issuance of additional partnership securities and reserves, each of which can affect the amount 
of cash that is distributed to our unitholders.
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• Our general partner determines which costs incurred by MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its affiliates are 

reimbursable by us.

• Our Partnership Agreement does not restrict our general partner from causing us to pay it or its affiliates for 

any services rendered on terms that are fair and reasonable to us or entering into additional contractual 
arrangements with any of these entities on our behalf.

Unitholders have less ability to elect or remove management than holders of common stock in a corporation.

Unlike the holders of common stock in a corporation, unitholders have only limited voting rights on matters 
affecting our business, and therefore limited ability to influence management’s decisions regarding our business.  Unitholders 
did not elect our general partner or its board of directors, and have no right to elect our general partner or its board of 
directors on an annual or other continuing basis.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its affiliates choose the board of directors of our general partner. The directors of our 
general partner also have a fiduciary duty to manage our general partner in a manner beneficial to its members, MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon and its affiliates.

Furthermore, if unitholders are dissatisfied with the performance of our general partner, they have little ability to 
remove our general partner. First, our general partner generally may not be removed except upon the vote of the holders of at 
least 66 2/3% of the outstanding units voting together as a single class. Also, if our general partner is removed without cause 
during the subordination period, and units held by MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its affiliates are not voted in favor of that 
removal, all remaining subordinated units will automatically be converted into common units, and any existing arrearages on 
the common units will be extinguished. A removal under these circumstances would adversely affect the common unitholders 
by prematurely eliminating their contractual right to distributions over the subordinated units, which would otherwise have 
continued until we had met certain distribution and performance tests.

Cause is narrowly defined to mean that a court of competent jurisdiction has entered a final, non-appealable 
judgment finding our general partner liable for actual fraud, gross negligence, or willful or wanton misconduct in its capacity
as our general partner. Cause does not include most cases of charges of poor management of the business, so the removal of 
our general partner because of the unitholders’ dissatisfaction with its performance in managing our partnership will most 
likely result in the termination of the subordination period.

Unitholders’ voting rights are restricted by the Partnership Agreement provision. It states that any units held by a 
person who owns 20% or more of any class of units then outstanding, other than our general partner, its affiliates, their 
transferees and persons who acquired such units with the prior approval of the board of directors of our general partner, 
cannot be voted on any matter. In addition, the Partnership Agreement contains provisions limiting the ability of unitholders 
to call meetings or to acquire information about our operations, as well as other provisions limiting the unitholders’ ability to 
influence the manner or direction of management.

These provisions may discourage a person or group from attempting to remove our general partner or otherwise 
change our management. As a result of these provisions, the price at which the common units will trade may be lower 
because of the absence or reduction of a takeover premium in the trading price.

The control of our general partner may be transferred to a third party, and that party could replace our current 

management team, in each case without unitholder consent.

Our general partner may transfer its general partner interest to a third party in a merger, or in a sale of all or 
substantially all of its assets, without the consent of the unitholders. Furthermore, there is no restriction in the Partnership
Agreement on the ability of the owners of our general partner from transferring their ownership interest in our general partner
to a third party. The new owner of our general partner would then be in a position to replace the board of directors and 
officers of our general partner with its own choices, and to control the decisions taken by the board of directors and officers.

Our general partner’s absolute discretion in determining the level of cash reserves may adversely affect our 

ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

Our Partnership Agreement requires our general partner to deduct from operating surplus cash reserves that, in its 
reasonable discretion, are necessary to fund our future operating expenditures. In addition, the Partnership Agreement permits 
our general partner to reduce available cash by establishing cash reserves for the proper conduct of our business, to comply 
with applicable law or agreements to which we are a party, or to provide funds for future distributions to partners. These cash
reserves will affect the amount of cash available for distribution to our unitholders.



24

Our Partnership Agreement contains provisions that reduce the remedies available to unitholders for actions that 

might otherwise constitute a breach of fiduciary duty by our general partner.

Our Partnership Agreement limits the liability and reduces the fiduciary duties of our general partner to our 
unitholders. The Partnership Agreement also restricts the remedies available to unitholders for actions that would otherwise 
constitute breaches of our general partner’s fiduciary duties. If you hold common units, you will be treated as having 
consented to the various actions contemplated in the Partnership Agreement and conflicts of interest that might otherwise be 
considered a breach of fiduciary duties under applicable state law.

We do not have any employees and rely solely on employees of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its affiliates who 

serve as our agents.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its affiliates conduct businesses and activities of their own in which we have no 
economic interest. If these separate activities are significantly greater than our activities, there could be material competition 
for the time and effort of the employees who provide services to our general partner. If the employees of MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon and its affiliates do not devote sufficient attention to the management and operation of our business, our 
financial results may suffer, and our ability to make distributions to our unitholders may be reduced.

We may issue additional common units without your approval, which would dilute your ownership interests.

During the subordination period, our general partner, without the approval of our unitholders, may cause the 
Partnership to issue up to 1,207,500 additional common units. Our general partner, without unitholder approval, may also 
cause the Partnership to issue an unlimited number of additional common units or other equity securities of equal rank with 
the common units, in several circumstances.  These include:

• the issuance of common units in connection with acquisitions or capital improvements that increase cash 

flow from operations per unit on a pro forma basis;

• the conversion of subordinated units into common units;

• the conversion of units of equal rank with the common units into common units under some circumstances;

• the conversion of the general partner interest and the incentive distribution rights into common units as a 
result of the withdrawal of our general partner; 

   

• issuances of common units under our long-term incentive plan; or 

   

• issuances of common units to repay indebtedness, the cost of servicing which is greater than the 
distribution obligations associated with the units issued in connection with the debt’s retirement. 

The issuance of additional common units or other equity securities of equal or senior rank will have the following 
effects:

• our unitholders’ proportionate ownership interest in the Partnership will decrease;

• the amount of cash available for distribution on each unit may decrease;

• because a lower percentage of total outstanding units will be subordinated units, the risk that a shortfall in 

the payment of the minimum quarterly distribution will be borne by our common unitholders will increase;

• the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding unit may be diminished; and

• the market price of the common units may decline.

After the end of the subordination period, we may issue an unlimited number of limited partner interests of any type 
without the approval of our unitholders. Our Partnership Agreement does not give our unitholders the right to approve our 
issuance of equity securities ranking junior to the common units at any time.

Our general partner has a limited call right that may require you to sell your common units at an undesirable 

time or price.

If at any time more than 80% of the outstanding common units are owned by our general partner and its affiliates, 



25

our general partner will have the right, but not the obligation, which it may assign to any of its affiliates or to the Partnership,
to acquire all, but not less than all, of the remaining common units held by unaffiliated persons at a price not less than their
then-current market price. As a result, you may be required to sell your common units at an undesirable time or price and 
may not receive any return on your investment. You may also incur a tax liability upon a sale of your units.

You may not have limited liability if a court finds that unitholder action constitutes control of our business.

Under Delaware law, you could be held liable for our obligations as a general partner if a court determined that the 
right or the exercise of the right by our unitholders as a group to remove or replace our general partner, to approve some 
amendments to the Partnership Agreement, or to take other action under our Partnership Agreement was considered 
participation in the “control” of our business.

Our general partner usually has unlimited liability for the obligations of the Partnership, such as its debts and 
environmental liabilities, except for those contractual obligations of the Partnership that are expressly made without recourse
to our general partner.

In addition, Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act provides that, under some 
circumstances, a unitholder may be liable to us for the amount of a distribution for a period of three years from the date of the 
distribution.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The locations, approximate capacity, and throughput of our gas-processing plants as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2005, are as follows:

Gas Processing Facilities:

    Design  Year Ended December 31, 2005 

Facility Location 

Year of Initial

Construction

Throughput

Capacity

(Mcf/d)  

Natural Gas 

Throughput

(Mcf/d)  

Utilization of

Design

Capacity

NGL

Throughput

(gal/day) 

East Texas:          
East Texas processing plant Panola, County, TX 2005  200,000   NA   NA   NA  

            
Western Oklahoma:            

Arapaho processing plant Custer County, OK 2000  90,000   76,000   84 % 167,000  
            
Appalachia:            

Kenova Processing Plant (1) Wayne County, WV 1996  160,000   131,000   82 % NA  
Boldman Processing Plant 

(1) Pike County, KY 1991  70,000   43,000   61 % NA  
Maytown Processing Plant Floyd County, KY 2000  55,000   63,000   115 % NA  
Cobb Processing Plant Kanawha County, 

WV 2005  25,000   24,000   96 % NA  
Kermit Processing Plant (2) Mingo County, WV 2001  32,000   NA   NA   NA  

            
Michigan:            

Fisk Processing Plant Manistee County, MI 1998  35,000   6,600   19 % 16,000  
            
Gulf Coast:            

Javelina processing plant (3) Corpus Christi, TX 1989  142,000   102,000   72 % 22,100  

(1) A portion of the gas processed at Maytown and Boldman plants, and all of the gas processed at Kermit plant, is further 
processed at Kenova plant to recover additional NGLs.
(2) The Kermit processing plant is operated by a third party solely to prevent liquids from condensing in the gathering and 
transmission pipelines upstream of our Kenova plant. We do not receive Kermit gas volume information but do receive all of 
the liquids produced at the Kermit facility.
(3) We acquired the Javelina processing plant on November 1, 2005.
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The location, approximate capacity, and throughput of our fractionation facility as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2005, is as follows:

Fractionation Facility:

        Year Ended December 31, 2005  

Facility  Location  

Year of Initial 

Construction

Design

Throughput

Capacity

(gal/d)

NGL

Throughput

(gal/day) 

Utilization of

Design

Capacity

Appalachia:             
Siloam fractionation 

plant  South Shore, KY   1957   600,000   430,000   72 %

The name, approximate length in miles, geographical location, and throughput of our pipelines as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2005, are as follows:

Natural Gas Pipelines:

        Design  Year Ended December 31, 2005  

Facility  Location  Miles  

Year of Initial

Construction

Throughput

Capacity

(Mcf/d) 

Natural Gas 

Throughput

(Mcf/d) 

Utilization of

Design

Capacity

NGL

Throughput

(gal/day) 

East Texas:                  
East Texas gathering system  Panola County, TX   311   1990   350,000   321,000   92 % NA   

                   

Western Oklahoma:                   
Foss Lake Gathering System Roger Mills and 

Custer County, OK   240   1998   90,000   76,000   84 % NA   
                   

Other Southwest:                   
Appleby Gathering System Nacogdoches

County, TX   139   1990   40,000   33,000   83 % NA   
Other Gathering Systems (4)      Various   52,570   16,500   31 % NA   

                   

Michigan:                   
90-mile Gas Gathering 

Pipeline
Manistee, Mason 
and Oceana 
Counties, MI   90   1994–1998   35,000   6,600   19 % 15,600   

(4) We acquired the Appleby gathering system, along with 20 other gathering systems, as part of our March 28, 2003 
Pinnacle acquisition.

NGL Pipelines:

        Design  Year Ended December 31, 2005  

Pipeline  Location  Miles  

Year of Initial

Construction

Throughput

Capacity

(gal/day) 

NGL

Throughput

(gal/day) 

Utilization of

Design

Capacity

Appalachia:               

Maytown to Institute 
(5) 

Floyd County, KY to 
Kanawha County, 
WV   100 1956   250,000   120,000   48 %

Ranger to Kenova 
(6) 

Lincoln County, WV 
to Wayne County, 
WV   40 1976   831,000   120,000   14 %

Kenova to Siloam Wayne County, WV 
to South Shore, KY   40 1957   831,000   273,000   33 %

                
East Texas:                

E. Texas Liquidline  Panola County, Texas   37.5 2005   630,000   —   NA   

(5) Includes 40 miles of currently unused pipeline extending from Ranger to Institute.
(6) NGLs transported through the Ranger to Kenova pipeline are combined with NGLs recovered at the Kenova facility and 
the combined NGL stream is transported in the Kenova to Siloam pipeline to Siloam.
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Michigan Crude Pipeline :
        Year Ended December 31, 2005  

Pipeline  Location  Miles  

Design

Throughput

Capacity (gal/day)  

NGL

Throughput

(gal/day)  

Utilization of 

Design Capacity 

Michigan:            
Michigan Crude 

Pipeline 
Manistee County, MI to 
Crawford County, MI   150   60,000  14,200   24 %

Title to Properties

Substantially all of our pipelines are constructed on rights-of-way granted by the apparent record owners of the 
property. Lands over which pipeline rights-of-way have been obtained may be subject to prior liens that have not been 
subordinated to the right-of-way grants. We have obtained, where determined necessary, permits, leases, license agreements 
and franchise ordinances from public authorities to cross over or under, or to lay facilities in or along water courses, county
roads, municipal streets and state highways, as applicable. We also have obtained easements and license agreements from 
railroad companies to cross over or under railroad properties or rights-of-way. Many of these authorizations and grants are 
revocable at the election of the grantor. In some cases, property on which our pipelines were built was purchased in fee or 
held under long-term leases. Our Siloam fractionation plant and Kenova processing plant are on land that we own in fee.

Some of the leases, easements, rights-of-way, permits, licenses and franchise ordinances that were transferred to us 
required the consent of the then-current landowner to transfer these rights, which in some instances was a governmental 
entity. We believe that we have obtained sufficient third-party consents, permits and authorizations for the transfer of the 
assets necessary for us to operate our business. We also believe we have satisfactory title or other right to all of our material
land assets. Title to these properties is subject to encumbrances in some cases; however, we believe that none of these 
burdens will materially detract from the value of these properties or from our interest in these properties, or will materially
interfere with their use in the operation of our business.

We have pledged substantially all of its assets to secure the debt of our subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Operating 
Company, L.L.C. (the “Operating Company”), as discussed in Note 10 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

MarkWest Energy Partners, in the ordinary course of business, is subject to a variety of risks and disputes normally 
incident to its business, a defendant in various lawsuits and a party to various other legal proceedings. We maintain insurance
policies with insurers in amounts and with coverage and deductibles as we believe are reasonable and prudent. We cannot 
assure, however, that the insurance companies will promptly honor their policy obligations or that the coverage or levels of 
insurance will be adequate to protect us from all material expenses related to potential future claims for property loss or 
business interruption to the Partnership or for third party claims of personal and property damage, or that the coverage or 
levels of insurance it presently has will be available in the future at economical prices.

In early 2005, the Partnership and several of its affiliates were served with two lawsuits, Ricky J. Conn, et al. v. 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. et al .(filed February 7, 2005),. and Charles C. Reid, et al. v. MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. et

al., (filed February 8, 2005),  presently removed to and under the jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Eastern 
District of Kentucky, Pikeville Division. The Partnership was served with an additional lawsuit, Community Trust and 
Investment Co., et al. v. MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. et al., filed November 7, 2005 in Floyd County Circuit Court, 
Kentucky, that added five new claimants but essentially alleged the same facts and claims as the earlier two suits. These 
actions are for third-party claims of property and personal injury damages sustained as a consequence of an NGL pipeline 
leak and an ensuing explosion and fire that occurred on November 8, 2004. The pipeline was owned by an unrelated business 
entity and leased and operated by the Partnership’s subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Appalachia, LLC. It transports NGLs from 
the Maytown gas processing plant to the Partnership’s Siloam fractionator. The fire from the leaked vapors resulted in 
property damage to five homes and injuries to some of the residents. The pipeline owner, the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Office of Pipeline Safety (“OPS”), and the Partnership continue to investigate the incident.

The Partnership notified its general liability insurance carriers of the incident and of the filed Kentucky actions in a 
timely manner and is coordinating the defense of these third-party lawsuits with the insurers. At this time, the Partnership 
believes that it has adequate general liability insurance coverage for third-party property damage and personal injury liability
resulting from the incident. To date, the Partnership has settled with several of the claimants for third-party property damage
claims (damage to residences and personal property), in addition to reaching settlement for some of the personal injury 
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claims. These settlements have been paid for or reimbursed under the Partnership’s general liability insurance. As a result, 
the Partnership has not provided for a loss contingency. 

Pursuant to OPS regulation mandates and to a Corrective Action Order issued by the OPS on November 18, 2004, 
pipeline and valve integrity evaluation, testing and repairs were conducted on the affected pipeline segment before service 
could be resumed. Based on, among other things, the successful integrity testing of the affected pipeline, OPS authorized a 
partial return to service of the affected pipeline in October 2005. MarkWest is currently preparing its application for return to
full service.

The Partnership has filed an independent action captioned MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., et al. v. Liberty Mutual Ins. 
Co., et al. (District Court, Arapahoe County, Colorado, Case No. 05CV3953 filed August 12, 2005)), as removed to the U.S. 
District Court for the District of Colorado, Civil Action No. 1:05-CV-1948, on October 7, 2005), against its All-Risks 
Property and Business Interruption insurance carriers as a result of the insurance companies’ refusal to honor their insurance 
coverage obligation to pay the Partnership for certain expenses. These include the Partnership’s internal expenses and costs 
incurred for damage to, and loss of use of the pipeline, equipment, products, the extra transportation costs incurred for 
transporting the liquids while the pipeline was out of service, the reduced volumes of liquids that could be processed, and the
costs of complying with the OPS Corrective Action Order (hydrostatic testing, repair/replacement and other pipeline integrity 
assurance measures). These expenses and costs have been expensed as incurred and any potential recovery from the All-
Risks Property and Business Interruption insurance carriers will be treated as “other income” if and when they are received. 
The Partnership has not provided for a receivable for these claims because of the uncertainty as to whether and how much the 
Partnership will ultimately recover under these policies. The Partnership has also asserted that the cost of pipeline testing, 
replacement and repair are subject to an equitable sharing arrangement with the pipeline owner, pursuant to the terms of the 
pipeline lease agreement.

On September 27, 2005, a lawsuit captioned C.F. Qualia Operating, Inc. v. MarkWest Pinnacle, L.P., (District Court 
of Midland, Texas, 385th Judicial District, Case No. CV-45188), was served on a Partnership subsidiary, MarkWest Pinnacle, 
L.P., alleging breach of contract, conversion, fraud and breach of implied duty of good faith with respect to a dispute on 
volumes of gas purchased by the Partnership under a gas purchase agreement. Under the gas purchase agreement, MarkWest 
Energy Partners paid the Plaintiff based on volumes of gas measured at the wellhead (delivery point). Plaintiff claims that it 
is entitled to a prorated portion of any system gain, i.e., that is to be paid for more gas than it actually sold and delivered to 
the Partnership. MarkWest Energy Partners has filed an Answer to the Complaint denying Plaintiff’s allegations and has 
asserted a counter-claim for declaratory judgment on the contract terms as being clear and unambiguous as to payment being 
limited to those measured at the wellhead, that Plaintiff’s claims are without merit, and that MarkWest also may have 
overpaid Plaintiff based on, among other things, the wet versus dry Btu measurements. Discovery has just begun, and at this 
time, the Partnership is not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter. As a result, the Partnership has not provided
for a loss contingency.

The Partnership acquired the Javelina gas processing, transportation and fractionation business located in Corpus 
Christi, Texas (the “Javelina Business”) on November 1, 2005. The Javelina Business was a party with numerous other 
defendants to four lawsuits brought by plaintiffs who had residences or businesses located near the Corpus Christi industrial 
area, an area which included the Javelina gas processing plant, and several petroleum, petrochemical and metal processing 
and refining operations. These suits, styled Victor Huff v. ASARCO Incorporated, et al. (Cause No. 98-01057-F, 214th

Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed in March 3, 1998); Hipolito Gonzales et al. v. ASARCO 
Incorporated, et al., (Cause No. 98-1055-F, 214th Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed in 1998); 
Jason and Dianne Gutierrez, individually and as representative of the estate of Sarina Galan Gutierrez (Cause No. 05-2470-A, 
28TH Judicial District, severed May 18, 2005, from Gonzales v. Asarco Incorporated, above); and Jesus Villarreal v. Koch 
Refining Co. et al., (Cause No. 05-01977-F, 214th Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed April 27, 
2005) set forth claims for personal injury or property damage, harm to business operations and nuisance type claims, 
allegedly incurred as a result of operations and emissions from the various industrial operations in the area. The Hipolito 
Gonzales action is subject to a settlement in principle reached in a mediation held December 9, 2005. The Partnership’s 
involvement and engagement in the other cases has been limited to this point, but the actions have been and are being 
vigorously defended and, based on initial evaluation and consultations, it appears at this time that these actions should not 
have a material impact on the Partnership.

In response to a shipper inquiry to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) regarding the 
Partnership’s Michigan Crude Pipeline, and following unsuccessful FERC-requested rate structure discussions with the 
shippers, FERC recently requested that we file a tariff. The Partnership filed on November 18, 2005 a tariff with FERC 
establishing a cost of service rate structure to be effective starting January 1, 2006. Two shippers and a producer filed a joint 
protest to the FERC filing with the Commission, and the Partnership filed a response to this joint protest vigorously 
defending its filing and opposing the protest. The Commission issued an order on December 29, 2005, rejecting the 
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protestor’s request for interim rates and accepting the Partnership’s filing, and the new rates and rate structure became 
effective January 1, 2006. The Commission established hearing procedures for the tariff filing, but held them in abeyance 
pending the outcome of FERC sponsored settlement discussions, which the parties have been referred to under the FERC 
procedures. The Partnership and the shippers subsequently negotiated a settlement, that resulted in the Partnership filing a 
new tariff which, for the most part, returns the rates to those in effect prior to the effective date of the November 18, 2005 
tariff filing, and established such rates for a prospective three year period.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

No matter was submitted to a vote of the holders of our common units during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2005.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON UNITS AND RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS

Our common units have been listed on the American Stock Exchange (“AMEX”), under the symbol “MWE,” since 
May 24, 2002. Prior to May 24, 2002, our equity securities were not listed on any exchange, or traded on any public trading 
market. The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of the common units as reported by AMEX, as well as the 
amount of cash distributions paid per quarter for 2005 and 2004.

Quarter Ended  High  Low  

Per

Common

Unit

Per

Subordinated

Unit  Record Date  Payment Date 

              
December 31, 2005  $ 50.95   $ 42.01   $ 0.82   $ 0.82   February 8, 2006   February 14, 2006
September 30, 2005  $ 53.50   $ 47.18   $ 0.82   $ 0.82   November 8, 2005   November 14, 2005
June 30, 2005  $ 51.54   $ 46.51   $ 0.80   $ 0.80   August 9, 2005   August 15, 2005 
March 31, 2005  $ 52.50   $ 45.25   $ 0.80   $ 0.80   May 10, 2005   May 16, 2005 
               
December 31, 2004  $ 48.69   $ 42.50   $ 0.78   $ 0.78   February 2, 2005   February 11, 2005
September 30, 2004  $ 45.80   $ 37.73   $ 0.76   $ 0.76   November 3, 2004   November 12, 2004
June 30, 2004  $ 40.07   $ 33.50   $ 0.74   $ 0.74   July 30, 2004   August 13, 2004 
March 31, 2004  $ 41.66   $ 37.70   $ 0.69   $ 0.69   April 30, 2004   May 14, 2004 

As of December 31, 2005, there were approximately 151 holders of record of our common units.

The Partnership has also issued 3,000,000 subordinated units, for which there is no established public-trading 
market. Pursuant to the terms of the partnership agreement, 1,200,000 of these units were converted into common units 
during 2005. 1,800,000 subordinated units were outstanding as of December 31, 2005. There were 2 holders of record of our 
subordinated units as of December 31, 2005.

Distributions of Available Cash

The Partnership distributes 100% of its “Available Cash” within 45 days after the end of each quarter to unitholders 
of record and to the general partner. “Available Cash” is defined in our Partnership Agreement, and generally consists of all 
cash and cash equivalents of the Partnership on hand at the end of each quarter, less reserves established by the general 
partner for future requirements, plus all cash on the date of determination of available cash for the quarter resulting from 
working capital borrowings made after the end of the quarter. The general partner has the discretion to establish cash reserves
that are necessary, or appropriate, to (i) provide for the proper conduct of our business; (ii) comply with applicable law, any
of our debt instruments or other agreements; or (iii) provide funds for distributions to unitholders and the general partner for
any one or more of the next four quarters.

Distributions of Available Cash During the Subordination Period

During the subordination period (as defined in the Partnership Agreement and discussed further below), our 
quarterly distributions of available cash will be made in the following manner:

• First, 98% to the common unitholders and 2% to our general partner, until each common unitholder has received a 

minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50, plus any arrearages from prior quarters.

• Second, 98% to the subordinated unitholders and 2% to our general partner, until each subordinated unitholder has 

received a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50, plus any arrearages from prior quarters.

• Third, 98% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2% to our general partner, until each unitholder has received a 



30

distribution of $0.55 per quarter.

• Thereafter, in the manner described in “Incentive Distribution Rights” below.

Distributions of Available Cash After the Subordination Period

We will make distributions of available cash for any quarter after the subordination period in the following manner:

• First, 98% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2% to our general partner, until we distribute for each outstanding unit an 

amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution for that quarter; and

• Thereafter, in the manner described in “Incentive Distribution Rights” below.

Incentive Distribution Rights

Incentive distribution rights represent the right to receive an increasing percentage of quarterly distributions of 
available cash after the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels, as described below, have been 
achieved. Our general partner holds the incentive distribution rights, but may transfer these rights separately from its general
partner interest, subject to restrictions in the Partnership Agreement.

If for any quarter:

• We have distributed available cash to the common and subordinated unitholders in an amount equal to the minimum 

quarterly distribution; and

• We have distributed available cash on outstanding common units in an amount necessary to eliminate any 

cumulative arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution;

then, we will distribute any additional available cash for that quarter among the unitholders and our general partner in the 
following manner:

• First, 98% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2% to our general partner until each unitholder receives a total of $0.55 

per unit for that quarter (the “first target distribution”);

• Second, 85% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 15% to our general partner, until each unitholder receives a total of 

$0.625 per unit for that quarter (the “second target distribution”);

• Third, 75% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 25% to our general partner, until each unitholder receives a total of $0.75 

per unit for that quarter (the “third target distribution”); and

• Thereafter, 50% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 50% to our general partner.

In each case, the amount of the target distribution set forth above is exclusive of any distributions to common 
unitholders, to eliminate any cumulative arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution. We are currently 
distributing in excess of $0.75 per unit per quarter.

There is no guarantee that we will pay the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units in any quarter, and 
we are prohibited from making any distributions to unitholders if it would cause an event of default under our credit facility.
The subordination period generally will not end earlier than June 30, 2007. A portion of the subordinated units, however, 
may be converted into common units at an earlier date on a one-for-one basis based upon the achievement of certain financial 
goals (defined in the Partnership Agreement). As a result of achieving those goals, 1,200,000 subordinated units converted 
into common units, 600,000 on August 15, 2005, and an additional 600,000 on November 15, 2005.

ITEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

On May 24, 2002, the Partnership completed its initial public offering and, thereafter, became the successor to 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon Midstream Business (“Midstream Business”). The selected financial information for the Partnership 
was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 
2003. The selected financial information for the Partnership for the year ended December 31, 2002, is derived from audited 
consolidated and combined financial statements of the Partnership and the Midstream Business. The selected historical 
financial information of the Midstream Business, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2001, is derived from the 
audited combined financial statements of the Midstream Business. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction 
with the combined and consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto, and Item 7, “Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
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  Partnership  

MarkWest 

Hydrocarbon

Midstream 

Business

  Year Ended December 31,  

  2005  2004  2003  2002  2001  

  (1)  (2)  (3)      

  (in thousands, except per unit amounts)  

            

Statement of Operations:            
Revenues  $ 499,084   $ 301,314   $ 117,430   $ 70,246   $ 93,675  

Operating expenses:            
Purchased product costs  366,878   211,534   70,832   38,906   65,483  
Facility expenses  47,972   29,911   20,463   15,101   13,138  
Selling, general and administrative 

expenses  21,573   16,133   8,598   5,411   5,047  
Depreciation  19,534   15,556   7,548   4,980   4,490  
Amortization of intangible assets  9,656   3,640   —   —   —  
Impairments  —   130   1,148   —   —  
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  159   13   —   —   —  

Total operating expenses  465,772   276,917   108,589   64,398   88,158  

Income from operations  33,312   24,397   8,841   5,848   5,517  
Interest income  367   87   14   5   —  
Interest expense  (22,469 ) (9,236 ) (3,087 ) (1,128 ) (1,307 )
Loss from unconsolidated affiliates  (2,153 ) (65 ) —   —   —  
Amortization of deferred financing 

costs  (6,780 ) (5,236 ) (984 ) (291 ) —  
Miscellaneous income (expense)  78   15   (25 ) 52   —  

Income before income taxes  2,355   9,962   4,759   4,486   4,210  
Provision (benefit) for income taxes  —   —   —   (17,175 ) 1,624  

Net income  $ 2,355   $ 9,962   $ 4,759   $ 21,661   $ 2,586  

Net income per limited partner unit:            
Basic  $ 0.02   $ 1.31   $ 0.95   $ 4.86   $ 0.86  
Diluted  $ 0.02   $ 1.31   $ 0.94   $ 4.83   $ 0.86  

Cash distributions declared per limited 
partner unit  $ 3.28   $ 2.97   $ 2.47   $ 1.23   NA  

            
Balance Sheet Data (at December 31):            
Working capital  $ 11,944   $ 10,547   $ 2,457   $ 1,762   $ 18,240  
Property, plant and equipment, net  492,961   280,635   184,214   79,824   82,008  
Total assets  1,046,093   529,422   212,871   87,709   104,891  
Total long-term debt  601,262   225,000   126,200   21,400   19,179  
Partners’ capital  307,175   241,142   64,944   60,863   65,429  
            
Cash Flow Data:            
Net cash flow provided by (used in):            

Operating activities  $ 42,090   $ 42,275   $ 21,229   $ 33,502   $ (524 )
Investing activities  (469,308 ) (273,176 ) (112,893 ) (2,056 ) (8,997 )
Financing activities  423,060   246,411   97,641   (28,670 ) 9,521  

            
Other Financial Data:            
Sustaining capital expenditures (4)  $ 2,181   $ 1,163   $ 1,041   $ 511   $ 576  
Expansion capital expenditures(4)  68,569   29,304   1,903   1,634   9,075  

Total capital expenditures  $ 70,750   $ 30,467   $ 2,944   $ 2,145   $ 9,651  

(1) We completed our investment in Starfish on March 31, 2005, and acquired Javelina (Gulf Coast) on November 1, 
2005.

(2) We acquired our East Texas System in late July 2004.
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(3) We acquired our Foss Lake gathering system in December 2003.
We acquired our Arapaho processing plant in December 2003.
We acquired our Pinnacle gathering systems in late March 2003.
We acquired our Lubbock pipeline (a/k/a the Power-tex Lateral Pipeline) in September 2003 and our Hobbs lateral 
pipeline in April 2004. The Lubbock and Hobbs pipelines are the only laterals we own that produce revenue on a 
per-unit-of-throughput basis. We receive a flat fee from our other lateral pipelines and, consequently, the throughput 
data from these lateral pipelines is excluded from this statistic.
We acquired our Michigan Crude Pipeline in December 2003.

(4) Sustaining capital includes expenditures to replace partially or fully depreciated assets in order to maintain the 
existing operating capacity of our assets and to extend their useful lives. Expansion capital includes expenditures 
made to expand or increase the efficiency of the existing operating capacity of our assets. Expansion capital 
expenditures include expenditures that facilitate an increase in volumes within our operations, whether through 
construction or acquisition.
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Operating Data

  Partnership  

MarkWest 

Hydrocarbon

Midstream 

Business

  Year Ended December 31, 

  2005  2004  2003  2002  2001 

  (1)  (2)  (3)     

            

Operating Data:           
Southwest:           
East Texas           

Gathering systems throughput 
(Mcf/d)  321,000   259,300   NA   NA   NA

NGL product sales (gallons)  126,476,000   41,478,000   NA   NA   NA
           
Oklahoma           

Foss Lake gathering systems 
throughput (Mcf/d)  75,800   60,900   57,000   NA   NA

Arapaho NGL product sales 
(gallons)  60,903,000   45,273,000   2,910,000   NA   NA

           
Other           

Appleby gathering systems 
throughput (Mcf/d)  33,400   27,100   23,800   NA   NA

Other gathering systems 
throughput (Mcf/d)  16,500   17,000   20,500   NA   NA

Lateral throughput volumes 
(Mcf/d)  81,000   75,500   32,100   NA   NA

           
Appalachia:           

Natural gas processed for a fee 
(Mcf/d)  197,000   203,000   202,000   202,000   192,000

NGLs fractionated for a fee 
(Gal/day)  430,000   475,000   458,000   476,000   423,000

NGL product sales (gallons)  41,700,000   42,105,000   40,305,000   38,813,000   —
           
Michigan:           

Natural gas processed for a fee 
(Mcf/d)  6,600   12,300   15,000   13,800   8,800

NGL product sales (Mcf/d)  5,697,000   9,818,000   11,800,000   11,100,000   8,000,000
Crude oil transported for a fee 

(Bbl/d)  14,200   14,700   15,100   —   —
           
Gulf Coast:           

Natural gas processed for a fee 
(Mcf/d)  115,000   NA   NA   NA   NA

NGLs fractionated for a fee 
(Gal/day)  19,400   NA   NA   NA   NA

(1) – (3)  See footnotes above.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) contains statements that are forward-looking and should be 

read in conjunction with “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and our consolidated financial statements and 

accompanying notes included elsewhere in this report. These statements are based on current expectations and assumptions 
that are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in the 

forward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors.
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Overview

We reported net income of $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, or $0.02 per diluted limited partner 
unit, compared to net income of $10.0 million, or $1.31 per diluted limited partner unit, for the year ended December 31, 
2004.

This decrease in net income compared to 2004 was primarily attributed to:

• Expenses incurred in our testing and repair program on the Appalachian Liquids Pipeline System 

(“ALPS”), as well as additional trucking costs for moving product while the line was out of service, which 
was approximately $5.9 million higher than 2004.

• Decreased liquids fractionation in Appalachia, primarily due to ALPS being out of service and upstream 

interruptible customer curtailments in 2005.

• Increased SG&A expense related to ongoing audit and compliance requirements and non-cash 

compensation expense.

• Reduced throughput volumes on our systems in Michigan.

• Higher interest expense related to increased borrowing to fund acquisitions.

These items were partially offset by the following:

• Improved gathering volumes on our Carthage, Appleby and Western Oklahoma systems compared to the 

prior year.

• Improved processing margins relative to the prior year.

• Higher NGL and gas prices on our equity gallons and volumes.

On January 25, 2006, the board of directors of the general partner of the Partnership declared the Partnership’s 
quarterly cash distribution of $0.82 per unit for the fourth quarter of 2005. The fourth quarter distribution was paid on 
February 14, 2006, to unitholders of record on February 8, 2006.

Impact of Recent Acquisitions on Comparability of Financial Results

In reviewing our historical results of operations, you should be aware of the impact of our recent acquisitions, which 
fundamentally affect the comparability of our results of operations over the periods discussed.

Since our initial public offering, we have completed eight acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of 
$794.4 million, net of working capital. Four of these acquisitions occurred in 2003 and their results are included in the results
of operations from the acquisition date.

• The Pinnacle acquisition closed on March 28, 2003, for consideration of $39.9 million.

• The Lubbock pipeline acquisition (also known as the Power-Tex Lateral pipeline) closed September 2, 2003, 

for consideration of $12.2 million.

• The Western Oklahoma acquisition closed December 1, 2003, for consideration of $38.0 million.

• The Michigan Crude Pipeline acquisition closed December 18, 2003, for consideration of $21.3 million.

Two acquisitions occurred in 2004 and their results are included in the results of operations from the acquisition 
date.

• The Hobbs acquisition closed April 1, 2004, for consideration of $2.3 million. As a result, only nine months of 

activity for Hobbs is reflected in the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004.

• The East Texas acquisition closed on July 30, 2004, for consideration of $240.7 million, so only five months of 

activity for East Texas is reflected in the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Two acquisitions occurred in 2005 and are included in the results of operations from the acquisition date.

• The Starfish acquisition closed on March 31, 2005, for consideration of $41.7 million. As a result, the 

acquisition is not reflected in our results of operations in 2004. Nine months of Starfish activity is reflected in 
results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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• The Javelina acquisition closed on November 1, 2005, for consideration of $357.0 million, plus $41.3 million 

for net working capital. As a result, only two months of activity for Javelina is reflected in the results of 
operations for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Our Relationship with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

We were formed by MarkWest Hydrocarbon to acquire most of its natural gas gathering and processing assets, and 
NGL transportation, fractionation and storage assets. MarkWest Hydrocarbon remains one of our largest customers. For the 
year ended December 31, 2005, it accounted for 13% of our revenues and 20% of our net operating margin. This represents a 
decrease from the year ended December 31, 2004, when MarkWest Hydrocarbon accounted for 20% of our revenues and 
32% of our net operating margin. We expect to continue deriving a significant portion of our revenues from the services we 
provide under our contracts with MarkWest Hydrocarbon for the foreseeable future; however, as our other operations grow, 
the relative contribution from MarkWest Hydrocarbon will continue to decline. At December 31, 2005, MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon and its subsidiaries, in the aggregate, owned a 21% interest in the Partnership, consisting of 1,633,334 
subordinated limited partner units, which represents a 12% interest in the Partnership; 836,162 common partner units, which 
represents 7% interest; and 89% of the general partner, which owns a 2% interest in the Partnership and associated incentive 
distribution rights.

Under a Services Agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon acts in a management capacity rendering day-to-day 
operational, business and asset management, accounting, personnel and related administrative services to the Partnership. In 
return, the Partnership reimburses MarkWest Hydrocarbon for all expenses incurred on behalf of the Partnership.

Results of Operations

Segment Reporting

Our six geographical segments are: East Texas, Oklahoma, Other Southwest, Gulf Coast, Appalachia and Michigan. 
We capture information in this MD&A by geographical segment, except that certain items below the “Operating Income” 
line are not allocated to our business segments because management does not consider them in its evaluation of business unit 
performance. In addition, selling, general and administrative expenses are not allocated to individual business segments since 
management evaluates each business segment based on operating income before selling, general and administrative expenses. 
The segment information appearing in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, Segment Information, is presented on 
a basis consistent with the Partnership’s internal management reporting, in accordance with SFAS No. 131, Disclosure about 

Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.

Year Ended December 31, 2005, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

East Texas

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2005  2004  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues  $ 86,196   $ 21,932   293 %
        

Operating expenses:         
Purchased product costs  39,024   3,669   964 %
Facility expenses  10,463   3,229   224 %
Depreciation  4,836   1,489   225 %
Amortization of intangible assets  8,293   3,446   141 %
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  33   13   154 %

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  62,649   11,846   429 %

        

Operating income before selling, general and administrative 
expenses $ 23,547   $ 10,086   133 %

Revenues. Revenues increased 293% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable period in 2004. 
The Partnership acquired the East Texas System on July 30, 2004. As a result, the Partnership reflected only five months of 
activity during 2004. The remaining increase is attributed to price increases and growth in gathering volumes and associated 
liquid production.
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Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased 964% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the 
comparable period in 2004, primarily due to the fact that we acquired the East Texas System on July 30, 2004. The remaining 
increase is attributed to price increases.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased 224% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004 primarily due to the fact that we acquired the East Texas System on July 30, 2004. In addition, repair expense 
increased as a result of a global overhaul of our compressors. Compensation expense also increased due to the hiring of 
additional staff to operate our new plants.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased 225% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004 primarily due to the fact that we acquired the East Texas system on July 30, 2004. We also experienced an 
increase in property, plant and equipment of 41%, primarily for the construction of a new processing plant and gathering 
systems, which were put into service on January 1, 2006.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets increased 141% during the year ended December 31, 
2005, relative to the comparable period in 2004, primarily due to the fact that we acquired the East Texas System on July 30, 
2004.

Oklahoma

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2005  2004  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues  $ 213,947   $ 133,636   60 %
         
Operating expenses:         

Purchased product costs  193,787   118,325   64 %
Facility expenses  4,927   3,659   35 %
Depreciation  2,385   2,059   16 %
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  63   —   NA   

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  201,162   124,043   62 %

         
Operating income before selling, general and administrative 

expenses  $ 12,785   $ 9,593   33 %

Revenues. Revenues increased 60% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable period in 2004 due 
to increased inlet volumes, and higher natural gas prices.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased 64% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the 
comparable period in 2004, primarily as a result of increased gas prices and throughput volumes.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased 35% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004 primarily due to higher maintenance and rent expense from additional compressors on our Oklahoma system 
and increased utility expenses.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased 16% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004 due to the addition of compressors at our Butler compressor station and additional well connections in the 
field.



37

Other Southwest

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2005  2004  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues  $ 106,661   $ 69,464   54 % 
         
Operating expenses:         

Purchased product costs  92,602   55,519   67 % 
Facility expenses  4,990   3,694   35 % 
Depreciation  3,383   3,099   9 % 
Amortization of intangible assets  68   194   (65 )%
Accretion of asset retirement and lease obligation  22   —   NA   

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  101,065   62,506   62 % 

         
Operating income before selling, general and administrative 

expenses  $ 5,596   $ 6,958   (20 )%

Revenues. Revenues increased 54% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable period in 2004 due 
to an increase in natural gas volumes, primarily on the Appleby and Edwards gathering systems, along with a substantial 
increase in Texas natural gas prices.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased 67% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the 
comparable period in 2004, primarily due to increased volumes and prices on the Appleby and Edwards gathering systems.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased 35% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004, primarily due to increased compressor maintenance and rent expense due to additional compressors on the 
Appleby system.

Depreciation. Depreciation increased 9% for the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable period in 2004 
due to new compressor assets added during 2004 and early 2005.

Gulf Coast

 Year Ended December 31,  Change 

 2005  2004  % 

 (in thousands)   

Revenues  $ 13,832   $ —   NA
      
Operating expenses:      

Purchased product costs  —   —   NA
Facility expenses  2,152   —   NA
Depreciation  1,078   —   NA
Amortization  1,295   —   NA

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  4,525   —   NA

      
Operating income before selling, general and administrative 

expenses  $ 9,307   $ —   NA

The increase in the above categories is the result of our acquisition of Javelina Systems in 2005.



38

Appalachia

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2005  2004  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues:         
Affiliated parties  $ 64,922   $ 59,026   10 % 
Unaffiliated parties  1,758   1,632   8 % 

Total revenues  66,680   60,658   10 % 

         
Operating expenses:         

Purchased product costs  38,435   30,031   28 % 
Facility expenses  19,360   13,444   44 % 
Depreciation  3,187   4,329   (26 )%
Impairment  —   130   NA   
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  41   —   NA   

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  61,023   47,934   27 % 

         
Operating Income (loss) before selling, general and 

administrative expenses  $ 5,657   $ 12,724   (56 )%

Revenues. Revenues increased 10% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable period in 2004 
primarily as a result of price increases. An inlet volume decrease of $0.5 million offset this increase.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased 28% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the 
comparable period in 2004 due to a price increase. The remainder of the increase is attributable to trucking costs of 
approximately $2.0 million incurred to transport product from our Maytown and Boldman plants to our Siloam fractionation 
plant as a result of the November 2004 pipeline failure.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased 44% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004, primarily due to $5.0 million of repairs and refurbishment costs.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense decreased 26% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004 due to accelerated Cobb plant depreciation recorded in 2004.

Michigan

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2005  2004  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues  $ 12,496   $ 15,624   (20 )%
         
Operating expenses:         

Purchased product costs  3,030   3,990   (24 )%
Facility expenses  6,080   5,885   3 % 
Depreciation  4,665   4,580   2 % 

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  13,775   14,455   (5 )%

         
Operating income (loss) before selling, general and 

administrative expenses  $ (1,279 ) $ 1,169   (209 )%

Revenues. Revenues decreased 20% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable period in 2004. 
The reduction is primarily due to lower natural gas transport and processing volumes and, consequently, corresponding 
reductions in natural gas liquids sales volumes resulting from production declines.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs decreased 24% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the 
comparable period in 2004 due to reduced natural gas liquids production purchases stemming from production declines.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased 3% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004, primarily due to increased regulatory and professional consulting expenses.
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Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased 2% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004 due to crude oil pipeline and equipment additions depreciated in 2005.

Consolidated Financial Information

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2005  2004  %  

 (in thousands)    

Total segment operating income  $ 55,613   $ 40,530   37 % 
Derivatives not allocated to segments  728   —   NA   
Selling, general and administrative expense  21,573   16,133   34 % 

         
Income from operations  33,312   24,397   37 % 

         
Loss from unconsolidated affiliates  (2,153 ) (65 ) 3,212 % 
Interest income  367   87   322 % 
Interest expense  (22,469 ) (9,236 ) 143 % 
Amortization of deferred financing costs (a component of 

interest expense)  (6,780 ) (5,236 ) 29 % 
Miscellaneous income  78   15   420 % 

         
Net income  $ 2,355   $ 9,962   (76 )%

Selling, General and Administrative Expense. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 34% during the year 
ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable period in 2004 as a result of an increase in non-cash incentive 
compensation expense of $1.9 million, and audit and Sarbanes-Oxley-related costs of $2.1 million.

Derivative Expense not allocated to Segments. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2005, the Partnership entered into 
commodity derivative transactions as part of an entity-wide, comprehensive risk management plan. Prior to the fourth quarter 
of 2005, derivative activity occurred within segments. The above amount reflects unallocated results of derivative activity.

Loss from Unconsolidated Affiliates. The loss from unconsolidated affiliates during the year ended December 31, 2005, 
increased as a result of losses incurred from Hurricane Rita.

Interest Income. Interest income increased by $0.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the 
comparable period in 2004, primarily due to an increase in interest earned on cash equivalents.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased 143% during the year ended December 31, 2005, relative to the comparable 
period in 2004, primarily due to increased debt levels resulting from the financing of our 2004 and 2005 acquisitions. In 
addition to a larger debt amount, interest rates increased significantly between 2004 and 2005. The Partnership also incurred 
approximately $1.0 million in 2005 from penalty interest expense on the senior debt.

Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Partnership amortized 
approximately $6.8 million of deferred financing costs related to debt issuance costs it incurred to finance its acquisitions.

The increase in the amortization of deferred financing costs in 2005 relative to the comparable period in 2004 is attributable 
to the write-off of deferred financings costs associated with our debt refinancing completed in the fourth quarter of 2005. 
Deferred financing costs are being amortized over the terms of the related obligations.
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Year Ended December 31, 2004, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

East Texas

 Year Ended December 31,  Change 

 2004  2003  % 

 (in thousands)   

Revenues  $ 21,932   $ —   NA
      
Operating expenses:      

Purchased product costs  3,669   —   NA
Facility expenses  3,229   —   NA
Depreciation  1,489   —   NA
Amortization of intangible assets  3,446   —   NA
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  13   —   NA

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  11,846   —   NA

      
Operating income before selling, general and administrative 

expenses  $ 10,086   $ —   NA

The East Texas acquisition was completed on July 30, 2004, so there were no results to report for 2003.

Oklahoma

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2004  2003  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues  $ 133,636   $ 7,855   1,601 % 
         
Operating expenses:         

Purchased product costs  118,325   7,010   1,588 % 
Facility expenses  3,659   298   1,128 % 
Depreciation  2,059   158   1,203 % 
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  —   —   NA   

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  124,043   7,466   1,561 % 

         
Operating income before selling, general and administrative 

expenses  $ 9,593   $ 389   2,366 % 

The Western Oklahoma acquisition was completed on December 1, 2003, so there was only one month of activity to 
report for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Other Southwest

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2004  2003  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues  $ 69,464   $ 46,669   49 % 
         
Operating expenses:         

Purchased product costs  55,519   37,827   47 % 
Facility expenses  3,694   2,914   27 % 
Depreciation  3,099   2,126   46 % 
Amortization of intangible assets  194   —   NA   

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  62,506   42,867   46 % 

         
Operating income before selling, general and administrative 

expenses  $ 6,958   $ 3,802   83 % 
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Revenues. Revenues increased 49% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the comparable period in 2003 due to 
the acquisitions of the Pinnacle gathering system in March 2003, the Lubbock pipeline in April 2004, and the Hobbs lateral 
pipeline in April 2004.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased 47% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the 
comparable period in 2003, primarily due the acquisitions of the Pinnacle gathering system in March 2003, the Lubbock 
pipeline in April 2004, and the Hobbs lateral pipeline in April 2004.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased 27% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the comparable period 
in 2003, primarily due to the acquisitions of the Pinnacle gathering system in March 2003, the Lubbock pipeline in 
April 2004, and the Hobbs lateral pipeline in April 2004.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased 46% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the same period in 
2003 due to the acquisitions of the Pinnacle gathering system in March 2003, the Lubbock pipeline in April 2004, and the 
Hobbs lateral pipeline in April 2004.

Gulf Coast

The Javelina acquisition was completed on November 1, 2005, so there were no results to report for the years ended 
December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Appalachia

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2004  2003  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues:         
Sales to affiliate  $ 59,026   $ 49,850   18 % 
Sales to unaffiliated parties  1,632   1,278   28 % 

Total revenues  60,658   51,128   19 % 

         
Operating expenses:         

Purchased product costs  30,031   22,387   34 % 
Facility expenses  13,444   12,316   9 % 
Depreciation  4,329   2,870   51 % 
Impairment  130   1,148   (89 )%

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  47,934   38,721   24 % 

         
Operating income before selling, general and administrative 

expenses  $ 12,724   $ 12,407   3 % 

Revenues. Revenues increased 19% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the same period in 2003 as a result of 
higher NGL product sales prices and volumes.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased 34% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the 
same period in 2003 due to a higher NGL product sales prices and volumes.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased 9% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the same period in 2003 
primarily due to pipeline inspection and repairs required by the November 2004 pipeline failure.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased 51% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the same period in 
2003 due to accelerated Cobb plant depreciation recorded in 2004.
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Michigan

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2004  2003  %  

 (in thousands)    

Revenues  $ 15,624   $ 11,778   33 % 
         
Operating expenses:         

Purchased product costs  3,990   3,608   11 % 
Facility expenses  5,885   4,935   19 % 
Depreciation  4,580   2,394   91 % 

Total operating expenses before selling, general and 
administrative expenses  14,455   10,937   32 % 

         
Operating income (loss) before selling, general and 

administrative expenses  $ 1,169   $ 841   39 % 

Revenues. Revenues increased 33% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the same period in 2003 due to the 
acquisition of the Michigan crude pipeline that was acquired in December 2003 that was partially offset by reduced NGL 
pipeline throughput volumes, which decreased revenue by $0.5 million.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased 11% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the 
same period in 2003 due to the acquisition of the Michigan crude pipeline that was acquired in December 2003 that was 
partially offset by reduced NGL pipeline throughput volumes.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased 19% for the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the same period in 
2003 due to the acquisition of the Michigan crude pipeline that was acquired in December.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased 91% the year ended December 31, 2004, relative to the same period in 2003 
due to the acquisition of the Michigan crude pipeline that was acquired in December.

Consolidated Financial Information

 Year Ended December 31,  Change  

 2004  2003  %  

 (in thousands)    

Segment operating income  $ 40,530   $ 17,439   132 % 
Selling, general and administrative expense  16,133   8,598   88 % 

         
Income from operations  24,397   8,841   176 % 

         
Interest income  87   14   521 % 
Interest expense  (9,236 ) (3,087 ) 199 % 
Amortization of deferred financing costs (a component of 

interest expense)  (5,236 ) (984 ) 432 % 
Miscellaneous expense  (50 ) (25 ) (100 )%

         
Net income  $ 9,962   $ 4,759   109 % 

Selling, General and Administrative Expense (“SG&A”). SG&A expenses increased during the year ended December 31, 
2004, compared to 2003 because MarkWest Hydrocarbon was contractually limited to $4.9 million in the amount it could 
charge us, from May 24, 2002, the date of our initial public offering, through May 23, 2003. In addition, SG&A expenses 
have increased due to increased administrative costs of $2.1 million associated with acquisitions; increased Sarbanes-Oxley 
compliance-related expenses and audit fees of $1.4 million; an increase in bonus and severance expense of $1.0 million; and 
professional services costs of $0.8 million. The allocation of compensation expense to the Partnership resulting from the sale 
of the subordinated Partnership units and interests in the general partner to certain of MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s employees 
and directors from 2002 through 2004 also increased SG&A by $1.4 million. The charge is a non-cash item that did not affect 
management’s determination of the Partnership’s distributable cash flow for any period, and did not affect net income 
attributed to the limited partners.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense increased in 2004 relative to 2003 primarily due to increased debt levels resulting from the 
financing of our 2003 and 2004 acquisitions. A significant portion of our 2004 acquisitions was financed through additional 
borrowings under our credit facility and the issuance of our senior notes.

Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs. Amortization of deferred financing costs increased in 2004 relative to 2003 due to 
the debt re-financings completed in 2004 and the deferred financing costs associated with the issuance of the senior notes.  
During 2004, we amortized approximately $5.2 million of deferred financing costs related to debt-issuance costs incurred to 
finance our 2004 acquisitions. Of that, $1.5 million represented accelerated amortization due to the refinancing of our credit 
facility in July and again in October 2004. Deferred financing costs are being amortized over the estimated term of the related
obligations, which approximates the effective interest method.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity, to meet operating expenses and fund capital expenditures (other than for certain 
acquisitions), are cash flows generated by our operations, and our access to equity and debt markets. The equity and debt 
markets, public and private, retail and institutional, have been our principal source of capital used to finance a significant 
amount of our growth, including acquisitions. During the first quarter of 2005, we borrowed $40.0 million from our credit 
facility to finance the Starfish acquisition. In the fourth quarter of 2005, the $392.8 million Javelina acquisition and then-
existing borrowings, were financed with an interim bridge credit facility that was subsequently replaced by a new long-term 
credit facility, as described below. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we spent $70.8 million on capital 
expenditures, primarily for the construction of a new processing plant and gathering systems in East Texas to handle our 
future contractual commitments, and construction of the new replacement Cobb processing facility in Appalachia.

During 2005, we borrowed approximately $432.8 million, primarily to finance our acquisitions. We received 
approximately $100.0 million in proceeds from a private placement of common units, which was used to pay down our credit 
facility.

On December 29, 2005, MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of MarkWest 
Energy Partners L.P., entered into the fifth amended and restated credit agreement (“Partnership Credit Facility”), which 
provides for a maximum lending limit of $615.0 million for a five-year term. The credit facility includes a revolving facility 
of $250.0 million and a $365.0 million term loan, which can be repaid at any time without penalty. Under certain 
circumstances, the Partnership Credit Facility can be increased from $250 million up to $450 million. The credit facility is 
guaranteed by the Partnership and all of the Partnership’s subsidiaries and is collateralized by substantially all of the 
Partnership’s assets and those of its subsidiaries. The borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at a variable interest
rate, plus basis points. The variable interest rate is typically based on the London Inter Bank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”); 
however, in certain borrowing circumstances the rate would be based on the higher of a) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5-1%, 
and b) a rate set by the Facility’s administrative agent, based on the U.S. prime rate. The basis points correspond to the ratio
of the Partnership’s Consolidated Senior Debt (as defined in the Partnership Credit Facility) to Consolidated EBITDA (as 
defined in the Partnership Credit Facility), ranging from 0.50% to 1.50% for Base Rate loans, and 1.50% to 2.50% for 
Eurodollar Rate loans. The basis points will increase by 0.50% during any period (not to exceed 270 days) where the 
Partnership makes an acquisition for a purchase price in excess of $50.0 million (“Acquisition Adjustment Period”). 
Borrowings under the Partnership Credit Facility were used to finance, in part, the Javelina acquisition discussed above. On 
December 31, 2005, the available borrowing capacity under the Partnership Credit Facility was $74.8 million.

Under the provisions of the Partnership Credit Facility, the Partnership is subject to a number of restrictions on its 
business, including restrictions on its ability to grant liens on assets; make or own certain investments; enter into any swap 
contracts other than in the ordinary course of business; merge, consolidate or sell assets; incur indebtedness (other than 
subordinated indebtedness); make distributions on equity investments; and declare or make, directly or indirectly, any 
restricted payments.

At December 31, 2005, the Partnership and its subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation, also have $225.0 
million in senior notes outstanding, at a fixed rate of 6.875%. The notes mature on November 2, 2014. The proceeds from 
these notes were used to pay down our outstanding debt under our credit facility in October 2004. Subject to compliance with 
certain covenants, we may issue additional notes from time to time under the indenture pursuant to Rule 144A and 
Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933.

The indenture governing the senior notes limits the activity of the Partnership and its restricted subsidiaries. The 
provisions of such indenture places limits on the ability of the Partnership and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional
indebtedness; declare or pay dividends or distributions or redeem, repurchase or retire equity interests or subordinated 
indebtedness; make investments; incur liens; create any consensual limitation on the ability of the Partnership’s restricted 
subsidiaries to pay dividends, make loans or transfer property to the Partnership; engage in transactions with the Partnership’s
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affiliates; sell assets, including equity interests of the Partnership’s subsidiaries; make any payment on or with respect to, or 
purchase, redeem, defease or otherwise acquire or retire for value any subordinated obligation or guarantor subordination 
obligation (except principal and interest at maturity); and consolidate, merge or transfer assets.

The Partnership agreed to file an exchange offer registration statement, or under certain circumstances, a shelf 
registration statement, pursuant to a registration rights agreement relating to the 2004 senior notes. The Partnership failed to
complete the exchange offer in the time provided for in the subscription agreements (April 26, 2005) and, as a consequence, 
is incurring an interest rate penalty of 0.5%, increasing 0.25% every 90 days thereafter up to 1%, until such time as the 
exchange offer is completed. The Partnership is currently being charged an interest rate penalty of 1%. The registration 
statement was filed on January 17, 2006, and the interest penalty ceased on March 7, 2006.

Cash generated from operations, borrowings under our credit facility and funds from our private and public equity 
offerings are our primary sources of liquidity. The timing of our efforts to raise equity in the future, however, will be 
influenced by our inability to timely file our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, and our 
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ending March 31, 2005. Should we choose to raise capital through a public 
offering with the SEC, we will not have the ability to incorporate by reference information from our future filings into a new 
registration statement until October 11, 2006. If we raise additional capital through public debt or equity offerings, we are 
required to file a Form S-1, which is a long-form type of registration statement. The requirement to file a Form S-1 
registration statement may affect our ability to access the capital markets on a timely basis and may increase the costs of 
doing so. We believe, nonetheless, that funds from raising equity, together with cash generated from operations and 
borrowings under our credit facility, will be sufficient to meet both our short-term and long-term working capital 
requirements and anticipated capital expenditures. Funding of additional acquisitions will likely require the issuance of 
additional common units, the expansion of our credit facility, or both.

Our ability to pay distributions to our unitholders and to fund planned capital expenditures and make acquisitions 
will depend upon our future operating performance. That, in turn, will be affected by prevailing economic conditions in our 
industry, as well as financial, business and other factors, some of which are beyond our control.

One of our largest customers is MarkWest Hydrocarbon. Consequently, matters affecting the business and financial 
condition of MarkWest Hydrocarbon—including its operations, management, customers, vendors, and the like—could affect 
our liquidity.

The Partnership has budgeted $58.7 million for capital expenditures in 2006, exclusive of any acquisitions, 
consisting of $55.6 million for expansion capital and $3.1 million for sustaining capital. Expansion capital includes 
expenditures made to expand or increase the efficiency of the existing operating capacity of our assets, or facilitate an 
increase in volumes within our operations, whether through construction or acquisition. Sustaining capital includes 
expenditures to replace partially or fully depreciated assets in order to extend their useful lives.

Cash Flow

 December 31, 

 2005  2004 

 (in thousands) 

     

Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 42,090   $ 42,275  
Net cash used in investing activities  (469,308 ) (273,176 )
Net cash provided by financing activities  423,060   246,411  

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased less than $0.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2005, 
compared to the year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease was impacted by a decrease in net income, offset by an 
increase in certain non-cash operating expenses, primarily depreciation and amortization for a full year from our East Texas 
acquisition, and two months from our November acquisition of Javelina. We expect that, overall, our 2006 volumes will be 
higher than in 2005, and that cash provided by operating activities in 2006 will exceed 2005 levels. A precipitous decline in 
natural gas, NGL or crude oil prices or volumes, however, could significantly affect the amount of cash flow that would be 
generated from operations.
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Net cash used in investing activities was higher during the year ended December 31, 2005, than during the year 
ended December 31, 2004, primarily due to our $41.7 million investment in a 50% non-operating interest in Starfish and our 
$398.3 million acquisition of Javelina in November 2005. In July 2004, we acquired East Texas for $240.7 million. The 
Partnership used cash of $70.8 million for capital expenditures in 2005, primarily for the construction of a new processing 
plant and gathering systems in East Texas to handle our future contractual commitments and construction of the new 
replacement Cobb processing facility in Appalachia. In 2004, the Partnership used cash of $30.5 million for capital 
expenditures.

Net cash provided by financing activities increased $176.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2005, 
compared to the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase was due primarily to net proceeds from additional long-term 
debt and private placements to fund our acquisitions. Distributions to unitholders increased to $39.0 million in 2005, from 
$24.6 million in 2004.

Total Contractual Cash Obligations

A summary of our total contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2005, is as follows, in thousands:

  Payment Due by Period 

Type of obligation  

Total

Obligation

Due in 

2006

Due in 

2007-2008 

Due in 

2009-2010  Thereafter 

           
Long-term debt  $ 604,000   $ 2,738   $ 7,300   $ 368,962   $ 225,000
Operating leases  7,102   3,646   2,759   496   203
Purchase obligations  1,500   1,500   —   —   —

Total contractual cash obligations  $ 612,602   $ 7,884   $ 10,062   $ 369,458   $ 225,203

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than facility- and equipment-leasing arrangements, the Partnership does not engage in off-balance sheet 
financing activities.

Matters Influencing Future Results

We earn fees for transporting, fractionating and selling the NGLs recovered from the Kenova, Maytown, and 
Boldman plants to Siloam via our Appalachian pipeline. In November 2004, a leak and ensuing explosion and fire occurred 
on a leased section of this pipeline. The Company and several of its affiliates were served in early 2005 with two lawsuits 
presently under the jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky, Pikeville Division. In early 
November 2005, we were served with an additional lawsuit filed in Floyd County Circuit Court, Kentucky, adding five new 
claimants, but essentially alleging the same facts and claims as the earlier two suits. These suits are for third-party claims of
property and personal injury damages sustained as a consequence of the explosion and fire. The Partnership has timely 
notified its general liability insurance carriers of the incident and of the filed Kentucky actions and is coordinating the 
defense of these third-party lawsuits with the insurers. While investigation into the incident continues, at this time the 
Partnership believes that it has adequate general liability insurance coverage for third-party property damage and personal 
injury liability. The Partnership has settled with several of the claimants for property damage claims (damage to residences 
and personal property), in addition to reaching settlement for some of the personal injury claims related to the incident. These
settlements have been paid for or reimbursed under the Partnership’s general liability insurance. As a result, the Partnership 
has not provided for a loss contingency.

Pursuant to OPS regulation mandates and to a Corrective Action Order issued by the OPS on November 18, 2004, 
pipeline and valve integrity evaluation, testing and repairs were conducted on the affected pipeline segment before service 
could be resumed. Based on, among other things, the successful integrity testing of the affected pipeline, OPS authorized a 
partial return to service of the affected pipeline in October 2005. MarkWest is currently preparing its application for return to
full service.

The Partnership has filed an independent action captioned MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., et al. v. Liberty Mutual Ins. 
Co., et al. (District Court, Arapahoe County, Colorado, Case No. 05CV3953 filed August 12, 2005), as removed to the U.S. 
District Court for the District of Colorado, Civil Action No. 1:05-CV-1948, on October 7, 2005), against its All-Risks 
Property and Business Interruption insurance carriers as a result of the insurance companies’ refusal to honor their insurance 
coverage obligation to pay the Partnership for certain expenses. These include the Partnership’s internal expenses and costs 
incurred for damage to, and loss of use of the pipeline, equipment, products, the extra transportation costs incurred for 
transporting the liquids while the pipeline was out of service, the reduced volumes of liquids that could be processed, and the
costs of complying with the OPS Corrective Action Order (hydrostatic testing, repair/replacement and other pipeline integrity 
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assurance measures). These expenses and costs have been expensed as incurred and any potential recovery from the All-
Risks Property and Business Interruption insurance carriers will be treated as “other income” if and when they are received. 
The Partnership has not provided for a receivable for these claims because of the uncertainty as to whether and how much the 
Partnership will ultimately recover under these policies. The Partnership has also asserted that the cost of pipeline testing, 
replacement and repair are subject to an equitable sharing arrangement with the pipeline owner, pursuant to the terms of the 
pipeline lease agreement.

On September 27, 2005, a lawsuit captioned C.F. Qualia Operating, Inc. v. MarkWest Pinnacle, L.P., (District Court 
of Midland, Texas, 385th Judicial District, Case No. CV-45188), was served on a Partnership subsidiary, MarkWest Pinnacle, 
L.P., alleging breach of contract, conversion, fraud and breach of implied duty of good faith with respect to a dispute on 
volumes of gas purchased by the Partnership under a gas purchase agreement. Under the gas purchase agreement, MarkWest 
Energy Partners paid the Plaintiff based on volumes of gas measured at the wellhead (delivery point). Plaintiff claims that it 
is entitled to a prorated portion of any system gain, i.e., that is to be paid for more gas than it actually sold and delivered to 
the Partnership. MarkWest Energy Partners has filed an Answer to the Complaint denying Plaintiff’s allegations and has 
asserted a counter-claim for declaratory judgment on the contract terms as being clear and unambiguous as to payment being 
limited to those measured at the wellhead, that Plaintiff’s claims are without merit, and that MarkWest also may have 
overpaid Plaintiff based on, among other things, the wet versus dry Btu measurements. Discovery has just begun, and at this 
time, the Partnership is not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter. As a result, the Partnership has not provided
for a loss contingency.

The Partnership acquired the Javelina gas processing, transportation and fractionation business located in Corpus 
Christi, Texas (the “Javelina Business”) on November 1, 2005. The Javelina Business was a party with numerous other 
defendants to three lawsuits brought by plaintiffs who had residences or businesses located near the Corpus Christi industrial 
area, an area which included the Javelina gas processing plant, and several petroleum, petrochemical and metal processing 
and refining operations. These suits, styled Victor Huff v. ASARCO Incorporated, et al. (Cause No. 98-01057-F, 214th

Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed in March 3, 1998); Hipolito Gonzales et al. v. ASARCO 

Incorporated, et al., (Cause No. 98-1055-F, 214th Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed in 1998); 
Jesus Villarreal v. Koch Refining Co. et al., (Cause No. 05-01977-F, 214th Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, 
original petition filed April 27, 2005), set forth claims for personal injury or property damage, harm to business operations 
and nuisance type claims, allegedly incurred as a result of operations and emissions from the various industrial operations in 
the area. The Hipolito Gonzales action is subject to a settlement in principle reached in a mediation held December 9, 2005. 
The Partnership’s involvement and engagement in the other cases has been limited to this point, but the actions have been 
and are being vigorously defended and, based on initial evaluation and consultations, it appears at this time that these actions
should not have a material impact on the Partnership.

The Partnership has a 50% non-operating ownership interest in Starfish Pipeline Company L.L.C. (“Starfish”), 
which operates, through its subsidiaries, certain Gulf Coast offshore and onshore facilities. Both Hurricanes Katrina and Rita 
impacted the Starfish operations. Based on our discussions with the operator and other 50% owner of Starfish, Enbridge 
Offshore (Gas Transmission) L.L.C. (“Enbridge”), the Partnership has been informed that initial inspections indicate no 
major damage to Starfish’s offshore platform facilities. However, as a result of Hurricane Rita, repair and rerouting of at least
two sections of offshore pipeline will be required, and are expected to be underway through the beginning of the second 
quarter of 2006. Further sonar and other inspections of the underwater pipe to assess sediment support and cover, and any 
other damage, is ongoing. Additionally, structural damage occurred at the onshore Starfish dehydration and compressor 
facilities. The hurricane caused significant damage to the electrical systems, control equipment and office buildings at the 
onshore facilities, requiring significant repair. Repair, refurbishment and replacement efforts will continue through the first
quarter of 2006. Starfish operations have been substantially curtailed since shortly before the hurricanes hit the Gulf Coast in

September 2005, and until such repairs are completed Starfish is not able to fully return to normal operations and this will 
have a continuing material impact on operating income through the first quarter of 2006. Our evaluation of the Starfish 
venture is subject to a number of factors. We are still in the process of determining the full extent of the damage incurred by
Hurricane Rita, and we must all continue to evaluate our claims for insurance recovery for property damage and business 
interruption. In addition, we are also still in discussions with various operators of interconnecting production and processing
facilities to the extent their activities were also affected by hurricane damage in the region.
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Commodity Price Sensitivity

Our earnings and cash flow are dependent on sales volumes and our ability to achieve positive sales margins on the 
product we sell. The volumes of our sales and our margin on sales can be adversely affected by the prices of commodities, 
which are subject to significant fluctuation depending upon numerous factors beyond our control, including the supply of and 
demand for commodity products. The supply of and demand for our products can be affected by, among other things, 
production levels, industry-wide inventory levels, the availability of imports, the marketing of products by competitors, and 
the marketing of competitive fuels.

Seasonality

For the portion of our business that is affected by commodity prices, sales volumes also are affected by various other 
factors such as fluctuating and seasonal demands for products, changes in transportation and travel patterns and variations in 
weather patterns from year to year.

Effects of Inflation

Inflation in the United States has been relatively low in recent years and did not have a material impact our results of 
operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 or 2003. Although the impact of inflation has been insignificant in 
recent years, it is still a factor in the United States economy and may increase the cost to acquire or replace property, plant
and equipment. It may also increase the costs of labor and supplies. To the extent permitted by competition, regulation and 
our existing agreements, we have and will continue to pass along increased costs to our customers in the form of higher fees.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used in 
accounting for, among other items, valuing identified intangible assets, determining the fair value of derivative instruments, 
evaluating impairments of long lived assets, establishing estimated useful lives for long-lived assets, valuing asset retirement
obligations, and in determining liabilities, if any, for legal contingencies.

The policies and estimates discussed below are considered by management to be critical to an understanding of the 
Partnership’s financial statements, because their application requires the most significant judgments from management in 
estimating matters for financial reporting that are inherently uncertain. See Note 2 of the accompanying Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information on these policies and 
estimates, as well as a discussion of additional accounting policies and estimates.

Intangible Assets

The Partnership’s intangible assets are comprised of customer contracts and relationships acquired in business 
combinations, recorded under the purchase method of accounting at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. 
Using relevant information and assumptions, management determines the fair value of acquired identifiable intangible assets. 
Fair value is generally calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows using a risk-adjusted discount rate. The
key assumptions include contract renewals, economic incentives to retain customers, historical volumes, current and future 
capacity of the gathering system, pricing volatility, and the discount rate. Amortization of intangibles with definite lives is
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the intangible asset. The contracts’ estimated 
economic lives are determined by assessing the life of the related assets, likelihood of renewals, competitive factors, 
regulatory or legal provisions, and maintenance and renewal costs.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Partnership evaluates its long-lived assets, including intangibles, for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances warrant such a review. A long-lived asset group is considered impaired when the estimated undiscounted cash 
flows from such asset group are less than the asset group’s carrying value. In that event, a loss is recognized to the extent that 
the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset group. Fair value is determined primarily using estimated 
discounted cash flows. Management considers the volume of reserves behind the asset and future NGL product and natural 
gas prices to estimate cash flows. The amount of additional reserves developed by future drilling activity depends, in part, on
expected natural gas prices. Projections of reserves, drilling activity and future commodity prices are inherently subjective 
and contingent upon a number of variable factors, many of which are difficult to forecast. Any significant variance in any of 
these assumptions or factors could materially affect future cash flows, which could result in the impairment of an asset.
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For assets identified to be disposed of in the future, the carrying value of these assets is compared to the estimated 
fair value, less the cost to sell, to determine if impairment is required. Until the assets are disposed of, an estimate of the fair 
value is re-determined when related events or circumstances change.

Investment in Starfish

On March 31, 2005, the Partnership acquired its non-controlling, 50% interest in Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC 
(“Starfish”), accounted for under the equity method. Differences between the Partnership’s investment and its proportionate 
share of Starfish’s reported equity are amortized based upon the respective useful lives of the assets to which the differences
relate.

We believe the equity method is an appropriate means for us to recognize increases or decreases measured by 
GAAP in the economic resources underlying the investments. Regular evaluation of these investments is appropriate to 
evaluate any potential need for impairment. We use the following types of triggers to identify a loss in value of an investment
that is other than a temporary decline. Examples of a loss in value may be identified by:

• Our belief in the ability to recover the carrying amount of the investment;

• A current fair value of an investment that is less than its carrying amount; and

• Other operational criteria that cause us to believe the investment may be worth less than otherwise 

accounted for by using the equity method.

Derivative Instruments

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, established accounting and reporting 
standards requiring that derivative instruments (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be 
recorded at fair value and included in the consolidated balance sheet as assets or liabilities. The accounting for changes in the
fair value of a derivative instrument depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation, which is 
established at the inception. To the extent derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are effective, changes in fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income until the underlying hedged item is recognized in earnings. 
Effectiveness is evaluated by the derivative instrument’s ability to offset changes in fair value or cash flows of the underlying
hedged item. Any change in the fair value resulting from ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in earnings. Changes in 
the fair value of derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges, as well as the changes in the fair value of the 
underlying hedged item, are recognized currently in earnings. Any differences between the changes in the fair values of the 
hedged item and the derivative instrument represent gains or losses from ineffectiveness. To the extent the Partnership elects 
hedge accounting treatment for specific derivatives, the Partnership formally documents, designates and assesses the 
effectiveness of transactions receiving hedge accounting treatment. As of December 31, 2005, no transactions had been 
designated for hedge accounting treatment. In general, the Partnership exempts those contracts that qualify as normal 
purchase and sale contracts from the mark-to-market requirements of FAS No. 133 and marks all other derivatives to market. 
Settlements of NGL and natural gas derivative transactions are generally reflected in revenue.

Revenue Recognition

The Partnership generates the majority of its revenues from natural gas gathering and processing, NGL fractionation, 
transportation and storage, and crude oil gathering and transportation. While all of these services constitute midstream energy
operations, the Partnership provides its services pursuant to six different types of arrangements. In many cases, the 
Partnership provides services under contracts that contain a combination of more than one of the arrangements. The 
following is a description of the Partnership’s six arrangements.

• Fee-based arrangements - Under fee-based arrangements, the Partnership receives a fee or fees for one or more of

the following services: gathering, processing, and transmission of natural gas, transportation, fractionation and 
storage of NGLs, and gathering and transportation of crude oil. The revenue the Partnership earns from these 
contracts is directly related to the volume of natural gas, NGLs or crude oil that flows through its systems and 
facilities and is not directly dependent on commodity prices.

• Percent-of-proceeds arrangements - Under percent-of-proceeds arrangements, the Partnership generally gathers and 

processes natural gas on behalf of producers, sells the resulting residue natural gas and NGLs at market prices and 
remits to the producers an agreed upon percentage of the proceeds based on an index price. In other cases, instead of 
remitting cash payments to the producer, MarkWest Energy delivers an agreed upon percentage of the residue gas 
and NGLs to the producer and sells the volumes it keeps to third parties at market prices.
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• Percent-of-index arrangements - Under percent-of-index arrangements, the Partnership generally purchases natural 

gas at either a percentage discount to a specified index price, a specified index price less a fixed amount or a 
percentage discount to a specified index price less an additional fixed amount. MarkWest Energy then gathers and 
delivers the natural gas to pipelines where it resells the natural gas at the index price.

• Keep-whole arrangements. Under keep-whole arrangements, we gather natural gas from the producer, process the 

natural gas to extract NGLs, sell the NGLs to third parties and pay the producer, in the form of processed gas or its 
cash equivalent, for the full thermal equivalent volume of raw natural gas we received from the producer. 
Accordingly, our net operating margin is a function of the difference between the value of the extracted NGLs that 
we sell and the cost of the processed gas that would replace the thermal equivalent value of those NGLs. The 
profitability of these arrangements is subject not only to the commodity price risk of natural gas and NGLs but also 
to the price of natural gas relative to the price of NGLs. Our net operating margins increase under these 
arrangements when the value of NGLs is high relative to the cost of a thermal equivalent amount of natural gas, and 
our net operating margins decrease when the cost of natural gas is high relative to the value of a thermal equivalent 
amount of NGLs.

• Settlement margin - Under settlement margin, the Partnership is allowed to retain a fixed percentage of the natural 

gas volume gathered to cover the compression fuel charges and deemed line losses. To the extent the Partnership’s 
gathering systems are operated more efficiently than specified per contract allowance, we are entitled to retain the 
difference for its own account.

• Condensate sales - During the gathering process, thermodynamic forces contribute to changes in operating 

conditions of the natural gas flowing through the pipeline infrastructure. As a result, hydrocarbon dew points are 
reached, causing condensation of hydrocarbons in the high-pressure pipelines. Under these arrangements, 
condensate collected in the system is retained by us and sold at market prices.

Under all six arrangements, revenue is recognized at the time the product is delivered and title is transferred. It is 
upon delivery and title transfer that the Partnership meets all four revenue recognition criteria, and it is at such time that the 
Partnership recognizes revenue.

The Partnership’s assessment of each of the four revenue recognition criteria as they relate to its revenue producing 
activities is as follows:

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists. The Partnership’s customary practice is to enter into a written 
contract, executed by both the customer and the Partnership.

Delivery. Delivery is deemed to have occurred at the time the product is delivered and title is transferred or, in the 
case of fee-based arrangements, when the services are rendered. To the extent we retain our equity liquids as inventory, 
delivery occurs when the inventory is subsequently sold and title is transferred to the third party purchaser.

The fee is fixed or determinable. The Partnership negotiates the fee for its services at the outset of its fee-based 
arrangements. In these arrangements, the fees are nonrefundable. The fees are generally due within ten days of delivery or 
services rendered. For other arrangements, the amount of revenue is determinable when the sale of the applicable product has 
been completed upon delivery and transfer of title. Proceeds from the sale of products are generally due in 10 days.

Collectibility is probable. Collectibility is evaluated on a customer-by-customer basis. New and existing customers 
are subject to a credit review process, which evaluates the customers’ financial position (e.g. cash position and credit rating)
and their ability to pay. If collectibility is not considered probable at the outset of an arrangement in accordance with the

Partnership’s credit review process, revenue is recognized when the fee is collected.

Certain revenue from sales of customer gas to a third-party processor is recognized net, under EITF 99-19, 
Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent, as the Partnership earns a fixed amount and does not take 
ownership of the gas.

Earnings Per Unit

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit is calculated by 
dividing net income, after deducting amounts specially allocated to the general partner’s interests, including interests in 
incentive distribution rights, by the weighted-average number of limited partner common and subordinated units outstanding 
during the period.
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Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 03-06 (“EITF 03-06”) “Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method 
under FASB Statement No. 128” addresses the computation of earnings per share by entities that have issued securities other 
than common stock that contractually entitle the holder to participate in dividends and earnings of the entity. EITF 03-06 
provides that the general partner’s interest in net income is to be calculated based on the amount that would be allocated to 
the general partner if all the net income for the period were distributed, and not on the basis of actual cash distributions for
the period. The application of EITF 03-06 may have an impact on earnings per limited partner unit in future periods if there 
are material differences between net income and actual cash distributions or if other participating securities are issued.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per limited partner unit. The net income 
available to limited partners and the weighted average limited partner units outstanding have been adjusted for instruments 
considered common unit equivalents in 2005, 2004 and 2003:

 2005  2004  2003  

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per limited partner unit:        
Net income  $ 2,355   $ 9,962   $ 4,759  
Adjustments:        

General partner’s incentive distribution paid  (4,163 ) (1,355 ) (40 )

Participation plan/depreciation special allocations (see Note 12)  2,055   2,296   804  

        
Subtotal  247   10,903   5,523  
General partner’s 2% interest  (5 ) (218 ) (110 )

        
Net income to limited partners  $ 242   $ 10,685   $ 5,413  

        
Denominator:        
Denominator for basic earnings per limited partner unit-weighted 

average number of limited partner units  10,895   8,151   5,722  
Effect of dilutive securities:        
Weighted-average of restricted units outstanding  34   26   51  

Denominator for diluted earnings per limited partner unit-weighted 
average number of limited partner units   10,929    8,177    5,773  

        
Basic net income per limited partner unit  $ 0.02   $ 1.31   $ 0.95  

Diluted net income per limited partner unit  $ 0.02   $ 1.31   $ 0.94  

Incentive Compensation Plans

The Partnership has elected to continue to measure compensation costs for unit-based employee compensation plans 
as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, as permitted under 
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, and SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – 

Transition and Disclosure.

The Partnership issues restricted units under the MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan. A 
restricted unit is a “phantom” unit that entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the phantom unit or,
at the discretion of the Compensation Committee, cash equivalent to the value of a common unit. In accordance with APB 
25, the Partnership applies variable accounting for the plan because a phantom unit is an award to employees entitling them 
to increases in the market value of the Partnership’s units subsequent to the date of grant without issuing units to the 
employees, similar to a stock appreciation right. As a result, the Partnership is required to mark to market the awards at the 
end of each reporting period. Compensation expense is measured for the phantom unit grants using the market price of 
MarkWest Energy Partners’ common units on the date the units are granted. The fair value of the units awarded is amortized 
into earnings over the period of service, adjusted quarterly for the change in the fair value of the unvested units granted. The
phantom units vest over a stated period. Vesting is accelerated for certain employees, if specified performance measures are 
met. The accelerated vesting criteria provisions are based on annualized distribution goals. If the Partnership’s distributions
are at or above the goal for a certain number of consecutive quarters, vesting of the employee’s phantom units is accelerated. 
The vesting of any phantom units, however, may not occur until at least one year following the date of grant. The general 
partner of the Partnership may also elect to accelerate the vesting of outstanding awards, which results in an immediate 
charge to operations for the unamortized portion of the award.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon also has entered into arrangements with certain of its employees and directors referred to as 
the Participation Plan. Under the Participation Plan, MarkWest Hydrocarbon sells subordinated partnership units of the 
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Partnership and interests in the Partnership’s general partner to employees and directors of MarkWest Hydrocarbon under a 
purchase-and-sale agreement. In accordance with the provisions of APB 25, the Participation Plan is accounted for as a 
variable plan. Since the employees and directors are 100% vested (except for two non-executives who have restricted general 
partnership interests) on the date they purchase the subordinated units or general partner interests, compensation expense for 
the subordinated units is measured as the difference in the market value of the subordinated Partnership units and the amount 
paid by those individuals. Compensation related to the general partner interest is calculated as the difference in the formula 
value and the amount paid by those individuals. The formula value is the amount MarkWest Hydrocarbon would have to pay 
the directors and employees to repurchase the general partner interests and is based on the current market value of the 
Partnership’s common units and the current quarterly distribution paid. Increases or decreases in the market value of the 
subordinated units and the formula value of the general partner interests between the date they are acquired and the end of 
each reporting period result in a change in the measure of compensation, which is reflected currently in operations.

Under Topic 1-B of the codification of the Staff Accounting Bulletins, Allocation of Expenses And Related 

Disclosure In Financial Statements of Subsidiaries, Divisions Or Lesser Business Components of Another Entity,
compensation expense related to services provided by MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s employees and directors recognized under 
the Participation Plan should be allocated to the Partnership. The allocation is based on the percent of time that each 
employee devotes to the Partnership. Compensation attributable to interests that were sold to individuals who serve on both 
the Partnership’s board of directors and on the board of directors of MarkWest Hydrocarbon is allocated equally.

These charges are included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Assuming the compensation cost for the 
Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Participation Plan had been determined based on the fair-value methodology of SFAS 
No. 123, the net income and earnings per share would have been the same as reported on the financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment. This statement addresses 
the accounting for share-based payment transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for 
(a) equity instruments of the enterprise, or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments 
or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. SFAS No. 123(R) requires an entity to recognize the grant-
date fair-value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees in the income statement. The 
revised Statement requires that an entity account for those transactions using the fair-value-based method, and eliminates the 
intrinsic value method of accounting in APB 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, which was permitted under 
SFAS No. 123, as originally issued. The revised Statement requires entities to disclose information about the nature of the 
share-based payment transactions and the effects of those transactions on the financial statements. SFAS 123(R) is effective 
for public companies for the first fiscal year beginning after December 31, 2005. All public companies must use either the 
modified prospective or the modified retrospective transition method. We have not yet evaluated the impact of the adoption 
of this pronouncement, which must be adopted in the first quarter of calendar year 2006. On March 29, 2005, the SEC staff 
issued SAB No. 107, Share-Based Payment, to express the views of the staff regarding the interaction between SFAS 
No. 123(R) and certain SEC rules and regulations and to provide the staff’s views regarding the valuation of share-based 
payment arrangements for public companies. The Partnership will take into consideration the additional guidance provided 
by SAB 107 in connection with the implementation of SFAS No. 123(R).

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting for Changes and Error Corrections – a Replacement of 
APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” (SFAS 154). SFAS 154 requires retrospective application of voluntary 
changes in accounting principles, unless impracticable. SFAS 154 supersedes the guidance in APB Opinion No. 20 and SFAS 
No. 3, but does not change any transition provisions of existing pronouncements. Generally, elective accounting changes will 
no longer result in a cumulative effect of a change in accounting in the income statement, because the effects of any elective 
changes will be reflected as prior period adjustments to all periods presented. SFAS 154 will be effective beginning in fiscal 
2006 and will affect any accounting changes that we elect to make thereafter.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments—an 
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140” (“SFAS 155”). This statement amends SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”), and SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing 
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” and resolves issues addressed in SFAS 133 Implementation Issue 
No. D1, “Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interest in Securitized Financial Assets”. This Statement: (a) permits 
fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would 
require bifurcation; (b) clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of 
SFAS 133; (c) establishes a requirement to evaluate beneficial interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that 
are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring 
bifurcation; (d) clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives; and, 
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(e) eliminates restrictions on a qualifying special-purpose entity’s ability to hold passive derivative financial instruments that 
pertain to beneficial interests that are or contain a derivative financial instrument. The standard also requires presentation 
within the financial statements that identifies those hybrid financial instruments for which the fair value election has been 
applied and information on the income statement impact of the changes in fair value of those instruments. The Partnership is 
required to apply SFAS 155 to all financial instruments acquired, issued or subject to a remeasurement event beginning 
January 1, 2007, although early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of an entity’s fiscal year. The provisions of SFAS 
155 are not expected to have an impact recorded at adoption.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk includes the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. We face market risk 
from commodity price changes and, to a lesser extent, interest rate changes.

Commodity Price Risk

Our primary risk management objective is to manage volatility in our cash flows. A committee, which includes 
members of senior management of our general partner, oversees all of our derivative activity.

We may utilize a combination of fixed-price forward contracts, fixed-for-floating price swaps and options on the 
over-the-counter (“OTC”) market. The Partnership may also enter into futures contracts traded on the New York Mercantile 
Exchange (“NYMEX”). Swaps and futures contracts allow us to manage volatility in our margins because corresponding 
losses or gains on the financial instruments are generally offset by gains or losses in our physical positions.

We enter into OTC swaps with financial institutions and other energy company counterparties. We conduct a 
standard credit review on counterparties and have agreements containing collateral requirements where deemed necessary. 
We use standardized swap agreements that allow for offset of positive and negative exposures. We may be subject to margin 
deposit requirements under OTC agreements (with non-bank counterparties) and NYMEX positions.

The use of derivative instruments may expose us to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances, including 
instances when (i) NGLs do not trade at historical levels relative to crude oil, (ii) sales volumes are less than expected 
requiring market purchases to meet commitments, or (iii) our OTC counterparties fail to purchase or deliver the contracted 
quantities of natural gas, NGLs or crude oil or otherwise fail to perform. To the extent that we enter into derivative 
instruments, we may be prevented from realizing the benefits of favorable price changes in the physical market. We are 
similarly insulated, however, against unfavorable changes in such prices.

As part of an ongoing comprehensive risk management plan, designed to manage risk and stabilize future cash 
flows, the Partnership has entered into the following derivative instruments that settle monthly through December 31, 2007:

Costless Collars:  Period  Floor  Cap  

Fair Value at

December 31,

2005

Crude Oil — 500 Bbl/d  2006   $ 57.00   $ 67.00   $ (187 )
Crude Oil — 250 Bbl/d  2006   $ 57.00   $ 67.00   (93 )
Crude Oil — 205 Bbl/d  2006   $ 57.00   $ 65.10   (126 )
           
Propane — 20,000 Gal/d  2006   $ 0.90   $ 0.99   (258 )
Propane — 10,000 Gal/d  2006   $ 0.97   $ 1.15   162  
Propane — 12,750 Gal/d  Jan – June 2006   $ 0.90   $ 1.01   (56 )
           
Ethane — 22,950 Gal/d  2006   $ 0.65   $ 0.80   104  
           
Natural Gas — 1,575 Mmbtu/d  Jan - Mar 2006   $ 9.00   $ 11.40   62  
Natural Gas — 1,575 Mmbtu/d  April - Oct 2006   $ 8.50   $ 10.05   (86 )
Natural Gas — 1,575 Mmbtu/d  Nov - Mar 2007   $ 9.00   $ 12.50   (58 )
Natural Gas — 645 Mmbtu/d  Jan - Mar 2006   $ 8.86   $ 15.21   14  
Natural Gas — 645 Mmbtu/d  April - June 2006   $ 6.71   $ 12.46   19  

Swaps    Fixed Price  

Fair Value at

December 31,

2005

Crude Oil — 250 Bbl/d  2006   $ 62.00   $ (105 )
Crude Oil — 185 Bbl/d  2006   $ 61.00   (143 )
Crude Oil — 250 Bbl/d  2007   $ 65.30   23  



53

Fair value is based on available market information for the particular derivative instrument, and incorporates the 
commodity, period, volume and pricing. Positive (negative) amounts represent unrealized gains (losses).

While we expect these derivative instruments to provide economic stability against the impact of changing 
commodity prices on our physical positions, for accounting purposes, we will not designate these derivatives as cash flow 
hedges and will not apply hedge accounting.

As a result of our decision not to designate these derivatives as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes, we are 
required to mark each contract to market with the resulting unrealized gain or loss recorded in revenue in the income 
statement. For the year ended December 31, 2005, unrealized losses of approximately $728,000 were recorded. The fair value 
of our derivative contracts at December 31, 2005 of $728,000 was recorded as a derivative liability. Changes in forward price 
curves can result in significant changes in the fair value of our derivative contracts as reported, however, we expect the actual
settlements to be largely offset by changes in the settlement of our physical positions.

Interest Rate

Our primary interest rate risk exposure results from our $615.0 million long-term debt agreement, entered into on 
December 29, 2005. The debt related to this agreement bears interest at variable rates that are tied to either the U.S. prime 
rate or LIBOR at the time of borrowing. We may make use of interest rate swap agreements in the future, to adjust the ratio 
of fixed and floating rates in our debt portfolio.

Long-term Debt  Due  Outstanding at December 31, 2005  

Variable Rate ($615.0 million)  December 29, 2010   $379.0 million   
Fixed Rate ($225.0 million)  November, 2014   $225.0 million   

Based on our overall interest rate exposure at December 31, 2005, a hypothetical instantaneous increase or decrease 
of one percentage point in interest rates applied to borrowings under our credit facility would change earnings by 
approximately $3.8 million over a 12-month period.

ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 60

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 62

All omitted shedules have been omitted because they are not required or because the required information is contained in the 
financial statements or notes thereto.

Pursuant to Rule 3.09 of Regulation S-X, separate financial statements of subsidiaries not consolidated and 50 percent or less 
owned persons, the omitted financial statements of Starfish, a non-accelerated filer, that are required to be filed by us are 
expected to be filed by us by amendment to this report not later than 90 days after the end of our fiscal year.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of
MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.
Englewood, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and subsidiaries (the 
“Partnership”) as of December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, 
changes in capital, and cash flows for the year then ended.   These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Partnership’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash 
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
the effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission and our report dated March 16, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment 
of the effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness
of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

Denver, Colorado 

March 16, 2006 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and its subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in capital, and 
cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Partnership’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, and the results of their operations and 
their cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ KPMG LLP  

Denver, Colorado 
June 17, 2005 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive income, of changes in capital and 
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2003 present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash 
flows of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., a Delaware partnership, and its subsidiaries (the Partnership) for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Partnership’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with the standards 
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Denver, Colorado 
March 15, 2004, except for Note 18 (presented herein) and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements included in the 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 (not presented herein), as to which the date is May 24, 
2005 
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(in thousands)

  December 31,  

  2005  2004  

ASSETS      
Current assets:      

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 20,105   $ 24,263  
Receivables, net of allowances of $151 and $211, respectively  110,038   41,890  
Receivables from affiliate  7,940   5,846  
Inventories  3,554   449  
Other assets  6,861   511  

Total current assets  148,498   72,959  

     
Property, plant and equipment  567,094   335,430  
Less: Accumulated depreciation (74,133 ) (54,795 )

Total property, plant and equipment, net  492,961   280,635  

     
Other assets:      

Investment in Starfish  39,167   —  
Investment in and advances to equity investee  182   177  
Intangibles and other assets, net of accumulated amortization of $13,321 and 

$3,666 respectively  346,496   162,001  
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $4,424 and $5,496, 

respectively  18,463   13,650  
Other  326   —  

Total other assets  404,634   175,828  

Total assets  $ 1,046,093   $ 529,422  

     
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL      

Current liabilities:      
Accounts payable  $ 102,175   $ 35,695  
Payables to affiliate  3,421   7,003  
Accrued liabilities  27,492   19,329  
Fair value of derivative instruments  728   385  
Current portion of long-term debt  2,738   —  

Total current liabilities  136,554   62,412  
     

Long-term debt  601,262   225,000  
Other liabilities  1,102   868  

Total liabilities  738,918   288,280  

Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)      
     

Capital:      
General partner  6,788   5,160  
Limited partners:      

Common unitholders (11,070 and 7,642 units issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively)  300,882   227,483  

Subordinated unitholders (1,800 and 3,000 units issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively)  (495 ) 8,813  

Accumulated other comprehensive loss —   (314 )

Total capital  307,175   241,142  

Total liabilities and capital  $ 1,046,093   $ 529,422  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(in thousands, except per unit amounts)

  Year Ended December 31,  

  2005  2004  2003  

        

Revenues:        
Unaffiliated parties  $ 436,013   $ 243,108   $ 68,360  
Affiliates  64,922   59,026   49,850  
Derivatives (1,851 ) (820 ) (780 )

Total revenues  499,084   301,314   117,430  

        
Operating expenses:        

Purchased product costs  366,878   211,534   70,832  
Facility expenses  47,972   29,911   20,463  
Selling, general and administrative expenses  21,573   16,133   8,598  
Depreciation  19,534   15,556   7,548  
Amortization of intangible assets  9,656   3,640   —  
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  159   13   —  
Impairments  —   130   1,148  

Total operating expenses  465,772   276,917   108,589  

        
Income from operations  33,312   24,397   8,841  

        
Other income (expense):        

Interest income  367   87   14  
Interest expense  (22,469 ) (9,236 ) (3,087 )

Amortization of deferred financing costs (a component of 
interest expense)  (6,780 ) (5,236 ) (984 )

Loss from unconsolidated affiliates  (2,153 ) (65 ) —  

Miscellaneous income (expense) 78 15   (25 )

Net income  $ 2,355   $ 9,962   $ 4,759  

        
Interest in net income (loss):        

General partner $ 2,113 $ (723 ) $ (654 )

Limited partners  $ 242   $ 10,685   $ 5,413  

        
Net income per limited partner unit:        

Basic  $ 0.02   $ 1.31   $ 0.95  

Diluted  $ 0.02   $ 1.31   $ 0.94  

        
Weighted average units outstanding:        

Basic  10,895   8,151   5,722  

Diluted  10,929   8,177   5,773  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(in thousands)

  Year Ended December 31,  

  2005  2004  2003  

        

Net income  $ 2,355   $ 9,962   $ 4,759  
        

Other comprehensive income (loss) – unrealized gains (losses) 
on commodity derivative instruments accounted for as hedges  314   184   213  

        
Comprehensive income  $ 2,669   $ 10,146   $ 4,972  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL

(in thousands)
  PARTNERS’ CAPITAL  Accumulated  

  Limited Partners    Other  

  Common Subordinated  General  Comprehensive  

  Units  Amount Units Amount  Partner  Income (Loss) Total 

Balance at December 31, 2002  2,415   $ 43,858  3,000  $ 17,357  $ 359   $ (711 ) $ 60,863  

Issuance of units in private 
placement, net of offering costs  375   9,747  —  —  217   —  9,964  

Contributions by MarkWest Energy 
GP, LLC  —   —  —  —  695   —  695  

Participation Plan compensation 
expense allocated from 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon  —   —  —  —  912   —  912  

Common units issued for vested 
restricted units, including 
contribution by MarkWest 
Energy GP, LLC  24   952  —  —  20   —  972  

Distributions to partners  —   (6,060 ) —  (6,960 ) (414 ) —  (13,434 )

Net income  —   2,495  —  2,918  (654 ) —  4,759  

Other comprehensive income  —   —  —  —  —   213  213  

Balance at December 31, 2003  2,814   $ 50,992  3,000  $ 13,315  $ 1,135   $ (498 ) $ 64,944  

Issuance of units in secondary 
offerings, net of offering costs  3,497   138,859  —  —  2,828   —  141,687  

Issuance of units in private 
placement, net of offering costs  1,304   44,063  —  —  899   —  44,962  

Common units issued for vested 
restricted units, including 
contribution by MarkWest 
Energy GP, LLC  27   1,154  —  —  25   —  1,179  

Contributions by MarkWest Energy 
GP, LLC  —   —  —  —  567   —  567  

Participation Plan compensation 
expense allocated from 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon  —   —  —  —  2,277   —  2,277  

Distributions to partners  —   (14,192 ) —  (8,580 ) (1,848 ) —  (24,620 )

Net income  —   6,607  —  4,078  (723 ) —  9,962  

Other comprehensive income  —   —  —  —  —   184  184  

Balance at December 31, 2004  7,642   $ 227,483  3,000  $ 8,813  $ 5,160   $ (314 ) $ 241,142  

Issuance of units in private 
placements, net of offering costs  2,219   97,518  —  —  1,990   —  99,508  

Common units issued for vested 
restricted units, including 
contribution by MarkWest 
Energy GP, LLC  9   432  —  —  9   —  441  

Contributions by MarkWest Energy 
GP, LLC        404    404  

Common unit registration costs    (45 ) —  —  —   — (45 )

Subordinated units converted to 
common units  1,200   496  (1,200 ) (496 ) —   —  —  

Participation Plan compensation 
expense allocated from 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon  —   —  —  —  2,055   —  2,055  

Distributions to partners  —   (24,866 ) —  (9,190 ) (4,943 ) —  (38,999 )

Net income  —   (136 ) —  378  2,113   —  2,355  

Other comprehensive income  —   —  —  —  —   314  314  

Balance at December 31, 2005  11,070   $ 300,882  1,800  $ (495 ) $ 6,788   $ —  $ 307,175  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

  Year Ended December 31, 

 2005 2004  2003 

Cash flows from operating activities:        
Net income  $ 2,355   $ 9,962   $ 4,759  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities        
Depreciation  19,534   15,556   7,548  
Amortization of intangible assets  9,656   3,640   —  
Amortization of deferred financing costs  6,780   5,236   984  
Accretion of asset retirement obligation  159   13   —  
Impairments  —   130   1,148  
Restricted unit compensation expense  1,076   1,065   1,357  
Participation Plan compensation expense  2,055   2,277   912  
Equity in losses of investee  1,561   73   81  
Distribution from Starfish  2,441   —   —  
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments  657   71   —  
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  (24 ) (29 ) —  

Other  (28 ) 27   21  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:        
Receivables  11,216   (29,948 ) (1,166 )

Receivables from affiliates  (2,094 ) (3,429 ) 430  

Inventories  (1,318 ) (203 ) (956 )

Other assets  (6,676 ) (288 ) 113  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (1,678 ) 32,643   5,197  

Payables to affiliates (3,582 ) 5,479   801

Net cash provided by operating activities  42,090   42,275   21,229  

        
Cash flows from investing activities:        

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired:        
Javelina  (356,917 ) —   —  

East Texas System  —   (240,726 ) —  

Hobbs Lateral  —   (2,275 ) —  

Pinnacle  —   —   (38,526 )

Lubbock Pipeline  —   —   (12,235 )

Western Oklahoma  —   —   (37,951 )

Michigan Crude Pipeline  —   —   (21,283 )

Investment in Starfish  (41,688 ) —   —  

Capital expenditures  (70,750 ) (30,467 ) (2,944 )

Payments on financing lease receivable  —   133   —  
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  47   159   46  

Net cash flows used in investing activities (469,308 ) (273,176 ) (112,893 )

        
Cash flows from financing activities:        

Proceeds from long-term debt  893,000   220,100   391,700  
Repayment of long-term debt  (514,000 ) (346,300 ) (286,900 )

Proceeds from private placement of senior notes  —   225,000   —  
Payments for debt issuance costs  (11,808 ) (15,399 ) (3,995 )

Proceeds from secondary public offerings, net  —   142,076   —  
Proceeds from private placements, net  94,508   44,962   9,964  
Payments for deferred offering costs  (45 ) —   (389 )

Capital contribution from MarkWest Energy GP, LLC  404   592   695  
Distributions to unitholders (38,999 ) (24,620 ) (13,434 )

Net cash flows provided by financing activities  423,060   246,411   97,641  
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Net increase (decrease) in cash  (4,158 ) 15,510   5,977  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  24,263   8,753   2,776  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 20,105   $ 24,263   $ 8,753  

        
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:        
Cash paid during the year for interest, net of amounts capitalized  $ 22,112   $ 6,532   $ 2,068  

        
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing 

activities:        
Construction projects in progress $ (1,545 ) $ 4,037   $ —

        
Property, plant and equipment asset retirement obligation  $ 561   $ 377   $ 450  

        
Deferred offering costs payable  $ 215   $ —   $ 606  

        
Accrued amounts due to Javelina sellers and Starfish  $ 6,888   $ —   $ —  

        
Accrued private placement proceeds  $ 5,000   $ —   $ —  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. was formed on January 25, 2002, as a Delaware limited partnership.  The 
Partnership and its wholly owned subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C. (the Operating Company), were 
formed to acquire, own and operate most of the assets, liabilities and operations of MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.’s Midstream 
Business (the “Midstream Business”).  The Partnership is engaged in the gathering, processing and transmission of natural 
gas, the transportation, fractionation and storage of natural gas liquids, and the gathering and transportation of crude oil. The 
Partnership is a processor of natural gas in the northeastern United States, processing gas from the Appalachian Basin, one of 
the country’s oldest natural gas producing regions, and from Michigan. Through eight acquisitions completed during 2003, 
2004 and 2005, the Partnership has expanded its natural gas-gathering, processing and transmission geographic coverage to 
the southwest United States.  In addition, one of the Partnership’s acquisitions has allowed it to enter into the Michigan crude
oil transportation business.  The Partnership’s principal executive office is located in Englewood, Colorado.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., and 
all of its majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Partnership”), and have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).   Equity investments in which the Partnership 
exercises significant influence, but does not control and is not the primary beneficiary, are accounted for using the equity 
method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.  Estimates affect, among other items, valuing identified intangible assets, determining the 
fair value of derivative instruments, evaluating impairments of long lived assets, establishing estimated useful lives for long-
lived assets, valuing asset retirement obligations, and in determining liabilities, if any, for legal contingencies.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Partnership considers investments in highly liquid financial instruments purchased with an original maturity of 
90 days or less to be cash equivalents.  Such investments include money market accounts.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted average cost or market.  Inventories consisting primarily of crude oil 
and unprocessed natural gas are valued based on the cost of the raw material.  Processed natural gas inventories include 
material, labor and overhead.  Shipping and handling costs are included in operating expenses.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost.  Expenditures that extend the useful lives of assets are 
capitalized.  Repairs, maintenance and renewals that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are expensed as incurred.  
Interest costs for the construction or development of long-term assets are capitalized and amortized over the related asset’s 
estimated useful life.  Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or lease term.  Depreciation
is provided, principally on the straight-line method, over the following estimated useful lives:
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Asset Class 

Range of 

Estimated 

Useful Lives 

Buildings  20 – 25 years 
Gas gathering facilities  20 – 25 years 
Gas processing plants  20 – 25 years 
Fractionation and storage facilities  20 – 25 years 
Natural gas pipelines  20 – 25 years 
Crude oil pipelines  20 – 25 years 
NGL transportation facilities  20 – 25 years 
Equipment and other  3 – 10 years 

The Partnership recognizes the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which the 
liability is incurred, with an offsetting increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset.  Over time, the liability
is accreted to its future value, and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset.  Upon settlement 
of the liability, an entity either settles the obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss.  The Partnership adopted 
FIN 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, on January 1, 2005.  FIN 47 clarified the accounting for 
conditional asset retirement obligations under SFAS 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.  A conditional asset 
retirement obligation is an unconditional legal obligation to perform an activity in which the timing and / or method of 
settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity.  FIN 47 requires an entity
to recognize a liability for a conditional asset retirement obligation if the amount can be reasonably estimated.  Adopting FIN
47 had an immaterial impact on the Partnership.

Investment in Starfish

On March 31, 2005, the Partnership acquired its non-controlling, 50% interest in Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC 
(“Starfish”) for $41.7 million, which is accounted for under the equity method.  Differences between the Partnership’s 
investment and its proportionate share of Starfish’s reported equity are amortized based upon the respective useful lives of 
the assets to which the differences relate.  For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Partnership received a dividend of $2.4 
million, and accrued $1.5 million for a capital call.  The Partnership’s share of Starfish’s loss in 2005 was $1.6 million.

Our accounting policy requires us to evaluate operating losses, if any, and other factors that may have occurred, that 
may be indicative of a decrease in value of the investment which is other than temporary, and which should be recognized 
even though the decrease in value is in excess of what would otherwise be recognized by application of the equity method.  
The evaluation allows us to determine if an equity method investment should be impaired and that an impairment, if any, is 
fairly reflected in our financial statements

The Partnership believes the equity method is an appropriate means for it to recognize increases or decreases 
measured by GAAP in the economic resources underlying the investments.  Regular evaluation of these investments is 
appropriate to evaluate any potential need for impairment.  It uses the following types of triggers to identify a loss in value of 
an investment that is other than a temporary decline.  Examples of a loss in value may be identified by:

• An inability to recover the carrying amount of the investment;

• A current fair value of an investment that is less than its carrying amount; and

• Other operational criteria that cause us to believe the investment may be worth less than otherwise 

accounted for by using the equity method.

Intangible Assets

The Partnership’s intangible assets are comprised of customer contracts and relationships acquired in business 
combinations, recorded under the purchase method of accounting at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.  
Using relevant information and assumptions, management determines the fair value of acquired identifiable intangible assets.  
Fair value is generally calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows using a risk-adjusted discount rate.  The
key assumptions include contract renewals, economic incentives to retain customers, historical volumes, current and future 
capacity of the gathering system, pricing volatility, and the discount rate.  Amortization of intangibles with definite lives is
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the intangible asset.  The estimated economic life is
determined by assessing the life of the assets to which the contracts and relationships relate, likelihood of renewals, 
competitive factors, regulatory or legal provisions, and maintenance and renewal costs.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Partnership evaluates its long-lived assets, including intangibles, for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances warrant such a review.  A long-lived asset group is considered impaired when the estimated undiscounted cash 
flows from such asset group are less than the asset group’s carrying value.  In that event, a loss is recognized to the extent 
that the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset group.  Fair value is determined primarily using 
estimated discounted cash flows.  Management considers the volume of reserves behind the asset and future NGL product 
and natural gas prices to estimate cash flows. The amount of additional reserves developed by future drilling activity  
depends, in part, on expected natural gas prices.  Projections of reserves, drilling activity and future commodity prices are 
inherently subjective and contingent upon a number of variable factors, many of which are difficult to forecast.  Any  
significant variance in any of these assumptions or factors could materially affect future cash flows, which could result in the
impairment of an asset.

For assets identified to be disposed of in the future, the carrying value of these assets is compared to the estimated 
fair value, less the cost to sell, to determine if impairment is required. Until the assets are disposed of, an estimate of the fair 
value is re-determined when related events or circumstances change.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs, included in Other assets, are amortized over the estimated lives of the related obligations 
or, in certain circumstances, accelerated if the obligation is refinanced.

Derivative Instruments

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, established accounting and reporting 
standards requiring that derivative instruments (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be 
recorded at fair value and included in the consolidated balance sheet as assets or liabilities.  The accounting for changes in the 
fair value of a derivative instrument depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation, which is 
established at the inception.  To the extent derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are effective, changes in fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income until the underlying hedged item is recognized in earnings.  
Effectiveness is evaluated by the derivative instrument’s ability to offset changes in fair value or cash flows of the underlying
hedged item.  Any change in the fair value resulting from ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in earnings.  Changes in 
the fair value of derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges, as well as the changes in the fair value of the 
underlying hedged item, are recognized currently in earnings.  Any differences between the changes in the fair values of the 
hedged item and the derivative instrument represent gains or losses from ineffectiveness.  To the extent that the Partnership 
elects hedge accounting treatment for specific derivatives, the Partnership formally documents, designates and assesses the 
effectiveness.  As of December 31, 2005, no transactions had been designated for hedge accounting treatment.  In general, the 
Partnership exempts those contracts that qualify as normal purchase and sale contacts from the mark-to-market requirements 
of SFAS 133.  All other derivative instruments are marked-to-market through revenue.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management believes the carrying amount of financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable, accrued expenses, and other financial instruments approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity of 
these instruments.  Management believes the carrying value of the Partnership’s Credit Facility (Note 10) approximates fair 
value due to its variable interest rates.  The estimated fair value of the Senior Notes (Note 10) was approximately $207.0 
million and $225.0 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, based on quoted market prices.  Derivative 
instruments not designated as hedges (Note 11) are recorded at fair value, based on available market information.

Revenue Recognition

The Partnership generates the majority of its revenues from natural gas gathering and processing, NGL fractionation, 
transportation and storage, and crude oil gathering and transportation. While all of these services constitute midstream energy
operations, the Partnership provides its services pursuant to six different types of arrangements.  In many cases, the 
Partnership provides services under contracts that contain a combination of more than one of the arrangements.  The 
following is a description of the Partnership’s six arrangements.

• Fee-based arrangements - Under fee-based arrangements, the Partnership receives a fee or fees for one or more of 

the following services: gathering, processing, and transmission of natural gas, transportation, fractionation and 
storage of NGLs, and gathering and transportation of crude oil.  The revenue the Partnership earns from these 
contracts is directly related to the volume of natural gas, NGLs or crude oil that flows through its systems and 
facilities and is not directly dependent on commodity prices.
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• Percent-of-proceeds arrangements - Under percent-of-proceeds arrangements, the Partnership generally gathers and 

processes natural gas on behalf of producers, sells the resulting residue natural gas and NGLs at market prices and 
remits to the producers an agreed upon percentage of the proceeds based on an index price.  In other cases, instead 
of remitting cash payments to the producer, MarkWest Energy delivers an agreed upon percentage of the residue gas 
and NGLs to the producer and sells the volumes it keeps to third parties at market prices.

• Percent-of-index arrangements - Under percent-of-index arrangements, the Partnership generally purchases natural 

gas at either a percentage discount to a specified index price, a specified index price less a fixed amount or a 
percentage discount to a specified index price less an additional fixed amount. MarkWest Energy then gathers and 
delivers the natural gas to pipelines where it resells the natural gas at the index price.

• Keep-whole arrangements.  Under keep-whole arrangements, we gather natural gas from the producer, process the 

natural gas to extract NGLs, sell the NGLs to third parties and pay the producer, in the form of processed gas or its 
cash equivalent, for the full thermal equivalent volume of raw natural gas we received from the producer. 
Accordingly, our net operating margin is a function of the difference between the value of the extracted NGLs that 
we sell and the cost of the processed gas that would replace the thermal equivalent value of those NGLs. The 
profitability of these arrangements is subject not only to the commodity price risk of natural gas and NGLs but also 
to the price of natural gas relative to the price of NGLs. Our net operating margins increase under these 
arrangements when the value of NGLs is high relative to the cost of a thermal equivalent amount of natural gas, and 
our net operating margins decrease when the cost of natural gas is high relative to the value of a thermal equivalent 
amount of NGLs.

• Settlement margin - Under settlement margin, the Partnership is allowed to retain a fixed percentage of the natural 

gas volume gathered to cover the compression fuel charges and deemed line losses.  To the extent the Partnership’s 
gathering systems are operated more efficiently than specified per contract allowance, we are entitled to retain the 
difference for its own account.

• Condensate sales - During the gathering process, thermodynamic forces contribute to changes in operating 

conditions of the natural gas flowing through the pipeline infrastructure.  As a result, hydrocarbon dew points are 
reached, causing condensation of hydrocarbons in the high-pressure pipelines.  Under these arrangements, 
condensate collected in the system is retained by us and sold at market prices.

Under all six arrangements, revenue is recognized at the time the product is delivered and title is transferred.  It is 
upon delivery and title transfer that the Partnership meets all four revenue recognition criteria, and it is at such time that the 
Partnership recognizes revenue.

The Partnership’s assessment of each of the four revenue recognition criteria as they relate to its revenue producing 
activities is as follows:

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists. The Partnership’s customary practice is to enter into a written 
contract, executed by both the customer and the Partnership.

Delivery. Delivery is deemed to have occurred at the time the product is delivered and title is transferred, or in the 
case of fee-based arrangements, when the services are rendered.  To the extent we retain our equity liquids as inventory, 
delivery occurs when the inventory is subsequently sold and title is transferred to the third party purchaser.

The fee is fixed or determinable. The Partnership negotiates the fee for its services at the outset of its fee-based 
arrangements. In these arrangements, the fees are nonrefundable. The fees are generally due within ten days of delivery or 
services rendered.  For other arrangements, the amount of revenue is determinable when the sale of the applicable product 
has been completed upon delivery and transfer of tile. Proceeds from the sale of products are generally due in ten days.

Collectibility is probable. Collectibility is evaluated on a customer-by-customer basis. New and existing customers 
are subject to a credit review process, which evaluates the customers’ financial position (e.g. cash position and credit rating)
and their ability to pay. If collectibility is not considered probable at the outset of an arrangement in accordance with the 
Partnership’s credit review process, revenue is recognized when the fee is collected.

Certain revenue from sales of customer gas to a third-party processor is recognized net, under EITF 99-19, 
Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent, as the Partnership earns a fixed amount and does not take 
ownership of the gas.
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Gas volumes received may be different from gas volumes delivered, resulting in gas imbalances.  The Partnership 
records a receivable or payable for such imbalances based upon the contractual terms of the purchase agreements.  The 
Partnership had an imbalance payable of $2.6 million and $0.1 million and an imbalance receivable of $2.7 million and $1.4 
million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Revenues for the transportation of crude are based upon regulated 
tariff rates and the related transportation volumes and are recognized when delivery of crude is made to the purchaser or other
common carrier pipeline.  As described above, changes in the fair value of commodity derivative instruments are recognized 
currently in revenue.

Incentive Compensation Plans

The Partnership has elected to continue to measure compensation costs for unit-based employee compensation plans 
as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, as permitted under 
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, and SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – 
Transition and Disclosure.

The Partnership issues restricted units under the MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan.  A 
restricted unit is a “phantom” unit that entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the phantom unit or,
at the discretion of the Compensation Committee, cash equivalent to the value of a common unit.  In accordance with APB 
25, the Partnership applies variable accounting for the plan because a phantom unit is an award to employees entitling them 
to increases in the market value of the Partnership’s units subsequent to the date of grant without issuing units to the 
employees, similar to a stock appreciation right. As a result, the Partnership is required to mark to market the awards at the 
end of each reporting period.  Compensation expense is measured for the phantom unit grants using the market price of 
MarkWest Energy Partners’ common units on the date the units are granted. The fair value of the units awarded is amortized 
into earnings over the period of service, adjusted quarterly for the change in the fair value of the unvested units granted.  The
phantom units vest over a stated period.  Vesting is accelerated for certain employees, if specified performance measures are 
met.  The accelerated vesting criteria provisions are based on annualized distribution goals.  If the Partnership’s distributions
are at or above the goal for a certain number of consecutive quarters, vesting of the employee’s phantom units is accelerated. 
The vesting of any phantom units, however, may not occur until at least one year following the date of grant.  The general 
partner of the Partnership may also elect to accelerate the vesting of outstanding awards, which results in an immediate 
charge to operations for the unamortized portion of the award.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon also has entered into arrangements with certain of its employees and directors.  These 
arrangements are referred to as the Participation Plan.  Under the Participation Plan, MarkWest Hydrocarbon sells 
subordinated partnership units of the Partnership and interests in the Partnership’s general partner to employees and directors
of MarkWest Hydrocarbon under a purchase-and-sale agreement.  In accordance with the provisions of APB 25, the 
Participation Plan is accounted for as a variable plan.  Since the employees and directors are 100% vested (except for two 
non-executives who have restricted general partnership interests) on the date they purchase the subordinated units or general 
partner interests, compensation expense for the subordinated units is measured as the difference in the market value of the 
subordinated Partnership units and the amount paid by those individuals.  Compensation related to the general partner interest 
is calculated as the difference in the formula value and the amount paid by those individuals.  The formula value is the 
amount MarkWest Hydrocarbon would have to pay the directors and employees to repurchase the general partner interests 
and is based on the current market value of the Partnership’s common units and the current quarterly distribution paid. 
Increases or decreases in the market value of the subordinated units and the formula value of the general partner interests 
between the date they are acquired and the end of each reporting period result in a change in the measure of compensation, 
which is reflected currently in operations.

Under Topic 1-B of the codification of the Staff Accounting Bulletins, Allocation of Expenses And Related 

Disclosure In Financial Statements of Subsidiaries, Divisions Or Lesser Business Components of Another Entity,
compensation expense related to services provided by MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s employees and directors recognized under 
the Participation Plan should be allocated to the Partnership.  The allocation is based on the percent of time that each 
employee devotes to the Partnership.  Compensation attributable to interests that were sold to individuals who serve on both 
the Partnership’s board of directors and on the board of directors of MarkWest Hydrocarbon is allocated equally.

These charges are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.  Assuming the compensation cost for the 
Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Participation Plan had been determined based on the fair-value methodology of SFAS No. 
123, the net income and earnings per share would have been the same as reported on the financial statements for the years 
ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.
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Income Taxes

The Partnership is not a taxable entity for federal income tax purposes.  As such, the Partnership does not directly 
pay federal income tax.  The Partnership’s taxable income or loss, which may vary substantially from the net income or loss 
reported in the consolidated statement of income, is includable in the federal income tax returns of each partner.  The 
aggregate difference in the basis of the Partnership’s net assets for financial and income tax purposes cannot be readily 
determined as the Partnership does not have access to information about each partner’s tax attributes related to the 
Partnership.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income and other comprehensive income (loss), which includes unrealized 
gains and losses on commodity or interest rate derivative financial instruments accounted for as hedges.

Earnings Per Unit

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit is calculated by 
dividing net income, after deducting the amount allocated to the general partner’s interest, by the weighted-average number 
of limited partner common and subordinated units outstanding during the period.

Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 03-06 (“EITF 03-06”) “Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method 
under FASB Statement No. 128” addresses the computation of earnings per share by entities that have issued securities other 
than common stock that contractually entitle the holder to participate in dividends and earnings of the entity. EITF 03-06 
provides that the general partner’s interest in net income is to be calculated based on the amount that would be allocated to 
the general partner if all the net income for the period were distributed, and not on the basis of actual cash distributions for
the period. The application of EITF 03-06 may have an impact on earnings per limited partner unit in future periods if there 
are material differences between net income and actual cash distributions or if other participating securities are issued.

The general partner’s interest in net income consists of its 2.0 percent general partner interest and “incentive 
distributions”, which are increasing percentages, up to 50 percent of quarterly distributions in excess of $0.75 per limited 
partner unit (see Note 14). The general partner was allocated net income of $0.2 million (representing 10.3 percent of total 
net income for the period) for the year ended December 31, 2005, $10.7 million (representing 107.2 percent of total net 
income for the period) for the year ended December 31, 2004, and $5.4 million (representing 113.7 percent of total net 
income for the period) for the year ended December 31, 2003. Diluted net income per limited partner unit is calculated by 
dividing net income applicable to limited partners’ by the sum of the weighted-average number of common and subordinated 
units outstanding and the dilutive effect of incentive unit awards (see Note 12), as calculated by the treasury stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per limited partner unit. The net income 
available to limited partners and the weighted average to those used to compute diluted net income per limited partner unit 
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003:

  2005  2004  2003  

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per limited partner unit:        
Net income  $ 2,355   $ 9,962   $ 4,759  
Less:        

General partner’s incentive distribution paid  (4,163 ) (1,355 ) —  

Subtotal  (1,808 ) 8,607   4,759  
Plus:        

Participation plan allocation (see Note 12)  2,055   2,277   912  

Net income available to limited partners  247   10,884   5,671  
Less:        

General partner’s 2% interest  (5 ) (218 ) (113 )

        
Net income available to limited partners under EITF 03-16  242   10,666   5,558  

  242  10,685   5,413  
Denominator:        
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Denominator for basic earnings per limited partner unit-weighted average 
number of limited partner units  10,895   8,151   5,722  

Effect of dilutive securities:        
Weighted-average of restricted units outstanding  34   26   51  

Denominator for diluted earnings per limited partner unit-weighted average 
number of limited partner units $ 10,929   $ 8,177   $ 5,773  

        
Basic net income per limited partner unit  $ 0.02   $ 1.31   $ 0.97  

Diluted net income per limited partner unit  $ 0.02   $ 1.30   $ 0.96  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment.  This statement 
addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange 
for (a) equity instruments of the enterprise, or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity 
instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments.  SFAS No. 123(R) requires an entity to 
recognize the grant-date fair-value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees in the income 
statement.  The revised Statement requires that an entity account for those transactions using the fair-value-based method, 
and eliminates the intrinsic value method of accounting in APB 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, which was 
permitted under SFAS No. 123, as originally issued.  The revised Statement requires entities to disclose information about 
the nature of the share-based payment transactions and the effects of those transactions on the financial statements.  SFAS 
123(R) is effective for public companies for the first fiscal year beginning after December 31, 2005.  All public companies 
must use either the modified prospective or the modified retrospective transition method.  The Partnership has not yet 
evaluated the impact of the adoption of this pronouncement, which must be adopted in the first quarter of calendar year 2006.  
On March 29, 2005, the SEC staff issued SAB No. 107, Share-Based Payment, to express the views of the staff regarding the 
interaction between SFAS No. 123(R) and certain SEC rules and regulations and to provide the staff’s views regarding the 
valuation of share-based payment arrangements for public companies.  It will take into consideration the additional guidance 
provided by SAB 107 in connection with the implementation of SFAS No. 123(R).

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting for Changes and Error Corrections – a Replacement of 
APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” (SFAS 154).  SFAS 154 requires retrospective application of voluntary 
changes in accounting principles, unless impracticable.  SFAS 154 supersedes the guidance in APB Opinion No. 20 and 
SFAS No. 3, but does not change any transition provisions of existing pronouncements.  Generally, elective accounting 
changes will no longer result in a cumulative effect of a change in accounting in the income statement, because the effects of 
any elective changes will be reflected as prior period adjustments to all periods presented.  SFAS 154 will be effective 
beginning in fiscal 2006 and will affect any accounting changes that the Partnership elects to make thereafter.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments—an 
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140” (“SFAS 155”). This statement amends SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”), and SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing 
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” and resolves issues addressed in SFAS 133 Implementation Issue 
No. D1, “Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interest in Securitized Financial Assets”. This Statement: (a) permits 
fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would 
require bifurcation; (b) clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of 
SFAS 133; (c) establishes a requirement to evaluate beneficial interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that 
are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring 
bifurcation; (d) clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives; and, 
(e) eliminates restrictions on a qualifying special-purpose entity’s ability to hold passive derivative financial instruments that 
pertain to beneficial interests that are or contain a derivative financial instrument. The standard also requires presentation 
within the financial statements that identifies those hybrid financial instruments for which the fair value election has been 
applied and information on the income statement impact of the changes in fair value of those instruments. The Partnership is 
required to apply SFAS 155 to all financial instruments acquired, issued or subject to a remeasurement event beginning 
January 1, 2007, although early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of an entity’s fiscal year. The provisions of SFAS 
155 are not expected to have an impact recorded at adoption.

3. Acquisitions

Javelina Acquisition

On November 1, 2005, for consideration of $357.0 million, plus $41.3 million for net working capital, the 
Partnership acquired equity interests in Javelina Company, Javelina Pipeline Company and Javelina Land Company, L.L.C., 
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which were 40%, 40% and 20%, respectively, owned by subsidiaries of El Paso Corporation, Kerr-McGee Corporation, and 
Valero Energy Corporation.  The Corpus Christi, Texas, gas-processing facility treats and processes off-gas from six local 
refineries, two of which are owned by Valero Energy Corporation, two by Koch Industries, Inc. and two by Citgo Petroleum 
Corporation.  The facility was constructed in 1989 to recover up to 28,000 barrels per day of NGLs.  The facility currently 
processes approximately 125 to 130 MMcf/d of inlet gas, but it is expected to process up to its capacity of 142 MMcf/d as 
refinery output continues to grow. The Partnership and the seller are still negotiating the final value of the acquired working
capital, so the purchase price may change upon settlement.

Starfish Joint Venture

On March 31, 2005, the Partnership completed the acquisition of a 50% non-operating membership interest in 
Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC, (“Starfish”) from an affiliate of Enterprise Products Partners L.P. for $41.7 million.  During 
the first quarter of 2005, the Partnership borrowed $40.0 million from its credit facility to finance the acquisition.  Starfish is 
a joint venture with Enbridge Offshore Pipelines LLC, which the Partnership accounts for using the equity method.  Starfish 
owns the FERC-regulated Stingray natural gas pipeline, and the unregulated Triton natural gas-gathering system and West 
Cameron dehydration facility.  All are located in the Gulf of Mexico and southwestern Louisiana.

East Texas System Acquisition

On July 30, 2004, the Partnership completed the East Texas System acquisition of American Central Eastern Texas’ 
Carthage gathering system and gas-processing assets, located in East Texas, for approximately $240.7 million.  The 
Partnership’s consolidated financial statements include the results of operations of the Carthage gathering system from 
July 30, 2004.  The acquired assets consist of processing plants, gathering systems, a processing facility currently under 
construction and an NGL pipeline.

In conjunction with the closing of the acquisition, the Partnership completed a private offering of 1,304,438 
common units, at $34.50 per unit, representing approximately $45.0 million in proceeds after transaction costs of 
approximately $0.9 million and including a contribution from the general partner of $0.9 million to maintain its ownership 
interest.  In addition, the Partnership amended and restated the credit facility, increasing the maximum lending limit from 
$140.0 million to $315.0 million.  The credit facility included a $265.0 million revolving facility and a $50.0 million term 
loan facility.  The Partnership used the proceeds from the private offering and borrowings of $195.7 million under the credit 
facility to finance the East Texas System acquisition.

Hobbs Lateral Acquisition

On April 1, 2004, the Partnership acquired the Hobbs Lateral pipeline for approximately $2.3 million.  The Hobbs 
Lateral consisted of a four-mile pipeline, with a capacity of 160 million cubic feet of natural gas per day, connecting the 
Northern Natural Gas interstate pipeline to Southwestern Public Service’s Cunningham and Maddox power-generating 
stations in Hobbs, New Mexico.  The Hobbs Lateral is a New Mexico intrastate pipeline regulated by the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission.

Michigan Crude Pipeline

On December 18, 2003, the Partnership completed the acquisition of Shell Pipeline Company, LP’s and Equilon 
Enterprises, LLC’s Michigan Crude Gathering Pipeline, for approximately $21.3 million. The results of operations of the 
system have been included in the Partnership’s consolidated financial statements since December 18, 2003. The $21.3 
million purchase price was financed through borrowings under the Partnership’s line of credit.

The system is a common carrier Michigan pipeline and gathers light crude oil from wells.  The system extends from 
production facilities near Manistee, Michigan, to a storage facility near Lewiston, Michigan.  The trunk line consisted of 
approximately 150 miles of pipe.  Crude oil is gathered into the system from 57 injection points, including 52 central 
production facilities and five truck unloading facilities.  The oil is transported for a fee to the Lewiston station where it is
batch injected into a third-party Lakehead Pipeline, which then transports the crude oil to refineries in Sarnia, Ontario, 
Canada.

Western Oklahoma Acquisition

On December 1, 2003, the Partnership completed the acquisition of American Central Western Oklahoma Gas 
Company, L.L.C. for approximately $38.0 million, financed through borrowings under the credit facility.  Results of 
operations of the acquired assets have been included in the Partnership’s consolidated financial statements since that date.
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The assets acquired include the Foss Lake gathering and processing system located in the western Oklahoma 
counties of Roger Mills and Custer.  The acquired gathering system was comprised of approximately 167 miles of pipeline, 
connected to approximately 270 wells, and 11,000 horsepower of compression facilities.  The assets also included the 
Arapaho gas processing plant.

Lubbock Pipeline Acquisition

Effective September 2, 2003, the Partnership, through its wholly owned subsidiary, MarkWest Pinnacle L.P., 
completed the acquisition of a 68-mile intrastate gas transmission pipeline near Lubbock, Texas, from a subsidiary of 
ConocoPhillips for approximately $12.2 million. The transaction was financed through borrowings under the credit facility. 
The results of operations of the Lubbock Pipeline have been included in the Partnership’s consolidated financial statements 
since that date.

Pinnacle Acquisition

On March 28, 2003, the Partnership completed the acquisition of Pinnacle Natural Gas Company, Pinnacle Pipeline 
Company, PNG Transmission Company, Inc., PNG Utility Company and Bright Star Gathering, Inc. (collectively, 
“Pinnacle”).  The assets acquired were comprised of three lateral natural gas pipelines and twenty gathering systems. 
Pinnacle’s results of operations have been included in the Partnership’s consolidated financial statements since that date.  The
purchase price of $39.9 million was financed through borrowing under the Partnership’s line of credit.

The following table summarizes the costs and allocations of the above acquisitions (in thousands):

  Pinnacle  

Lubbock

Pipeline

Western

Oklahoma

Michigan

Crude

Pipeline

Hobbs

Lateral East Texas  Javelina 

Acquisition Costs:             
Cash 

consideration  $ 39,471   $ 12,200  $ 37,850  $ 21,155  $ 2,300  $ 240,269   $ 396,336  
Direct acquisition 

costs  450   —  101  128  —  457   2,009  

Totals:  $ 39,921   $ 12,200  $ 37,951  $ 21,283  $ 2,300  $ 240,726   $ 398,345  
             

Allocation of 

acquisition costs:             
Current Assets  $ 10,643   —  —  —  —  $ 65   $ 111,679  
Customer 

contracts and 
relationships  —   —  —  —  —  165,379   194,150  

Property, plant 
and equipment  38,223   12,200  37,951  21,283  2,300  76,012   162,859  

Liabilities 
assumed  (8,945 ) —  —  —  —  (730 ) (70,343 )

Totals:  $ 39,921   $ 12,200  $ 37,951  $ 21,283  $ 2,300  $ 240,726   $ 398,345  

Pro Forma Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following table reflects the unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations for the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, as though the Starfish and Gulf Coast acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2004, and 
the East Texas System, Michigan Crude Pipeline, Western Oklahoma, Lubbock and Pinnacle acquisitions had occurred on 
January 1, 2003. The unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for comparative purposes only and may not be 
indicative of future results.
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  Year Ended December 31,  

  2005  2004  2003  

  (in thousands, except per unit amounts)  

        

Revenue  $ 754,948  $ 607,893   $ 209,699  
Net income (loss)  $ (5,492 ) $ 20,464   $ (4,233 )

Net income (loss) - limited partners  $ (7,007 ) $ 20,591   $ (3,380 )
        

Net income (loss) per limited partner unit:       
Basic  (0.64 ) $ 1.94   $ (0.32 )

Diluted  (0.64 ) $ 1.93   $ (0.32 )
        

Weighted average units outstanding:       
Basic  10,895  10,629   10,589  
Diluted  10,929  10,655   10,640  

4. Significant Customers and Concentration of Credit Risk

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Appalachia segment’s sales to MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
accounted for 13%, 20%, and 42% of Partnership revenues, respectively.  As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the 
Partnership had $7.9 million and $5.8 million, respectively, of accounts receivable from MarkWest Hydrocarbon.  
Consequently, matters affecting the business and financial condition of MarkWest Hydrocarbon, including its operations, 
management, customers, and vendors, have the potential to affect the Partnership.  The Partnership’s business is concentrated 
within the Appalachian Basin, southwest United States and Michigan geographic areas.  Changes and events within these 
regions have the potential to affect the Partnership.

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Other Southwest segment had sales to one other 
customer accounting for 14%, 20%, and 20% of Partnership revenues, respectively. The Partnership had $5.5 million and 
$3.6 million, respectively, receivable from this customer as of December 31, 2005 and 2004.

5.  Receivables and Other Current Assets

Receivables consist of the following (in thousands):

 December 31, 

 2005  2004 

Trade, net $ 100,894  $ 34,864
Other 9,144  7,026

Total receivables $ 110,038  $ 41,890

Other current assets consist of the following (in thousands):

 December 31, 

 2005  2004 

Customer margin deposits $ 2,600  $ —
Prepaid fuel 3,614  151
Prepaid other 647  360

Total other assets $ 6,861  $ 511
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6. Properties, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of:

  December 31, 

  2005  2004 

  (in thousands) 

      
Gas gathering facilities  $ 212,042   $ 160,763  
Gas processing plants  213,943   56,239  
Fractionation and storage facilities  22,882   22,112  
Natural gas pipelines  42,246   38,167  
Crude oil pipelines  19,070   18,499  
NGL transportation facilities  4,433   4,381  
Land, building and other equipment  10,987   6,510  
Construction in-progress  41,491   28,759  

  567,094  335,430  
Less: Accumulated depreciation (74,133 ) (54,795 )

 Total property, plant and equipment, net  $ 492,961   $ 280,635  

The Partnership capitalizes interest on major projects during construction.  For the years ended December 31, 2005 
and 2004, the Partnership capitalized interest of $2.1 million and $0.8 million, respectively.  The Partnership did not 
capitalize interest for the year ended December 31, 2003, as there were no major construction projects.

Cobb Processing Plant

During 2003, the Partnership entered into an agreement with MarkWest Hydrocarbon for the construction of a new 
Cobb processing plant.  Initially, the Partnership expected the construction costs of the new plant and the costs to 
decommission and dismantle the old plant to be approximately $2.1 million.  In the third quarter of 2004, this estimate was 
revised to $3.6 million to construct the new plant and $0.5 million to decommission and dismantle the old plant. Construction 
was completed in the second quarter of 2005 at a cost of $3.6 million.  Upon the completion of the new plant, the Partnership 
ceased operating the old Cobb processing plant.

As of December 31, 2003, and in accordance with SFAS No. 144, the Partnership determined that the carrying value 
of the old processing plant of $1.4 million exceeded its estimated fair value of $0.3 million.  Consequently, the Partnership 
has reflected an impairment of $1.1 million in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003.

On December 31, 2004, the general partner and the Partnership amended the Partnership Agreement to provide for 
the contribution of $1.7 million by the general partner.  In exchange for the contribution, the amendment specifies that the 
first $1.7 million of depreciation deductions attributable to the new plant will be allocated to the general partner.  For the 
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, costs of $0.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively, have been funded by 
MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., which amounts have been reflected as an increase in partners’ capital.

7. Intangible Assets

The Partnership’s intangible assets at December 31, 2005 and 2004, are comprised of customer contracts and 
relationships, as follows (in thousands):

  December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004   

Description  Gross  

Accumulated 

Amortization Net Gross 

Accumulated 

Amortization  Net  Useful Life 

East Texas  $ 165,379   $ 11,740  $ 153,639  $ 165,379  $ 3,446   $ 161,933   20 years 
Javelina  194,150   1,293  192,857  —  —   —   25 years 
Other  288   288  —  288  220   68   1 year 

Total:  $ 359,817   $ 13,321  $ 346,496  $ 165,667  $ 3,666   $ 162,001    

Amortization expense related to the intangible assets was $9.7 million, $3.6 million and $0.0 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.
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Estimated future amortization expense related to the intangible assets at December 31, 2005, is as follows (in 
thousands):

Year ending December 31:  

2006 $ 16,035
2007 16,035
2008 16,035
2009 16,035
2010 16,035
Thereafter 266,321

Total $ 346,496

8. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

  December 31,  

  2005  2004  

Product and operations  $ 5,967  $ 7,373  
Customer obligations  3,380  3,773  
Professional services  1,736  517  
Taxes (other than income tax)  2,183  1,078  
Interest  3,233  2,876  
Javelina working capital adjustment  5,402  —  
Starfish contribution  1,486  —  
Construction in progress  2,652  2,602  
Deferred income  223  290  
Other  1,230  820  

     
Total accrued liabilities  $ 27,492  $ 19,329  

9. Asset Retirement Obligation

The Partnership’s assets subject to asset retirement obligations are primarily certain gas-gathering pipelines and 
processing facilities, a crude oil pipeline and other related pipeline assets.  The Partnership also has land leases that require
the Partnership to return the land to its original condition upon the termination of the lease.   In connection with the adoption 
of SFAS 143, the Partnership reviewed current laws and regulations governing obligations for asset retirements and leases, as 
well as the Partnership’s leases and other agreements.

The following is a reconciliation of the changes in the asset retirement obligation from January 1, 2003, to 
December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

Asset retirement obligation as of January 1, 2003  $ —  
Change in estimated asset retirement obligation  450  

Asset retirement obligation as of December 31, 2003  450  
Liability accrued in connection with East Texas acquisition  377  
Accretion expense  13  

Asset retirement obligation as of December 31, 2004  840  
Accrued liabilities  553  
Accretion expense  159  
Liabilities settled (450 )

Asset retirement obligation as of December 31, 2005  $ 1,102  

At January 1 and December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were no assets legally restricted for purposes of settling asset 
retirement obligations.
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10. Debt

Debt as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, is summarized below:

  2005  2004  

  (in thousands)  

Partnership Credit Facility      
Term loan, 8.75% interest at December 31, 2005, due 

December 2010  $ 365,000   $ —  
Revolver facility, 8.75% interest at December 31, 2005, 

due December 2010  14,000   —  
Senior Notes      

Senior Notes, 6.875% interest, due November 2014  225,000   225,000  

  604,000  225,000  
Less: obligations due in one year (2,738 ) —

Total long-term debt  $ 601,262   $ 225,000  

Partnership Credit Facility

On December 29, 2005, MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of MarkWest 
Energy Partners L.P., entered into the fifth amended and restated credit agreement (“Partnership Credit Facility”), which 
provides for a maximum lending limit of $615.0 million for a five-year term.  The credit facility includes a revolving facility
of $250.0 million and a $365.0 million term loan.  The credit facility is guaranteed by the Partnership and all of the 
Partnership’s subsidiaries and is collateralized by substantially all of the Partnership’s assets and those of its subsidiaries.
The borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at a variable interest rate, plus basis points.  The variable interest rate is 
typically based on the London Inter Bank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”); however, in certain borrowing circumstances the rate 
would be based on the higher of a) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5 to 1.0%, and b) a rate set by the Facility’s administrative 
agent, based on the U.S. prime rate.  The basis points vary based on the ratio of the Partnership’s Consolidated Debt (as 
defined in the Partnership Credit Facility) to Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Partnership Credit Facility), ranging 
from 0.50% to 1.50% for Base Rate loans, and 1.50% to 2.50% for Eurodollar Rate loans.  The basis points will increase by 
0.50% during any period (not to exceed 270 days) where the Partnership makes an acquisition for a purchase price in excess 
of $50.0 million (“Acquisition Adjustment Period”). The 8.75% rate at December 31, 2005, was converted to 6.65%, a 
LIBOR-based rate, on January 5, 2006.

Under the provisions of the Partnership Credit Facility, the Partnership is subject to a number of restrictions on its 
business, including restrictions on its ability to grant liens on assets; make or own certain investments; enter into any swap 
contracts other than in the ordinary course of business; merge, consolidate or sell assets; incur indebtedness (other than 
subordinated indebtedness); make distributions on equity investments; and declare or make, directly or indirectly, any 
restricted payments.

The Partnership Credit Facility also contains covenants requiring the Partnership to maintain:

•      a ratio of not less than 2.00 to 1.00 of Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interest expense for any fiscal 

quarter-end increasing to 3.00 to 1.00 upon the first to occur of September 30, 2006 or the first fiscal quarter-end 
following the Partnership raising at least $175.0 million in aggregate proceeds from equity offerings;

•      a ratio of not more than 6.50 to 1.00 of total consolidated debt to Consolidated EBITDA for any fiscal quarter-

end decreasing to 5.25 to 1.00 upon the first to occur of September 30, 2006 or the first fiscal quarter-end following 
the Partnership raising at least $175.0 million in aggregate proceeds from equity offerings;

•      a ratio of not more than 4.75 to 1.00 of consolidated senior debt to Consolidated EBITDA for any fiscal 

quarter-end decreasing to 3.75 to 1.00 upon the first to occur of September 30, 2006 or the first fiscal quarter-end 
following the Partnership raising at least $175.0 million in aggregate proceeds from equity offerings and

•      Both the total debt and senior debt ratios contain adjustment clauses during any Acquisition Adjustment Period.

These covenants are used to calculate the available borrowing capacity on a quarterly basis.  The Partnership incurs 
a commitment fee on the unused portion of the credit facility at a rate between 30.0 and 50.0 basis points based upon the ratio
of Consolidated Senior Debt (as defined in the Partnership Credit Facility) to Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the 
Partnership Credit Facility).  The term loan portion of the facility is paid in quarterly installments on the last business day of 
March, June, September and December, with the remaining balance payable on December 29, 2010.  The revolver portion of 
the facility matures on December 29, 2010.  The Partnership’s Credit Facility also contains provisions requiring prepayments 
from certain Net Cash Proceeds (as defined in the Partnership Credit Facility) received from certain triggering sales that have
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not been reinvested within one hundred eighty days, Equity Offerings (as defined in the Partnership Credit Facility) and loan 
proceeds in excess of $15.0 million from a Senior Debt Offering.  In addition, commencing with the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2006, and annually thereafter, the Partnership is required to make a mandatory prepayment equal to fifty 
percent of Excess Cash Flow within ninety days of each fiscal year end.  Excess Cash Flow means quarterly, the amount, not 
less than zero, equal to consolidated cash flow from operations for such quarter, minus the sum of (i) capital expenditures for
such quarter, (ii) principal and interest payments on indebtedness actually made during such quarter and (iii) the Partnership’s
distributions made during such quarter.

The Javelina Acquisition (see Note 3) was funded through the fourth amended and restated credit agreement, which 
provided for a maximum lending limit of $500.0 million for a term of one year, comprised of a revolving facility of $100.0 
million and a $400.0 million term loan.  The fourth amended and restated credit agreement had terms similar to the new 
credit facility. In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Partnership completed two private placement offerings to repay a portion of
the funds borrowed (see Note 14).

In October 2004 the Operating Company, coincident with the issuance of the Senior Notes, discussed below, entered 
into the third amended and restated credit agreement (“Old Credit Facility”), which provided for a maximum lending limit of 
$200.0 million for a term of five years.  The Old Credit Facility included a revolving facility of $200.0 million.  The 
borrowings under the Old Credit Facility carried interest at a variable interest rate based on one of two indices that include 
either (i) LIBOR plus an applicable margin, which was fixed at a rate of 2.75% for the first two quarters following the closing
of the credit facility or (ii) Base Rate (as defined for any day, a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the higher of (a) the 
Federal Funds Rate plus ½ of 1% or (b) the rate of interest in effect for such day as publicly announced from time to time by 
the administrative agent of the debt as its “prime rate”) plus an applicable margin, which margin is fixed at a rate of 2.00% 
for the first two quarters following the closing of the credit facility.  After that period, the applicable margin adjusted 
quarterly based on the ratio of funded debt to EBITDA (as defined in the credit agreement).  For the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the weighted average interest rate on the Old Credit Facility was 7.02%, 4.48% and 
4.69%, respectively.

Senior Notes

In October 2004 the Partnership and its subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation, issued $225.0 million in 
senior notes at a fixed rate of 6.875%, payable semi-annually in arrears on May 1 and November 1, commencing on May 1, 
2005.  The notes mature on November 2, 2014.  The Partnership may redeem some or all of the notes at any time on or after 
November 1, 2009, at certain redemption prices together with accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. The 
Partnership may redeem all of the notes at any time prior to November 1, 2009, at a make-whole redemption price.  In 
addition, prior to November 1, 2007, the Partnership may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes 
with the proceeds of certain equity offerings at a stated redemption price.  The Partnership must offer to repurchase the notes
at a specified price if it a) sells certain assets and does not reinvest the proceeds or repay senior indebtedness, or b) the 
Partnership experiences specific kinds of changes in control.  Each of the Partnership’s existing subsidiaries, other than 
MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation, has guaranteed the notes jointly and severally and fully and unconditionally.  The 
notes are senior unsecured obligations equal in right of payment with all of the Partnership’s existing and future senior debt.
These notes are senior in right of payment to all of the Partnership’s future subordinated debt but effectively junior in right of 
payment to its secured debt to the extent of the assets securing the debt, including the Partnership’s obligations in respect of
its Partnership Credit Facility.  The proceeds from these notes were used to pay down the Partnership’s outstanding debt 
under its credit facility.

The indenture governing the senior notes limits the activity of the Partnership and its restricted subsidiaries.  The 
provisions of such indenture places limits on the ability of the Partnership and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional
indebtedness; declare or pay dividends or distributions or redeem, repurchase or retire equity interests or subordinated 
indebtedness; make investments; incur liens; create any consensual limitation on the ability of the Partnership’s restricted 
subsidiaries to pay dividends, make loans or transfer property to the Partnership; engage in transactions with the Partnership’s
affiliates; sell assets, including equity interests of the Partnership’s subsidiaries; make any payment on or with respect to, or 
purchase, redeem, defease or otherwise acquire or retire for value any subordinated obligation or guarantor subordination 
obligation (except principal and interest at maturity); and consolidate, merge or transfer assets.  Subject to compliance with 
certain covenants, the Partnership may issue additional notes from time to time under the indenture pursuant to Rule 144A 
and Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933.

The Partnership agreed to file an exchange offer registration statement or, under certain circumstances, a shelf 
registration statement, pursuant to a registration rights agreement relating to the 2004 senior notes.  The Partnership failed to
complete the exchange offer in the time provided for in the subscription agreements (April 26, 2005) and, as a consequence, 
is incurring an interest rate penalty of 0.5% annually, increasing 0.25% every 90 days thereafter up to 1%, until such time as 
the exchange offer is completed.  As of December 31, 2005, the Partnership was being charged an interest rate penalty of 1%.  
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As discussed further in Note 17, the registration statement was filed on January 17, 2006, and the interest penalty will cease 
on March 7, 2006.

The aggregate minimum principal payments on long-term debt are as follows, as of December 31, exclusive of any 
prepayments related to Excess Cash Flow (in thousands):

2006 $ 2,738
2007 3,650
2008 3,650
2009 3,650
2010 365,312
2011 and thereafter 225,000

 $ 604,000

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

Commodity Instruments

The Partnership’s primary risk management objective is to reduce volatility in its cash flows arising from changes in 
commodity prices related to future sales of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil.  Swaps and futures contracts may allow the 
Partnership to reduce volatility in its margins, because losses or gains on the derivative instruments are generally offset by 
corresponding gains or losses in the Partnership’s physical positions.  A committee, including members of senior 
management of the general partner of the Partnership, oversees all of the Partnership’s hedging activity.

The Partnership may utilize a combination of fixed-price forward contracts, fixed-for-floating price swaps and 
options available in the over-the-counter (“OTC”) market, and futures contracts traded on the New York Mercantile 
Exchange (“NYMEX”).  The Partnership enters into OTC swaps with financial institutions and other energy company 
counterparties.  The Partnership conducts a standard credit review on counterparties and has agreements containing collateral 
requirements, where deemed necessary.  The Partnership uses standardized swap agreements that allow for offset of positive 
and negative exposures.  The Partnership may be subject to margin deposit requirements under some of its agreements.

The use of derivative instruments may expose us to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances, including 
instances when (i) NGLs do not trade at historical levels relative to crude oil, (ii) sales volumes are less than expected, 
requiring market purchases to meet commitments, or (iii) our OTC counterparties fail to purchase or deliver the contracted 
quantities of natural gas, NGLs or crude oil or otherwise fail to perform.  To the extent that the Partnership engages in 
hedging activities, it may be prevented from realizing the benefits of favorable price changes in the physical market; 
however, it is similarly insulated against unfavorable changes in such prices.

As part of an ongoing comprehensive risk management plan designed to manage risk and stabilize future cash flows, 
the Partnership has entered into the following derivative instruments that settle monthly through December 31, 2007.

Costless Collars:  Period  Floor  Cap  

Crude Oil — 500 Bbl/d  2006   $ 57.00   $ 67.00   
Crude Oil — 250 Bbl/d  2006   $ 57.00   $ 67.00   
Crude Oil — 205 Bbl/d  2006   $ 57.00   $ 65.10   
         
Propane — 20,000 Gal/d  2006   $ 0.90   $ 0.99   
Propane — 10,000 Gal/d  2006   $ 0.97   $ 1.15   
Propane — 12,750 Gal/d  Jan – June 2006   $ 0.90   $ 1.01   
         
Ethane — 22,950 Gal/d  2006   $ 0.65   $ 0.80   
         
Natural Gas — 1,575 Mmbtu/d  Jan - Mar 2006   $ 9.00   $ 11.40   
Natural Gas — 1,575 Mmbtu/d  April - Oct 2006   $ 8.50   $ 10.05   
Natural Gas — 1,575 Mmbtu/d  Nov - Mar 2007   $ 9.00   $ 12.50   
Natural Gas — 645 Mmbtu/d  Jan - Mar 2006   $ 8.86   $ 15.21   
Natural Gas — 645 Mmbtu/d April - June 

2006   $ 6.71   $ 12.46   
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Swaps  Fixed Price  

Crude Oil — 250 Bbl/d  2006   $ 62.00   
Crude Oil — 185 Bbl/d  2006   $ 61.00   
Crude Oil — 250 Bbl/d  2007   $ 65.30   

In 2003, the Partnership hedged its natural gas price risk in Other Southwest by entering into fixed-for-floating price 
swaps that settled monthly through December 2005.

The impact of commodity derivative instruments on the Partnership’s results of operations and financial position are 
summarized below (in thousands):

  Year ended December 31, 

  2005  2004  2003 

Realized gains (losses) – revenue  $ (1,194 ) $ (749 ) $ (713 )
Unrealized gains (losses) – revenue  (657 ) (71 ) (67 )
Other comprehensive income – changes in fair 

value  68   (265 ) (500 )
Other comprehensive income – settlement  246   749   713  

  December 31,  

  2005  2004  

Unrealized losses – current liability  $ 728   $ 385   
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)  —   (314 ) 

Interest rate swap

The Partnership discontinued an interest rate hedge in the year ended December 31, 2004, resulting in $0.4 million, 
included in accumulated other comprehensive loss, being reclassified into earnings.

12. Incentive Compensation Plans

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Partnership’s general partner has adopted the MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan for 
employees and directors of the general partner and employees of its affiliates who perform services. The long-term incentive 
plan consists of two components: restricted units and unit options. The long-term incentive plan currently permits the grant of
awards covering an aggregate of 500,000 common units, comprised of 200,000 restricted units and 300,000 unit options. The 
Compensation Committee of the general partner’s board of directors administers the plan.

The general partner’s board of directors, at its discretion, may terminate or amend the long-term incentive plan at 
any time with respect to any units for which a grant has not yet been made. The general partner’s board of directors also has 
the right to alter or amend the long-term incentive plan, including increasing the number of units that may be granted, subject
to unitholder approval, as required by the exchange upon which the common units are listed at that time. No change in any 
outstanding grant, however, may be made that would materially impair the rights of the participant without the consent of the 
participant.

Restricted Units.  A restricted unit is a “phantom” unit that entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the 
vesting of the phantom unit; or, at the discretion of the Compensation Committee, cash equal to the value of a common unit. 
These restricted units are entitled, during the vesting period, to receive distribution equivalents, which represent cash equal to 
the amount of distributions made on common units.  Prior to September 2004, the vesting period was four years, with 25% of 
the grant vesting at the end of each of the second and third years and 50% vesting at the end of the fourth year. As of 
September 1, 2004, the vesting period for subsequent grants was changed to three years, with 33% of the grant vesting at the 
end of each of the first, second and third years.  In the future, the Compensation Committee may make additional grants 
under the plan to employees and directors, containing such terms as the Compensation Committee shall determine. The 
Compensation Committee also determines the vesting period.  The restricted units will vest upon a change of control of the 
Partnership, the general partner of the Partnership or MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

If a grantee’s employment or membership on the board of directors terminates for any reason, the grantee’s unvested 
restricted units are automatically forfeited unless, and to the extent, that the Compensation Committee provides otherwise. 
Common units used for settlement may be acquired by the general partner in the open market, already owned by the general 
partner, acquired by the general partner directly from the Partnership or any other person, or any combination of the 
foregoing. The general partner will be entitled to reimbursement from the Partnership for the cost incurred in acquiring 
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common units.  If the Partnership issues new common units upon vesting of the restricted units, the total number of common 
units outstanding will increase.

The following is a summary of the Long-Term Incentive Plan restricted units issued under the Partnership’s 
Long-Term Incentive Plan:

 2005  2004  2003 

 (in thousands, except unit data) 

        
Balance, beginning of period  29,500   34,496   50,230  

Granted  20,139   27,900   11,756  
Vested  (9,100 ) (27,453 ) (23,758 )

Forfeited (1,675 ) (5,443 ) (3,732 )

Balance, end of period  38,864   29,500   34,496  

        
Fair value, end of year  $ 1,873   $ 1,434   $ 1,383  

        
Compensation expense for the year  $ 1,076   $ 1,065   $ 1,398  

Of the total number of restricted units that vested in 2005, the Partnership did not redeem any restricted units for 
cash, and issued 8,850 common units and acquired 250 common units in the open market.  The Partnership recorded $1.1 
million in compensation expense in 2005, of which $0.4 million related to the accelerated vesting of restricted units.

In 2004, of the total number of restricted units vested, 155 restricted units, at the Partnership’s option, were 
redeemed for cash and 27,298 common units were issued for vested restricted units.  The Partnership recorded compensation 
expense of $1.1 million in 2004, of which $0.5 million related to the accelerated vesting of restricted units, resulting from 
specified distribution targets being achieved.

In October 2003, the board of directors of the general partner approved the accelerated vesting of 23,758 restricted 
unit grants due to the achievement of cash distribution goals, effective December 1, 2003.  Accordingly, the Partnership 
recorded a charge in the amount of $1.0 million.

Unit Options. The Long-Term Incentive Plan currently permits the granting of options for common units. The 
Compensation Committee may make grants under the plan to employees and directors containing such terms as the 
committee shall determine. Unit options will have an exercise price that, at the discretion of the committee, may be less than,
equal to or more than the fair market value of the units on the date of grant. Unit options granted are exercisable over a period 
determined by the Compensation Committee. In addition, the unit options are exercisable upon a change in control of us, the 
general partner, MarkWest Hydrocarbon or upon the achievement of specified financial objectives.

Upon exercise of a unit option, the general partner will acquire common units in the open market or directly from us 
or any other person, or use common units already owned by the general partner, or any combination of the foregoing. The 
general partner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the difference between the cost incurred by the general partner in 
acquiring these common units and the proceeds received by the general partner from an optionee at the time of exercise. 
Thus, the cost of the unit options will be borne by us. If the Partnership issues new common units upon exercise of the unit 
options, the general partner will pay us the proceeds it received from the optionee upon exercise of the unit option.

As of December 31, 2005, the Partnership had not granted common unit options to employees or directors of the 
general partner, or employees of its affiliates or members of senior management.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon Participation Plan

MarkWest Hydrocarbon also has a Participation Plan for certain of its employees and directors.  Under the 
Participation Plan, MarkWest Hydrocarbon sells subordinated partnership units of the Partnership and interest in the 
Partnership’s general partner to certain employees and directors of MarkWest Hydrocarbon under a purchase-and-sale 
agreement.  The interest in the Partnership’s general partner is sold with certain put-and-call provisions that allow the 
individuals to require MarkWest Hydrocarbon to buy back, or require the individuals to sell back their interest in the general 
partner to MarkWest Hydrocarbon.  Specifically, the employees and directors can exercise their put if (1) MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon or the Partnership’s general partner undergoes a change of control; (2) additional membership interests are 
issued and if the issuance of additional membership interests, on a pro forma basis, decreases the distributions to all the then
existing members; (3) any amendment, alteration or repeal of the provisions of the general partner agreement is undertaken 
which materially and adversely affects the then existing rights, duties, obligations or restrictions of the employees and 
directors; or (4) the employee or director (i) becomes totally disabled while a director, officer or employee of the general 
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partner, of MarkWest Hydrocarbon or of any of their affiliates, or (ii) dies, or (iii) retires as a director, officer or employee of 
the general partner, of MarkWest Hydrocarbon or of any of their affiliates after reaching the age of 60 years.  The employee 
or his estate has 120 days after the put event to exercise the put under (4) and 30 days after notice to exercise under (1) 
through (3).  MarkWest Hydrocarbon can exercise its call option if the employee or director ceases to be a director or 
employee of MarkWest Hydrocarbon or any of its affiliates, or if there is a change of control.  MarkWest Hydrocarbon has 12 
months following the termination date to exercise its call option.  As the formula used to determine the sale and buy-back 
price is not based on fair value, coupled with the attributes of the put-and-call provisions, these transactions are considered
compensatory arrangements, similar to a stock appreciation right.  The subordinated partnership units of the Partnership are 
also sold to the employees and directors at a formula that is not based on fair value.  The subordinated units are sold without
any restrictions on transfer.  The Partnership has established an implied repurchase obligation, however, through its pattern of
buying back the subordinated units each time an employee or director has left MarkWest Hydrocarbon.   The subordinated 
units converted into common units on August 15, 2005.  Since the employees and directors are 100% vested on the date they 
purchase the subordinated units or general partner interests, compensation expense for the subordinated units is measured as 
the difference in the market value of the subordinated partnership units and the amount paid by those individuals.  
Compensation expense related to the general partner interest is calculated as the difference in the formula value and the 
amount paid by those individuals.  The formula value is the amount MarkWest Hydrocarbon would have to pay the 
employees and directors to repurchase the general partner interests and is based on the current market value of the 
Partnership’s common units and the current quarterly distributions paid.  The increases or decreases in the market value of 
the subordinated units and the formula value of the general partner interests between the date they are acquired and the end of
each reporting period result in a change in the measure of compensation, which is reflected currently in operations.  Total 
subordinated units sold to the employees and directors in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were 0, 1,500 and 12,500, respectively.  
MarkWest Hydrocarbon reacquired 0, 2,867 and 867 subordinated units in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Partnership recorded compensation expense under the Participation Plan of $2.1 million, $2.3 million and $0.9 
million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.  The charge is a non-cash item that did not 
affect management’s determination of the Partnership’s distributable cash flow for any period, and did not affect net income 
attributed to the limited partners.  Under the Partnership Agreement, the general partner is deemed to have made a capital 
contribution equal to the compensation expense recorded under this plan, with the compensation expense allocated 100% to 
the general partner.

13. Employee Benefit Plan

All employees dedicated to, or otherwise principally supporting the Partnership are employees of MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, and substantially all of these employees are participants in MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s defined contribution 
benefit plan.  Costs related to this plan allocated to the Partnership were $0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.  The plan is discretionary, with annual contributions 
determined by MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s Board of Directors.

14. Partners’ Capital

As of December 31, 2005, partners’ capital consists of 11,069,576 common limited partner units, representing an 
84% partnership interest; 1,800,000 subordinated limited partner units, representing a 14% partnership interest; and a 2% 
general partner interest.  MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its subsidiaries, in the aggregate, own a 21% interest in the Partnership 
consisting of 836,162 common limited partner units, 1,633,334 subordinated limited partner units and a 2% general partner 
interest.

The Partnership Agreement defines the Partnership’s ability to issue new capital, maintain capital accounts, and 
distribute cash, as discussed, below.

The Partnership has the ability to issue an unlimited number of units to fund immediately accretive acquisitions.  An 
immediately accretive acquisition is one that, in the general partner’s good faith determination, would have resulted in an 
increase to the amount of operating surplus generated by the Partnership on a per-unit basis with respect to each of the four 
most recently completed quarters on a pro forma basis. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Partnership consummated a total of 
eight acquisitions, aggregating approximately $794.4 million, certain of which were subsequently funded partially by equity 
offerings.

The Partnership Agreement contains specific provisions for the allocation of net income and losses to each of the 
partners for purposes of maintaining their respective partner capital accounts.  Per the Partnership Agreement, compensation 
expense under the Participation Plan allocated to the Partnership by MarkWest Hydrocarbon is allocated entirely to the 
general partner (See Note 12).
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Distributions of Available Cash

The Partnership distributes all of its Available Cash (as defined) to unitholders of record and the general partner 
within 45 days after the end of each quarter.  Available Cash is generally defined as all cash and cash equivalents of the 
Partnership on hand at the end of each quarter, less reserves established by the general partner for future requirements, plus 
all cash for the quarter from working capital borrowings made after the end of the quarter. The general partner has the 
discretion to establish cash reserves that are necessary or appropriate to (i) provide for the proper conduct of the Partnership’s 
business; (ii) comply with applicable law, any debt instruments or other agreements; or (iii) provide funds for distributions to
unitholders and the general partner for any one or more of the next four quarters.

Subordination Period

During the Subordination Period (as defined), before any distributions of available cash from operating surplus may 
be made on the subordinated units, the common unitholders have the right to receive distributions of available cash in an 
amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50 per quarter per common unit, plus any arrearages in the 
payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units from prior quarters.

The Subordination Period ends on the first day of any quarter beginning after June 30, 2009, when certain financial 
tests are met. Additionally, a portion of the subordinated units may convert earlier into common units on a one-for-one basis 
if additional financial tests or financial goals are met.  The earliest possible date by which some of the subordinated units 
could be converted into common units was June 30, 2005.  As a result of achieving those goals in May 2005, 600,000 
subordinated units were converted into common units on August 15, 2005, and an additional 600,000 subordinated units were 
converted into common units on November 15, 2005.  When the subordination period ends, any remaining subordinated units 
will convert into common units on a one-for-one basis, and the common unit holders will no longer be entitled to arrearages.

Distributions of Available Cash During the Subordination Period

During the subordination period, the quarterly distributions of available cash will be made in the following manner:

• First, 98% to the common unitholders and 2% to the general partner, until each common unitholder has received a 

minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50 plus any arrearages from prior quarters.

• Second, 98% to the subordinated unitholders and 2% to the general partner, until each subordinated unitholder has 

received a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50 plus any arrearages from prior quarters.

• Third, 98% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner, until each unitholder has received a 

distribution of $0.55 per quarter.

• Thereafter, in the manner described in “—Incentive Distribution Rights” below.

Distributions of Available Cash After the Subordination Period

The Partnership will make distributions of available cash for any quarter after the subordination period in the 
following manner:

• First, 98% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner until the Partnership distributes for each 

outstanding unit an amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution.

• Thereafter, in the manner described in “Incentive Distribution Rights” below.

Incentive Distribution Rights

Incentive distribution rights represent the right to receive an increasing percentage of quarterly distributions of 
available cash after the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels, as described below, have been 
achieved. The general partner currently holds the incentive distribution rights, but may transfer these rights separately from 
its general partner interest, subject to restrictions in the Partnership Agreement.

If for any quarter:

• The Partnership has distributed available cash to the common and subordinated unitholders in an amount equal to 

the minimum quarterly distribution; and

• The Partnership has distributed available cash on outstanding common units in an amount necessary to eliminate any 

cumulative arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution;

then, the Partnership will distribute any additional available cash for that quarter among the unitholders and the general 
partner in the manner described in the following paragraph.
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The general partner is entitled to incentive distributions if the quarterly distribution amount exceeds the target levels 
specified below:

    

Marginal Percentage 

Interest in Distributions  

Total Quarterly Distribution 

Target Amount  Unitholders  

General

Partner

         

Minimum Quarterly Distribution  $0.50   98 % 2 % 

First Target Distribution  up to $0.55   98 % 2 % 

Second Target Distribution  above $0.55 up to $0.625   85 % 15 % 

Third Target Distribution  above $0.625 up to $0.75   75 % 25 % 

Thereafter  above $0.75   50 % 50 % 

In each case, the amount of the target distribution set forth above is exclusive of any distributions to common 
unitholders to eliminate payment of any cumulative minimum quarterly distribution.  The Partnership is currently distributing 
at a rate in excess of $0.75 per unit.

The quarterly cash distributions applicable to 2005, 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

Quarter Ended  Record Date  Payment Date  Amount Per Unit

        

December 31, 2005  February 8, 2006   February 14, 2006   $ 0.82  
September 30, 2005  November 8, 2005   November 14, 2005   $ 0.82  
June 30, 2005  August 9, 2005   August 15, 2005   $ 0.80  
March 31, 2005  May 10, 2005   May 16, 2005   $ 0.80  
      

December 31, 2004  February 2, 2005   February 11, 2005   $ 0.78  
September 30, 2004  November 3, 2004   November 12, 2004   $ 0.76  
June 30, 2004  July 30, 2004   August 13, 2004   $ 0.74  
March 31, 2004  April 30, 2004   May 14, 2004   $ 0.69  
        
December 31, 2003  January 31, 2004   February 13, 2004   $ 0.67  
September 30, 2003  November 4, 2003   November 14, 2003   $ 0.64  
June 30, 2003  August 4, 2003   August 14, 2003   $ 0.58  
March 31, 2003  May 5, 2003   May 15, 2003   $ 0.58  

Private Placement – December 28, 2005

The Partnership sold 574,714 common units to certain accredited investors at $43.50 per common unit, for gross 
proceeds of $25.0 million.  $20 million of the proceeds were received in December 2005.  The remaining $5 million was 
accrued at December 31, 2005, and received in January 2006.  Offering costs of $0.1 million reduced the aggregate gross 
proceeds of $25.0 million to $24.9 million of net proceeds.  The net proceeds of $24.9 million, and the $0.5 million 
contributed by the general partner to maintain its 2% interest, resulted in total net proceeds associated with the private 
placement of $25.4 million.

Private Placement – November 11, 2005

The Partnership sold 1,644,065 common units to certain accredited investors at $44.21 per common unit, for gross 
proceeds of $72.7 million.  Offering costs of $0.1 million reduced the aggregate gross proceeds of $72.7 million to $72.6 
million of net proceeds.  The net proceeds of $72.6 million, and the $1.5 million contributed by the general partner to 
maintain its 2% interest, resulted in total net proceeds associated with the private placement of $74.1 million.

Public Offering – September 21, 2004

The Partnership priced its offering of 2,157,395 common units at $43.41 per unit.  The Partnership sold 2,000,000 
units, for gross proceeds of $86.8 million. The remaining 157,395 were sold by certain unitholders, who retained the 
proceeds.  In connection with the over-allotment provisions of the underwriting agreement, the Partnership issued an 
additional 323,609 common units, for gross proceeds of $14.1 million.  Underwriters’ fees of $4.8 million, and professional 
fees and other offering costs of $0.4 million, reduced the gross proceeds of $100.9 million to $95.7 million of net proceeds. 
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The net proceeds of $95.7 million, and the $2.1 million contributed by the general partner to maintain its 2% interest, resulted
in total net proceeds associated with the offering of $97.8 million.

Private Placement – July 30, 2004

The Partnership sold 1,304,438 common units to certain accredited investors at $34.50 per common unit, for gross 
proceeds of $45.0 million.  Offering costs of $0.9 million reduced the aggregate gross proceeds of $45.0 million to $44.1 
million of net proceeds.  The net proceeds of $44.1 million, and the $0.9 million contributed by the general partner to 
maintain its 2% interest, resulted in total net proceeds associated with the private placement of $45.0 million.

Public Offering – January 12, 2004

The Partnership priced its offering of 1,148,000 common units at $39.90 per unit.  The Partnership sold 1,100,444 
units, for gross proceeds of $43.9 million. The remaining 47,556 were sold by certain unitholders, who retained the proceeds.  
In connection with the over-allotment provisions of the underwriting agreement, the Partnership issued an additional 72,500 
common units, for gross proceeds of $2.9 million.  Underwriters’ fees of $2.5 million, and professional fees and other 
offering costs of $1.3 million, reduced the gross proceeds of $46.8 million to $43.0 million of net proceeds.  The net proceeds
of $43.0 million, and the $0.9 million contributed by the general partner to maintain its 2% interest, resulted in total net 
proceeds of $43.9 million.

Private Placement – June 27 and July 10, 2003

The Partnership sold 375,000 common units to certain accredited investors in two installments at a price of $26.23 
per unit. On June 27, 2003, the first installment of 300,031 units raised proceeds of approximately $7.9 million. On July 10, 
2003, the second installment of 74,969 units raised proceeds of approximately $1.9 million. Transaction costs for both 
installments were less than $0.1 million. The Partnership’s general partner made a $0.2 million contribution in order to 
maintain its 2% interest in July 2003, after the second installment was completed.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal

MarkWest Energy Partners, in the ordinary course of business, is subject to a variety of risks and disputes 
normally incident to its business, a defendant in various lawsuits and a party to various other legal proceedings.  We maintain
insurance policies with insurers in amounts and with coverage and deductibles as we believe are reasonable and prudent. 
However, we cannot assure either that the insurance companies will promptly honor their policy obligations or that the 
coverage or levels of insurance will be adequate to protect us from all material expenses related to potential future claims for
property loss or business interruption to the Partnership or for third party claims of personal and property damage, or that the
coverages or levels of insurance it presently has will be available in the future at economical prices.

In early 2005, the Partnership and several of its affiliates were served with two lawsuits, Ricky J. Conn, et al. v. 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. et al.(filed February 7, 2005), and Charles C. Reid, et al. v. MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. et al.,
(filed February 8, 2005), presently removed to and under the jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of
Kentucky, Pikeville Division.  The Partnership was served with an additional lawsuit, Community Trust and Investment Co., 
et al. v. MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. et al., filed November 7, 2005 in Floyd County Circuit Court, Kentucky, that added 
five new claimants but essentially alleged the same facts and claims as the earlier two suits. These actions are for third-party
claims of property and personal injury damages sustained as a consequence of an NGL pipeline leak and an ensuing 
explosion and fire that occurred on November 8, 2004.  The pipeline was owned by an unrelated business entity and leased 
and operated by the Partnership’s subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Appalachia, LLC.  It transports NGLs from the Maytown gas 
processing plant to the Partnership’s Siloam fractionator.  The fire from the leaked vapors resulted in property damage to five
homes and injuries to some of the residents.  The pipeline owner, the U.S. Department of Transportation, Office of Pipeline 
Safety (“OPS”), and the Partnership continue to investigate the incident.

The Partnership notified its general liability insurance carriers of the incident and of the filed Kentucky actions in a 
timely manner and is coordinating the defense of these third-party lawsuits with the insurers.  At this time, the Partnership 
believes that it has adequate general liability insurance coverage for third-party property damage and personal injury liability
resulting from the incident.  To date, the Partnership has settled with several of the claimants for third-party property damage
claims (damage to residences and personal property), in addition to reaching settlement for some of the personal injury 
claims.  These settlements have been paid for or reimbursed under the Partnership’s general liability insurance.   As a result,
the Partnership has not provided for a loss contingency.
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Pursuant to OPS regulation mandates and to a Corrective Action Order issued by the OPS on November 18, 2004, 
pipeline and valve integrity evaluation, testing and repairs were conducted on the affected pipeline segment before service 
could be resumed.  Based on, among other things, the successful integrity testing of the affected pipeline, OPS authorized a 
partial return to service of the affected pipeline in October 2005.  MarkWest is currently preparing its application for return to 
full service.

The Partnership has filed an independent action captioned MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., et al. v. Liberty Mutual Ins. 
Co., et al.  (District Court, Arapahoe County, Colorado, Case No. 05CV3953 filed August 12, 2005), as removed to the U.S. 
District Court for the District of Colorado, Civil Action No. 1:05-CV-1948, on October 7, 2005), against its All-Risks 
Property and Business Interruption insurance carriers as a result of the insurance companies’ refusal to honor their insurance 
coverage obligation to pay the Partnership for certain expenses.  These include the Partnership’s internal expenses and costs 
incurred for damage to, and loss of use of the pipeline, equipment, products, the extra transportation costs incurred for 
transporting the liquids while the pipeline was out of service, the reduced volumes of liquids that could be processed, and the
costs of complying with the OPS Corrective Action Order (hydrostatic testing, repair/replacement and other pipeline integrity 
assurance measures). These expenses and costs have been expensed as incurred and any potential recovery from the All-
Risks Property and Business Interruption insurance carriers will be treated as “other income” if and when they are received.  
The Partnership has not provided for a receivable for these claims because of the uncertainty as to whether and how much the 
Partnership will ultimately recover under these policies. The Partnership has also asserted that the cost of pipeline testing, 
replacement and repair are subject to an equitable sharing arrangement with the pipeline owner, pursuant to the terms of the 
pipeline lease agreement.

On September 27, 2005, a lawsuit captioned C.F. Qualia Operating, Inc. v. MarkWest Pinnacle, L.P., (District Court 
of Midland, Texas, 385th Judicial District, Case No. CV-45188), was served on a Partnership subsidiary, MarkWest Pinnacle, 
L.P., alleging breach of contract, conversion, fraud and breach of implied duty of good faith with respect to a dispute on 
volumes of gas purchased by the Partnership under a gas purchase agreement.  Under the gas purchase agreement, MarkWest 
Energy Partners paid the Plaintiff based on volumes of gas measured at the wellhead (delivery point).  Plaintiff claims that it
is entitled to a prorated portion of any system gain, i.e., that is to be paid for more gas than it actually sold and delivered to 
the Partnership.  MarkWest Energy Partners has filed an Answer to the Complaint denying Plaintiff’s allegations and has 
asserted a counter-claim for declaratory judgment on the contract terms as being clear and unambiguous as to payment being 
limited to those measured at the wellhead, that Plaintiff’s claims are without merit, and that MarkWest also may have 
overpaid Plaintiff based on, among other things, the wet versus dry Btu measurements.  Discovery has just begun, and at this 
time, the Partnership is not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter.  As a result, the Partnership has not provided
for a loss contingency.

The Partnership acquired the Javelina gas processing, transportation and fractionation business located in Corpus 
Christi, Texas (the “Javelina Business”) on November 1, 2005.  The Javelina Business was a party with numerous other 
defendants to three lawsuits brought by plaintiffs who had residences or businesses located near the Corpus Christi industrial 
area, an area which included the Javelina gas processing plant, and several petroleum, petrochemical and metal processing 
and refining operations.  These suits, styled Victor Huff v. ASARCO Incorporated, et al. (Cause No. 98-01057-F, 214th

Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed in March 3, 1998); Hipolito Gonzales et al. v. ASARCO 
Incorporated, et al., (Cause No. 98-1055-F, 214th Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed in 1998); 
Jason and Dianne Gutierrez, individually and as representative of the estate of Sarina Galan Gutierrez (Cause No. 05-2470-A, 
28TH Judicial District, severed May 18, 2005, from Gonzales v. Asarco Incorporated, above); and Jesus Villarreal v. Koch 
Refining Co. et al., (Cause No. 05-01977-F, 214th Judicial Dist. Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed April 27, 
2005), set forth claims for personal injury or property damage, harm to business operations and nuisance type claims, 
allegedly incurred as a result of operations and emissions from the various industrial operations in the area.  The Hipolito 
Gonzales action is subject to a settlement in principle reached in a mediation held December 9, 2005.  The Partnership’s 
involvement and engagement in the other cases has been limited to this point, but the actions have been and are being 
vigorously defended and, based on initial evaluation and consultations, it appears at this time that these actions should not 
have a material impact on the Partnership.

In response to a shipper inquiry to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) regarding the 
Partnership’s Michigan Crude Pipeline, and following unsuccessful FERC-requested rate structure discussions with the 
shippers, FERC recently requested that we file a tariff.   The Partnership filed on November 18, 2005 a tariff with FERC 
establishing a cost of service rate structure to be effective starting January 1, 2006.  Two shippers and a producer filed a joint 
protest to the FERC filing with the Commission, and the Partnership filed a response to this joint protest vigorously 
defending its filing and opposing the protest.  The Commission issued an order on December 29, 2005, rejecting the 
protestor’s request for interim rates and accepting the Partnership’s filing, and the new rates and rate structure became 
effective January 1, 2006.  The Commission established hearing procedures for the tariff filing, but held them in abeyance 
pending the outcome of FERC sponsored settlement discussions, which the parties have been referred to under the FERC 
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procedures.  The Partnership and the shippers subsequently negotiated a settlement that resulted in the Partnership filing a 
new tariff which, for the most part, returns the rates to those in effect prior to the effective date of the November 18, 2005 
tariff filing, and established such rates for a prospective three year period.

In the ordinary course of business, the Partnership is a party to various other legal actions. In the opinion of 
management, none of these actions, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the 
Partnership’s financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

Lease Obligations

The Partnership has various non-cancelable operating lease agreements for equipment expiring at various times 
through fiscal 2015. Annual rent expense under these operating leases was $5.9 million, $3.3 million and $1.1 million for the 
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The minimum future lease payments under these operating 
leases as of December 31, 2005, are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,    

2006  $ 3,646  
2007  1,919  
2008  843  
2009  416  
2010  79  
2011 and thereafter  203  

Total  $ 7,106  

16. Related Party Transactions

Affiliated revenues in the consolidated statements of income consist of service fees and NGL product sales.  
Concurrent with the closing of the IPO, the Partnership entered into several contracts with MarkWest Hydrocarbon.  
Specifically, the Partnership entered into:

• A gas-processing agreement in which MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers to us for processing all natural gas it 

receives from third-party producers. MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays us a monthly fee based on volumes delivered.

• A transportation agreement in which MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers most of its NGLs to us for transportation 

through the pipeline to the Partnership’s Siloam fractionator. MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays us a monthly fee based 
on the number of gallons delivered to us.

• A fractionation agreement in which MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers all of its NGLs to us for unloading, 

fractionation, loading and storage at the Partnership’s Siloam facility. MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays us a monthly 
fee based on the number of gallons delivered to us for fractionation, an annual storage fee, and a monthly fee 
based on the number of gallons of NGLs unloaded.

• A natural gas liquids purchase agreement in which MarkWest Hydrocarbon receives and purchases, and the 

Partnership delivers and sells, all of the NGL products the Partnership produces pursuant to the Partnership’s gas- 
processing agreement with a third party. Under the terms of this agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays us a 
purchase price equal to the proceeds it receives from the resale to third parties of the NGL products. This contract 
also applies to any other NGL products the Partnership acquires. The Partnership retains a percentage of the 
proceeds attributable to the sale of the NGL products it produces pursuant to its agreement with a third party, and 
remits the balance of the proceeds to this third party.

Under the Services Agreement with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, MarkWest Hydrocarbon continues to provide 
centralized corporate functions such as accounting, treasury, engineering, information technology, insurance and other 
services. The Partnership reimburses MarkWest Hydrocarbon monthly for the selling, general and administrative expenses.   
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, MarkWest Hydrocarbon charged approximately $6.9 million, $8.7 
million and $5.3 million, respectively, for these expenses.

The Partnership also reimburses MarkWest Hydrocarbon for the salaries and employee benefits, such as 401(k) and 
health insurance, of plant operating personnel as well as other direct operating expenses.  For the years ended December 31, 
2005, 2004 and 2003, these costs totaled $8.0 million, $9.1 million and $6.2 million, respectively, and are included in facility
expenses. The Partnership has no employees.
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In Michigan, the Partnership assumed the Midstream Business’s existing third-party contracts. As a result, the 
Partnership gathers and processes gas directly for those third parties. The Partnership receives 100% of all fees and percent-
of-proceeds consideration for the first 10,000 Mcf/d gathered in Michigan.  MarkWest Hydrocarbon retains a 70% net profit 
interest in the gathering and processing income earned on Michigan pipeline throughput in excess of 10,000 Mcf/d, 
calculated quarterly.  For years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s net profit interest was 
$0.0 million, $0.5 million and $0.9 million, respectively, which amounts are included in facility expenses.

17. Subsequent Event

 On January 17, 2006, the Partnership filed a Form S-4 exchange offer registration statement related to the Senior 
Notes (see Note 10).  The registration became effective February 3, 2006.  The interest rate penalty (1% at December 31, 
2005) on the Senior Notes will cease on March 7, 2006.

18. Segment Information

The Partnership is engaged in the gathering, processing and transmission of natural gas; the transportation, 
fractionation and storage of natural gas liquids and refinery off-gas; and the gathering and transportation of crude oil. The 
Partnership is a processor of natural gas in the northeastern and southwestern United States, processing gas from the 
Appalachian Basin, one of the country’s oldest natural gas-producing regions, and from East Texas, Gulf Coast and 
Michigan. Our chief operating decision maker is our chief executive officer (“CEO”).  Our CEO reviews the Partnership’s 
discrete financial information on a geographic and operational basis, as the products and services are closely related within 
each geographic region and business operations.  Accordingly, the CEO makes operating decisions, assesses financial 
performance and allocates resources on a segment basis.  The Partnership’s segments are as follows:

Segment  Related Legal Entity  Products and services 

     
Southwest     
East Texas MarkWest Energy East Texas Gas Company, L.P. 

MarkWest Pipeline Company, L.P. 
Gathering, processing, pipeline, 
fractionation and storage 

     
Oklahoma MarkWest Western Oklahoma Gas Company, 

L.L.C.
Gathering and processing 

     
Other 
Southwest

MarkWest Power Tex L.P. 
MarkWest Pinnacle L.P. 
MarkWest PNG Utility L.P. 
MarkWest Texas PNG Utility L.P. 
MarkWest Blackhawk L.P. 
MarkWest New Mexico L.P. 

Gathering and pipeline 

     
Gulf Coast     
Gulf Coast MarkWest Javelina Company 

MarkWest Javelina Pipeline Company 
MarkWest Javelina Pipeline Holding Company, L.P.
MarkWest Javelina Holding Company, L.P.  

Gathering, processing and pipeline 

     
Northeast     
Appalachia MarkWest Energy Appalachia, L.L.C. Processing, pipelines, fractionation and 

storage 
     

Michigan Basin Pipeline, L.L.C. 
West Shore Processing Company, L.L.C. 
MarkWest Michigan Pipeline Company, L.L.C.  

Gathering, processing and crude oil 
transportation 

The Partnership prepares business segment information in accordance with GAAP (see Note 1), except that certain 
items below the “Operating Income” line are not allocated to business segments, as management does not consider them in its 
evaluation of business unit performance.  In addition, selling, general and administrative expenses are not allocated to 
individual business segments.   Management evaluates business segment performance based on operating income before 
selling, general and administrative expenses.  Revenues from MarkWest Hydrocarbon are reflected as revenue from 
Affiliates.
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The table below presents information about operating income for the reported segments for the three years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands).  

  East Texas  Oklahoma 

Other 

Southwest Appalachia Michigan  Gulf Coast Total 

Year Ended December 31, 

2005:            
Revenues:            

Unaffiliated parties  $ 86,196   $ 213,947  $ 106,661  $ 1,758  $ 12,496   $ 13,832  $ 434,890
Affiliated parties  —   —  —  64,922  —   —  64,922

Total Revenues  86,196   213,947  106,661  66,680  12,496   13,832  499,812
Expenses:            
Purchased product costs  39,024   193,787  92,602  38,435  3,030   —  366,878
Facility expenses  10,463   4,927  4,990  19,360  6,080   2,152  47,972
Depreciation  4,836   2,385  3,383  3,187  4,665   1,078  19,534
Amortization  8,293   —  68  —  —   1,295  9,656
Accretion  33   63  22  41  —   —  159

Operating income (loss) before 
selling, general and 
administrative expenses  $ 23,547   $ 12,785  $ 5,596  $ 5,657  $ (1,279 ) $ 9,307  $ 55,613

Capital expenditures  $ 46,088   $ 11,937  $ 7,765  $ 4,611  $ 251   $ 98  $ 70,750
Total segment assets  $ 324,231   $ 75,576  $ 98,345  $ 55,436  $ 50,560   $ 441,945  $ 1,046,093
                

Year Ended December 31, 

2004:            
Revenues:            

Unaffiliated parties  $ 21,932   $ 133,636  $ 69,464  $ 1,632  $ 15,624   $ —  $ 242,288
Affiliated parties  —   —  —  59,026  —   —  59,026

Total Revenues  21,932   133,636  69,464  60,658  15,624   —  301,314
Expenses:            
Purchased product costs  3,669   118,325  55,519  30,031  3,990   —  211,534
Facility expenses  3,229   3,659  3,694  13,444  5,885   —  29,911
Depreciation  1,489   2,059  3,099  4,329  4,580   —  15,556
Amortization  3,446   —  194  —  —   —  3,640
Impairment  —   —  —  130  —   —  130
Accretion  13   —  —  —  —   —  13

Operating income before 
selling, general and 
administrative expenses $ 10,086   $ 9,593  $ 6,958  $ 12,724  $ 1,169   $ —  $ 40,530

Capital expenditures  $ 19,343   $ 2,917  $ 3,899  $ 2,856  $ 1,452   $ —  $ 30,467
Total segment assets  298,451   64,433  59,071  51,088  56,379   —  529,422
                

Year Ended December 31, 

2003:            
Revenues:            

Unaffiliated parties  $ —   $ 7,855  $ 46,669  $ 1,278  $ 11,778   $ —  $ 67,580
Affiliated parties  —   —  —  49,850  —   —  49,850

Total Revenues  —   7,855  46,669  51,128  11,778   —  117,430
Expenses:            
Purchased product costs  —   7,010  37,827  22,387  3,608   —  70,832
Facility expenses  —   298  2,914  12,316  4,935   —  20,463
Depreciation  —   158  2,126  2,870  2,394   —  7,548
Impairment  —   —  —  1,148  —   —  1,148

Operating income before 
selling, general and 
administrative expenses  $ —   $ 389  $ 3,802  $ 12,407  $ 841   $ —  $ 17,439

Capital expenditures  $ —   $ —  $ 1,085  $ 1,799  $ 60   $ —  2,944
Total segment assets  —   43,991  61,690  49,168  58,022   —  212,978
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The following is a reconciliation of operating income before selling, general and administrative expenses to net 
income (in thousands):

  Year Ended December 31,  

  2005  2004  2003  

        

Total segment revenue  $ 499,812   $ 301,314   $ 117,430  
Derivatives not allocated to segments  (728 ) —   —  

Total revenue  499,084   301,314   117,430  
         

Total segment operating income before selling, 
general and administrative expenses  55,613   40,530   17,439  

Derivatives not allocated to segments  (728 ) —   —  
Selling, general and administrative expenses 

not allocated to segments  (21,573 ) (16,133 ) (8,598 )

Income from operations  33,312   24,397   8,841  
        
Interest income  367   87   14  
Interest expense  (22,469 ) (9,236 ) (3,087 )
Amortization of deferred financing costs  (6,780 ) (5,236 ) (984 )
Loss from unconsolidated affiliates  (2,153 ) (65 ) —  
Miscellaneous income (expense)  78   15   (25 )
         

Net income  $ 2,355   $ 9,962   $ 4,759  

19. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following summarizes the Partnership’s quarterly results of operations:

  Three Months Ended  

  March 31  June 30  September 30  December 31  

  (in thousands, except per unit amounts)  

2005           
Revenue  $ 89,637   $ 102,960   $ 130,568   $ 175,919   
Income from operations  $ 8,451   $ 4,747   $ 6,872   $ 13,242   
Net income (loss)  $ 4,265   $ 671   $ 602   $ (3,183 )(a)

Limited partner’s share of net income (loss)  $ 4,346   $ 385   $ 79   $ (4,568 ) 

Net income (loss) per limited partner unit:           
Basic  $ 0.41   $ 0.04   $ 0.01   $ (0.44 ) 

Diluted  $ 0.41   $ 0.04   $ 0.01   $ (0.44 ) 

  Three Months Ended 

  March 31  June 30  September 30  December 31 

  (in thousands, except per unit amounts) 

2004          
Revenue  $ 63,825   $ 65,659   $ 77,842   $ 93,988  
Income from operations  $ 3,605   $ 4,502   $ 7,686   $ 8,604  
Net income  $ 2,161   $ 3,262   $ 715   $ 3,824  
Limited partner’s share of net income  $ 2,162   $ 3,027   $ 802   $ 4,694  
Net income per limited partner unit:          

Basic  $ 0.32   $ 0.43   $ 0.10   $ 0.46  
Diluted  $ 0.32   $ 0.43   $ 0.10   $ 0.46  

(a) The following items impacted 2005 fourth quarter results:

• Starfish:  The path of Hurricane Rita was along the Starfish pipeline corridor.  Onsite and aerial inspections 

indicated no material damage to platform facilities, and pipe integrity was not compromised.  Sonar inspections 
showed significant damage to underwater pipe. Some structural damage appears to have occurred at the onshore 
Starfish dehydration and compressor facilities.  The interruption in operations, however, resulted in significant 
fourth quarter losses for Starfish.
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• East Texas:  Under the terms of certain gathering contracts in our East Texas systems, we are required to buy gas 

based on a specific index price. Our typical process has been to sell our best estimate of the production at the same 
index price near the end of the prior month.  Due to unexpected volatility and a corresponding lack of liquidity in the 
gas trading market at the end of October 2005, the Partnership was unable to sell all of its requirements at the same 
index price.  As a result, the Partnership was not able to sell approximately 16,600 Mmbtu/day of gas from its 
Appleby and east Texas assets for November 2005.  During the month of November, the Partnership sold the gas at 
a different index price, which was lower than the index purchase price for the month.  The Partnership ended up 
with a negative impact to operating income from operations of approximately $2.5 million from the Appleby and 
East Texas operations.  The Partnership has implemented additional controls and procedures to mitigate a similar 
exposure going forward.  The Partnership has sold 90% of its forecasted volumes through March 2006 at index 
price.  The Partnership has also established firm guidelines to sell the remainder of forecast volumes earlier in the 
preceding month to reduce the risk of encountering unexpected market conditions that preclude these types of index 
sales.

• Under the terms of the keep-whole agreements in the Partnership’s western Oklahoma System, the Partnership 

purchases gas to replace the shrink and fuel requirements under those arrangements.  The Partnership then sells the 
natural gas liquids processed at the Foss Lake plant.  The continued strong pricing environment for natural gas 
liquids coupled with the decline in mid-continental natural gas prices in November, that contributed to the negative 
impact to operations in East Texas and Appleby, resulted in higher than expected margins in the Partnership’s 
western Oklahoma System of approximately $1.0 million.

• Commodity prices experienced extreme volatility in the fourth quarter, with natural gas achieving some of the 

highest settlements on record. In addition, NGL prices were increasing steadily during the fourth quarter.

20. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows (in thousands):

 Year Ended December 31,  

  2005  2004  2003   

Balance at beginning of period  $ 211   $ 80   $ —  
Charged to costs and expenses  42   211   80  
Deductions (Collections)  (102 ) (80 ) —  

Balance at end of period  $ 151   $ 211   $ 80  

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On September 20, 2005, the Partnership dismissed KPMG as its registered independent accounting firm.  The 
Registrant’s Audit Committee made the decision to change independent accountants and that decision was approved, ratified 
and adopted by the Partnership’s Board of Directors.

The report of KPMG on the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, 
contained no adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and was not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or 
accounting principle.  The audit report of KPMG on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, did not contain
an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, and was not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting 
principles, except that KPMG’s report indicates that the Partnership did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, because of the effect of material weakness on the achievement of the objectives of the 
control criteria and contains an explanatory paragraph that states that the following material weaknesses have been identified 
and included in management’s assessment:

• Ineffective control environment

• Insufficient technical accounting expertise, inadequate policies and procedures related to accounting 

matters, and inadequate management review in the financial reporting process

• Inadequate personnel, processes and controls at the Partnership’s Southwest Business Unit
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• Inadequately designed controls and procedures over property, plant and equipment

In connection with its audit for the year ended December 31, 2004, and the subsequent interim period through 
September 20, 2005, there were no disagreements with KPMG on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial 
statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of KPMG would 
be expected to cause them to make reference thereto in their reports on financial statements for such year.

During the two most recent fiscal years and through September 20, 2005, except as noted in this paragraph, there 
have been no “Reportable Events” (as defined in Regulation S-K, Item 304(a)(1)(v)).  In conjunction with KPMG’s audit of 
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, KPMG communicated to the Partnership’s 
Audit Committee the existence of material weaknesses related to (i) ineffective control environment, (ii) insufficient 
technical accounting expertise, inadequate policies and procedures related to accounting matters, and inadequate management 
review in the financial reporting process, (iii) inadequate personnel, processes and controls at our Southwest Business Unit, 
and (iv) inadequately designed controls and procedures over property, plant and equipment.  Information regarding these 
deficiencies is incorporated herein by reference to Item 9A (Controls and Procedures) of the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 24, 2005.

On September 20, 2005, the Partnership engaged Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Registrant’s independent registered 
public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2005, and to perform procedures related to the financial statements 
included in the Partnership’s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, beginning with the quarter ended September 30, 2005.  The 
Audit Committee made the decision to engage Deloitte & Touche and that decision was then approved, adopted and ratified 
by the Partnership’s Board of Directors.  The Partnership has not consulted with Deloitte & Touche during its two most 
recent fiscal years or during any subsequent interim period prior to its appointment as auditor regarding either (i) the 
application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed; or the type of audit opinion that
might be rendered on the Registrant’s consolidated financial statements, and neither a written report was provided to the 
Partnership nor oral advice was provided that Deloitte & Touche concluded was an important factor considered by the 
Partnership in reaching a decision as to the accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue; or (ii) any matter that was either
the subject of disagreement (as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(iv) of Regulation S-K and the related instructions) or a reportable 
event (within the meaning of Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K).

On February 23, 2004, the Partnership dismissed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as its independent accountants 
effective upon the filing of the Partnership’s Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. Our Form 10-K was filed 
on March 15, 2004. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors participated in, recommended and approved the decision 
to change independent accountants.

The report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, contains no adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and was not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, 
audit scope, or accounting principle.

In connection with its audit for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and through March 15, 2004, there have 
been no disagreements with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial 
statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP would have caused them to make reference thereto in their report on the financial statements 
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and through March 15, 2004, there have been no “Reportable 
Events” (as defined in Regulation S-K, Item 304(a)(1)(v)); however, as disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31, 2003, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC identified to the Partnership’s management and Audit 
Committee in connection with the audit for fiscal 2003 certain deficiencies in the Partnership’s internal controls that, when 
considered collectively, may be considered a material weakness.

On April 12, 2004, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, engaged KPMG LLP as our independent 
accountants for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004.  The general partner of the Partnership has not consulted with 
KPMG LLP during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 or during any subsequent interim period prior to its 
appointment as auditor regarding the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or 
proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Partnership’s consolidated financial statements, or any 
matter that was either the subject of a disagreement (as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(iv) of Regulation S-K and the related 
instructions) or reportable event (within the meaning of Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K).
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the “Exchange Act”)) are controls and other procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the 
information that we are required to disclose in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, 
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such 
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report, our management, with the participation of our Chief 
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation 
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2005. In making this evaluation, our management considered 
material weaknesses discussed below. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at the reasonable assurance level as of December 31, 
2005.

In light of the material weaknesses described below, through the date of the filing of this Form 10-K, we have 
adopted remedial measures to address the deficiencies in our internal controls that existed on December 31, 2005.  In 
addition, we have applied compensating procedures and processes as necessary to ensure the reliability of our financial 
reporting.  Such additional procedures include detailed management review of account reconciliations for all accounts in all 
business units and multiple level management review of accounting treatment for significant non-routine transactions.  
Accordingly, management believes that the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report present fairly, in 
all material respects, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows as of, and for, the periods presented in 
conformity with GAAP.

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Partnership is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Partnership’s internal control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the 
United States of America and includes those policies and procedures that:

• pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the Partnership;

• provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the Partnership are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
Partnership; and

• provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or 

disposition of the Partnership’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management, including our CEO and CFO, does not expect that our internal controls will prevent or detect all errors 
and all fraud.  A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, 
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that
there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. In addition, any 
evaluation of the effectiveness of controls is subject to risks that those internal controls may become inadequate in future 
periods because of changes in business conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
deteriorates.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005. In 
making this assessment, management used the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).

A material weakness is a significant deficiency (within the meaning of PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 2), or 
combination of significant deficiencies, that result in there being a more than remote likelihood that a material misstatement 
of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected.
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As reported in Item 9 of the Partnership’s 2004 Form 10-K, material weaknesses existed as of December 31, 2004, 
related to 1) ineffective control environment, 2) insufficient technical accounting expertise, inadequate policies and 
procedures related to accounting matters, and inadequate management review in the financial reporting process, 3) 
Inadequate personnel, processes, and controls at our Southwest Business Unit, and 4) Inadequately designed controls and 
procedures over property, plant and equipment.

While the Partnership has undertaken numerous steps in an effort to remediate its material weaknesses, as discussed 
under remediation plans below, in connection with management’s current year assessment, management has identified the 
following material weaknesses that existed at December 31, 2005:

Internal Control Environment – The Partnership’s control environment did not sufficiently promote effective 
internal control over financial reporting through the management structure to prevent a material misstatement, as was 
evidenced by deficiencies or significant deficiencies in the following areas:

• Segregation of duties within certain key processes was inadequate to support management’s assertions with respect 

to accuracy and completeness of financial records.

• Entity level controls including the anti-fraud program and controls necessary to address the COSO elements of risk 

assessment, information and communication.

• Application controls over financially significant applications with respect to change management and information 

systems operations.

• Fixed assets controls including instances of inappropriate authorization of invoices and improper reconciliation 

procedures.

• Financial reporting controls related to the closing process, including control over non-routine transactions, unusual 

journal entries and the use of estimates and judgment.

• Controls over expenditures including instances of inappropriate authorization of invoices and the inability to 

independently validate accuracy and validity of amounts recorded.

• Spreadsheet controls related to change management within key financial spreadsheets.

Risk Management and Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments – The Partnership did not have adequate 
internal controls and processes in place to support management’s assertions with respect to the completeness, accuracy and 
validity of commodity transactions.  The design of internal controls over commodity transactions did not support independent 
validation of data or control and review of transacting activity. In particular, personnel responsible for executing and entering 
transactions into commodity accounting systems also have duties that are not compatible with transaction execution and 
entry.

Because Javelina was acquired late in 2005, management did not include the internal control processes for the 
Javelina entities in its assessment of internal controls as of December 31, 2005.  Management will include all aspects of 
internal controls for Javelina in its 2006 assessment.

Conclusion:

Because of the material weaknesses described above, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2005, the 
Partnership did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting.

The Partnership’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on management’s 
assessment of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting, which appears on page 94.

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/FRANK M. SEMPLE  

  Frank M. Semple 
  Chief Executive Officer 

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/JAMES G. IVEY  

 James G. Ivey 
 Chief Financial Officer 
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No changes were made to internal control that affected management’s assertions about our internal control over 
financial reporting. Specific changes that have occurred and further planned changes are discussed below under the heading 
“Remediation of Material Weaknesses in Internal Controls.”

REMEDIATION OF MATERIAL WEAKNESSES IN INTERNAL CONTROL

In response to the material weaknesses identified in the 2004 Form 10-K and those still existing at December 31, 
2005, our management, with oversight from our general partner’s audit committee, has dedicated significant resources to 
improve our control environment and to remedy the identified material weaknesses.  These ongoing efforts are focused on (i) 
expanding our organizational capabilities through the addition of employees with appropriate skills and abilities to improve 
our control environment and (ii) implementing process changes to strengthen our internal control design and monitoring 
activities.

From an organizational capabilities perspective, we have made significant strides.  Among other things:

• We have hired a Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer with public company accounting and 

reporting technical expertise.

• We have hired additional external reporting, tax and accounting staff to supplement our existing technical 

accounting resources and mitigate segregation of duties deficiencies.

• We have hired a Vice President of Risk and Compliance to coordinate our internal audit and internal control 

compliance efforts and to oversee and ensure improvements in our commodity transacting verification and 
monitoring capabilities.

• We have implemented an internal audit outsourcing and technical consultation arrangement with a professional 

accounting and consulting firm.

• We have hired a Director of Risk Management and staff to establish appropriate verification and monitoring 

activities associated with our commodity transacting.

All of these resources were added in the third and fourth quarters of 2005 or the first quarter of 2006 and, while we 
believe we have substantially improved our organizational capabilities, the full impact of the changes had not been realized 
by December 31, 2005.  We will continue to evaluate our resources and remain committed to adding the necessary resources 
as needs are identified.

We have and will continue to implement changes to our processes to improve disclosure controls and procedures 
and to improve our internal control over financial reporting.  Among the changes we have made and intend to make are the 
following:

• We have formalized the monthly account reconciliation process for all balance sheet accounts.  We have also 

implemented a formal review of reconciliations by our business unit accounting management.

• We have established a Compliance Office focused on control deficiency identification and remediation, i.e., 

purchasing controls, revenue recognition controls and application and spreadsheet change controls.  The 
Compliance Office performs ongoing internal control evaluation and assessment and works actively with the 
process owners in developing appropriate remediation of control deficiencies.

• We have conducted an entity-level risk assessment, established an internal audit plan and we have begun to 

execute that internal audit plan.  Results are reported directly to our general partner’s audit committee.

• We are segregating front-office, mid-office and back-office processes related to commodity transacting to 

ensure that proper segregation of duties exists and that control procedures are carried out by the appropriate 
groups.  We are enhancing hedge reporting to executive management.  We are enhancing risk management 
policies and procedures related to the review and approval of material purchase or sale contracts that may meet 
the definition of derivatives.
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• We have enhanced entity level controls through the implementation of significant new controls.   We have 

strengthened our disclosure review committee charter to solicit and review input from management personnel 
throughout the Partnership regarding possible instances of fraud or significant events requiring disclosure.  
Also, we have implemented a technical accounting issues forum to address non-routine transactions and the use 
of estimates and judgment.

• We are enhancing employee awareness of our Code of Conduct, ethics and anti-fraud policies, including a 

revised training program to be delivered to all employees in 2006.  This includes heightened awareness of the 
ethics hotline availability and access options.

• We are conducting a detailed review and re-documentation of all of our control processes and will undertake 

significant control design changes to ensure that all control objectives are met.

We believe that the foregoing actions have improved and will continue to improve our internal control over financial 
reporting, as well as our disclosure controls and procedures.  However, given the breadth of areas affected, it will take time to 
remediate all of our material weaknesses.  Our management, with oversight of our general partner’s audit committee, will 
continue to identify and take steps to remedy all known material weaknesses as expeditiously as possible and enhance the 
overall design and capability of our control environment.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of 
MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. 
Englewood, Colorado

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting, that MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and subsidiaries (the “Partnership”) did not maintain effective 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, because of the effect of the material weaknesses identified 
in management’s assessment based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  As described in Management’s Report on Internal 
Control over Financial Reporting, management excluded from their assessment the internal control over financial reporting at 
Javelina Company, Javelina Pipeline Company, Javelina Land Company L.L.C. (the “Gulf Coast Business Unit”), which was 
acquired on November 1, 2005, because the Gulf Coast Business Unit was acquired very late in the year, management did not 
include internal control processes for the Gulf Coast Business Unit in its assessment of internal controls as of December 31, 
2005.  The Gulf Coast Business Unit constitutes 3% percent and 42% percent of net and total assets, respectively, and 3% 
percent of total revenues of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005.  
Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at the Gulf Coast Business Unit. The 
Partnership’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting 
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective 
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our audit included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s 
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s 
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on 
a timely basis.  Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected.  The 
following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management’s assessment:

Internal Control Environment – The Partnership’s control environment did not sufficiently promote effective internal control 
over financial reporting through their management structure to prevent a material misstatement, as was evidenced by 
deficiencies or significant deficiencies in the following areas:

• Segregation of duties within certain key processes was inadequate to support management’s assertions with respect 

to accuracy and completeness of financial records.

• Entity level controls including the anti-fraud program and controls necessary to address the COSO elements of risk 

assessment, information and communication.
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• Application controls over financially significant applications with respect to change management and information 

systems operations.

• Fixed assets controls including inappropriate authorization of invoices and improper reconciliation procedures.

• Financial reporting controls related to the closing process including control over non-routine transactions, unusual 

journal entries and the use of estimates and judgment.

• Controls over expenditures including inappropriate authorization of invoices and the inability to independently 

validate accuracy and validity of amounts recorded.

• And, spreadsheet controls related to change management within key financial spreadsheets.

Risk Management and Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments – The Partnership did not have adequate internal 
controls and processes in place to support management’s assertions with respect to the completeness, accuracy and validity of 
commodity transactions.  The design of internal controls over commodity transactions did not support independent validation 
of data or control and review of transacting activity. In particular, personnel responsible for executing and entering 
transactions into commodity accounting systems also have duties, which are not compatible with transaction execution and 
entry.

The material weaknesses result from both a deficiency in the design of internal controls, as well as, a deficiency in the 
operating effectiveness of key controls relied on by management.  The design deficiencies primarily represent situations 
where control activities did not exist to meet control objectives necessary to support the financial statement assertions.  
Operating effectiveness deficiencies were, in many cases, a result of the Partnership’s control activities that were not 
performed adequately to address the control objective.  The significant turnover of accounting personnel in the fourth quarter 
of 2005 was a contributing factor in the failure of key control activities to operate effectively.  As a result of the pervasive
nature of the material weaknesses, the risk exists that the Partnership’s financial reporting processes and controls may not 
identify a material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, of the Partnership and this report does 
not affect our report on such financial statements.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Partnership did not maintain effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal 

Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  Also 
in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the 
control criteria, the Partnership has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, of the Partnership and our report dated 
March 16, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

Denver, Colorado 
March 16, 2006 

ITEM 9B.  OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Management of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.

MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., as our general partner, manages our operations and activities on our behalf. Our 
general partner is not elected by our unitholders and will not be subject to reelection on a regular basis in the future. 
Unitholders do not directly or indirectly participate in our management or operation. Our general partner owes a fiduciary 
duty to our unitholders, although such duty is limited under our Partnership Agreement. Our general partner will be liable, as 
general partner, for all of our debts (to the extent not paid from our assets), except for indebtedness or other obligations that
are made specifically non-recourse to it. Whenever possible, however, our general partner intends to incur indebtedness or 
other obligations that are non-recourse.

Three members of the board of directors of our general partner serve on a Conflicts Committee to review those 
matters that the board believes may involve conflicts of interest. The Conflicts Committee determines if the resolution of the 
conflict of interest is fair and reasonable to us. Committee members may not be officers or employees of our general partner 
or directors, officers or employees of its affiliates and must meet the independence standards to serve on an audit committee 
of a board of directors established by the American Stock Exchange, as well as certain other requirements. Any matters 
approved by the Conflicts Committee are conclusively deemed to be fair and reasonable to us, approved by all of our partners 
and not a breach by our general partner of any duties it may owe us or our unitholders. The current members of the Conflicts 
Committee are Keith E. Bailey, Charles K. Dempster and William P. Nicoletti.

Three members of the board of directors of our general partner serve on the Audit Committee that reviews our 
external financial reporting, recommends engagement of our independent auditors and reviews procedures for internal 
auditing and the adequacy of our internal accounting controls. Three members of the board of directors of our general partner 
serve on the Compensation Committee, which oversees compensation decisions for the officers of our general partner as well 
as the compensation plans described below under the headings “Non-Competition, Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality 
Agreement and Severance Plan” and “Long-Term Incentive Plan,” which is included herein by reference. The members of 
the Compensation and Audit Committees for fiscal 2004 were Charles K. Dempster, William A. Kellstrom and William P. 
Nicoletti.  For fiscal 2005, Keith E. Bailey replaced Mr. Kellstrom on both the Audit and Compensation Committees.

Some officers of our general partner spend a substantial amount of time managing the business and affairs of 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its other affiliates. These officers may face a conflict regarding the allocation of their time 
between our business and the other business interests of MarkWest Hydrocarbon. Our general partner directs its officers to 
devote as much time to the management of our business and affairs as is necessary for the proper conduct of our business and 
affairs.

Directors and Executive Officers of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.

The following table shows information for the directors and executive officers of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., our general 
partner. Executive officers are appointed and directors are elected for one-year terms.

Name  Age  Position with our General Partner  

Director

Since

       
John M. Fox  65  Chairman of the Board of Directors  1988 
Keith E. Bailey  63  Director  2005 
Charles K. Dempster  63  Director  2002 
Donald C. 
Heppermann  

63 Director 2002 

William A. Kellstrom  64  Director  2000 
William P. Nicoletti  60  Director  2002 
Frank M. Semple  54  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director  2003 
C. Corwin Bromley  48  Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary  NA 
James G. Ivey  54  Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer  NA 
Nancy K. Masten  36  Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer  NA 
John C. Mollenkopf  44  Senior Vice President, Southwest Business Unit  NA 
Randy S. Nickerson  44  Senior Vice President, Corporate Development  NA 
Richard A. Ostberg  40  Vice President, Risk and Compliance  NA 
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Andrew L. Schroeder  47  Vice President, Finance and Treasurer  NA 
David L. Young  46  Senior Vice President, Northeast Business Unit  NA 

John M. Fox has served as MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s Chairman of the Board of Directors since its inception in 
April 1988, and in the same capacity for the general partner of MarkWest Energy since May 2002.  Mr. Fox also served as 
President and Chief Executive Officer of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the general partner of MarkWest Energy from 
April 1988 until his retirement as President on November 1, 2003, and his resignation as Chief Executive Officer effective 
December 31, 2003.  Mr. Fox was a founder of Western Gas Resources, Inc. and was its Executive Vice President and Chief 
Operating Officer from 1972 to 1986.

Keith E. Bailey has served as a member of the board of directors of our general partner since January 2005. Mr. 
Bailey was formerly the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of The Williams Companies, Inc. (“Williams”). 
Commencing in 1973, Mr. Bailey served in various capacities with Williams and its subsidiaries, including President and 
Chairman of Williams Pipe Line, Chairman of Wiltel Communications, President of Williams Natural Gas, and Executive 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Williams. Also, Mr. Bailey served on the Williams board of directors from 
1988 until his retirement in 2002, including eight years as Chairman. He currently serves on the boards of directors of Apco 
Argentina Inc., Associated Electric & Gas Insurance Services Limited (Aegis) and Peoples Energy Corporation.  Mr. Bailey 
holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from the Missouri School of Mines and Metallurgy.

Charles K. Dempster has served as a member of the board of directors of our general partner since December 2002.  
Mr. Dempster has more than 30 years of experience in the natural gas and power industry. He held various management and 
executive positions with Enron Corporation and its predecessors between 1969 and 1986, focusing on natural gas supply, 
transmission and distribution. From 1986 through 1992, Mr. Dempster served as President of Reliance Pipeline Company and 
Executive Vice President of Nicor Oil and Gas Corporation, oil and natural gas midstream and exploration subsidiaries of 
Nicor Inc. in Chicago. In 1993, he was appointed President of Aquila Energy Corporation, a wholly owned midstream, 
pipeline and energy-trading subsidiary of Utilicorp, Inc. Mr. Dempster retired in 2000 as Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer of Aquila Energy Company.  Mr. Dempster holds a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from the University of 
Houston and attended graduate business school at the University of Nebraska.

Donald C. Heppermann served as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, Inc. and the general partner of MarkWest Energy since October 2003 until his retirement in March 2004.  
Mr. Heppermann joined MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the general partner of the Partnership in November 2002 as Senior Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer, and served as Senior Executive Vice President beginning in January 2003.  
Mr. Heppermann has served as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors since November 2002 and the general partner 
of the Partnership’s board of directors since its inception in May 2002. He also serves as Chairman of the Finance 
Committee.  Prior to joining MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the general partner of MarkWest Energy, Mr. Heppermann was a 
private investor and career executive in the energy industry with responsibilities in operations, finance, business development
and strategic planning.  From 1990 to 1997, Mr. Heppermann served as President and Chief Operating Officer for InterCoast 
Energy Company, an unregulated subsidiary of Mid American Energy Company.  From 1987 to 1990, Mr. Heppermann was 
Vice President of Finance for Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, the holding company for Arizona Public Service Company.  
From 1965 to 1987, Enron Corporation and its predecessors employed Mr. Heppermann in a variety of positions, including 
Executive Vice President, Gas Pipeline Group.

William A. Kellstrom has served as a member of the Board of Directors of MarkWest Hydrocarbon since 
May 2000 and the general partner of MarkWest Energy since its inception in May 2002.  Mr. Kellstrom has held a variety of 
managerial positions in the natural gas industry since 1968.  They include distribution, pipelines and marketing.  He held 
various management and executive positions with Enron Corporation, including Executive Vice President, Pipeline 
Marketing and Senior Vice President, Interstate Pipelines.  In 1989, he created and was President of Tenaska Marketing 
Ventures, a gas marketing company for the Tenaska Power Group.  From 1992 until 1997 he was with NorAm Energy 
Corporation (since merged with Reliant Energy, Incorporated), where he was President of the Energy Marketing Company 
and Senior Vice President, Corporate Development.  Mr. Kellstrom retired in 1997 and is periodically engaged as a 
consultant to energy companies.

William P. Nicoletti has served as a member of the Board of Directors of our general partner since its inception in 
May 2002. Mr. Nicoletti is Managing Director of Nicoletti & Company Inc., a private banking firm formed in 1991. 
Previously, he was a Managing Director and head of Energy Investment Banking for PaineWebber Incorporated and E.F 
Hutton & Company Inc. Mr. Nicoletti is a non-executive Chairman of the Board of Star Gas LLC, the general partner of Star 
Gas Partners, L.P. He is also a director of SPI Petroleum LLC and Surge Global Energy, Inc. Mr. Nicoletti is a graduate of 
Seton Hall University and received an MBA from Columbia University Graduate School of Business.
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Frank M. Semple was appointed as President of both MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the general partner of MarkWest 
Energy on November 1, 2003.  Mr. Semple also became Chief Executive Officer of both MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the 
general partner of MarkWest Energy on January 1, 2004.  Prior to his appointment, Mr. Semple served in various capacities, 
most recently as Chief Operating Officer of WilTel Communications, formerly Williams Communications Group, Inc. 
(“WCG”) from 1997 to 2003.  Prior to his tenure at WilTel Communications, he was the Senior Vice President/General 
Manager of Williams Natural Gas from 1995 to 1997, Vice President of Marketing and Vice President of Operations and 
Engineering for Northwest Pipeline, and Director of Product Movements and Division Manager for Williams Pipeline during 
his 22-year career with The Williams Companies.  During his tenure at Williams Communications, he also served on the 
board of directors for PowerTel Communications and the Competitive Telecommunications Association (Comptel).  On 
April 22, 2002, WCG and one of its subsidiaries (“Debtors”) filed a petition for relief under the Bankruptcy Code with the 
United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York.  On September 30, 2002, the Bankruptcy Court 
entered an order confirming the Debtors’ plan of reorganization that became effective October 15, 2002.  Mr. Semple holds a 
Mechanical Engineering degree from the United States Naval Academy and is a professional engineer registered in the state 
of Kansas.

C. Corwin Bromley has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of both MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
and the general partner of MarkWest Energy since September 2004.  Prior to that, Mr. Bromley served as Assistant General 
Counsel at RAG American Coal Holding, Inc. from 1999 through 2004, and as General-Managing Attorney at Cyprus Amax 
Minerals Company from 1989 to 1999.  Prior to that, Mr. Bromley spent four years in private practice with the law firm 
Popham, Haik, Schnobrich & Kaufman.  Preceding his legal career, Mr. Bromley was employed by CBI, Inc. as a 
structural/design engineer involved in several LNG and energy projects.  Mr. Bromley received his J.D. from the University 
of Denver and his bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from the University of Wyoming.

James G. Ivey has served as Chief Financial Officer of both MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the general partner of 
MarkWest Energy since June 2004.  Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ivey served as Treasurer of The Williams Companies 
from 1999 to April 30, 2004, and as acting Chief Financial Officer from mid 2002 to mid 2003.  Prior to joining Williams, 
Mr. Ivey held similar positions with Tenneco Gas and NORAM Energy.  Prior to that, he held various engineering positions 
with Conoco and Fluor Corporation.  He currently serves on the boards of directors for MACH Gen LLC, National Energy & 
Gas Transmission, Inc. and the Tulsa Boys Home.  Mr. Ivey retired in early 2004 from the Army Reserve with the rank of 
colonel.  Mr. Ivey is a graduate of Texas A&M University and has an MBA from the University of Houston.  He is also a 
graduate of the Army Command and General Staff College.

Nancy K. Masten was appointed Chief Accounting Officer of both MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the general partner 
of MarkWest Energy in November 2005.  Previous to her appointment, Ms. Masten was the Chief Financial Officer for 
Experimental and Applied Sciences (“EAS”) in Golden, Colorado.  EAS is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Ross Product 
Division of Abbott Laboratories. Prior to her employment at EAS, Ms. Masten was a Vice President with TransMontaigne 
Inc. in Denver, Colorado.  Preceding this appointment, Ms. Masten was a Partner with Ernst & Young LLP, having spent 
time in the firm’s Denver, London, New York and Washington, D.C. offices.

John C. Mollenkopf was appointed Senior Vice President, Southwest Business Unit, of MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
and the general partner of MarkWest Energy in January 2004.  Previously he served as Vice President, Business 
Development of the Company since January 2003.  Prior to that, he served as Vice President, Michigan Business Unit, of 
MarkWest Energy’s general partner since its inception in May 2002 and in the same capacity with MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
since December 2001.  Prior to that, Mr. Mollenkopf was General Manager of the Michigan Business Unit of MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon since 1997. He joined MarkWest Hydrocarbon in 1996 as Manager, New Projects.  From 1983 to 1996, 
Mr. Mollenkopf worked for ARCO Oil and Gas Company, holding various positions in process and project engineering, as 
well as operations supervision.

Randy S. Nickerson has served as Senior Vice President, Corporate Development of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and 
MarkWest Energy’s general partner since October 2003.  Prior to that, Mr. Nickerson served as Executive Vice President, 
Corporate Development of the Partnership’s general partner since January 2003 and as Senior Vice President of the 
Partnership’s general partner since its inception in May 2002 and has served in the same capacity with MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon since December 2001. Prior to that, Mr. Nickerson served as MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s Vice President and the 
General Manager of the Appalachia Business Unit since June 1997. Mr. Nickerson joined MarkWest Hydrocarbon in 
July 1995 as Manager, New Projects and served as General Manager of the Michigan Business Unit from June 1996 until 
June 1997.  From 1990 to 1995, Mr. Nickerson was a Senior Project Manager and Regional Engineering Manager for 
Western Gas Resources, Inc.  From 1984 to 1990, Mr. Nickerson worked for Chevron USA and Meridian Oil Inc. in various 
process and project engineering positions.
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Richard A. Ostberg was appointed the Vice President of Risk and Compliance of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the 
general partner of MarkWest Energy in July 2005.  Prior to that, Mr. Ostberg served as Vice President and Controller of 
Black Hills Energy.  Prior to Black Hills, Mr. Ostberg spent four years with Pacific Minerals, Inc, the operator of the Bridger
Coal mine and spent eight years with Deloitte & Touche in their audit practice, including two years consulting from his 
national office assignment in Washington, D.C.

Andrew L. Schroeder has served as Vice President and Treasurer of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the Partnership’s 
general partner since February 2003. Prior to his appointment, he was Director of Finance/Business Development at Crestone 
Energy Ventures from 2001 through 2002.  Prior to that, Mr. Schroeder worked at Xcel Energy for two years as Director of 
Corporate Financial Analysis.  Prior to that, he spent seven years working with various energy companies.  He began his 
career with Touche, Ross & Co. and spent eight years in public accounting.  He is a Certified Public Accountant licensed in 
the state of Colorado.

David L. Young was appointed Senior Vice President, Northeast Business Unit of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the 
Partnership’s general partner effective February 1, 2004. Prior to joining MarkWest, Mr. Young spent eighteen years at The 
Williams Companies, Inc. in Tulsa, Oklahoma, having served most recently as Vice President and General Manager of the 
video services business for WilTel Communications, formerly WCG from 1997 to 2003.  Prior to that, Mr. Young’s 
management positions at The Williams Companies included serving as Senior Vice President and General Manager for Texas 
Gas Pipeline and Williams Central Pipeline Company.  On April 22, 2002, the Debtors filed a petition for relief under the 
Bankruptcy Code with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York.  On September 30, 2002, 
the Bankruptcy Court entered an order confirming the Debtors’ plan of reorganization that became effective October 15, 
2002.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

Each of the individuals serving on our Audit Committee satisfies the standards for independence of the AMEX and 
the SEC as they relate to audit committees.  Our board of directors believes each of the members of the Audit Committee is 
financially literate.  In addition, our board of directors has determined that Mr. Bailey is financially sophisticated and 
qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” within the meaning of the regulations of the SEC.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent 
auditors on a case-by-case basis.  These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other 
services.  Our Chief Accounting Officer is responsible for presenting the Audit Committee with an overview of all proposed 
audit, audit-related, tax or other non-audit services to be performed by the independent auditors. The presentation must be in 
sufficient detail to define clearly the services to be performed.  The Audit Committee does not delegate its responsibilities to
pre-approve services performed by the independent auditor to management or to an individual member of the Audit 
Committee.  The Audit Committee may, however, from time to time delegate its authority to the Audit Committee Chairman, 
who reports on the independent auditor services approved by the Chairman at the next Audit Committee meeting.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that complies with SEC standards, applicable to the persons serving 
as our directors, officers (including without limitation, our CEO, CFO, CAO and Principal Financial Officer) and employees. 
This includes the prompt disclosure to the SEC of a Current Report on Form 8-K of any waiver of the code for executive 
officers or directors approved by the board of directors. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available free 
of charge in print to any unitholder who sends a request to the office of the Secretary of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. at 
155 Inverness Drive West, Suite 200, Englewood, Colorado 80112-5000. The Code of Conduct and Ethics is also posted on 
our website, www.markwest.com.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our general partner’s directors and executive officers, 
and persons who own more than 10% of any class of our equity securities registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 
to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership in such securities and other equity 
securities of our Partnership. SEC regulations also require directors, executive officers and greater than 10% unitholders to 
furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to us and written representations 
that no other reports were required, we believe our directors, executive officers and greater than 10% unitholders complied 
with all Section 16(a) filing requirements during the year ended December 31, 2005, except for the following:
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No. of Late

Reported

Transactions

No. of Late 

Form 3 

Filings

No. of Late 

Form 4 

Filings

Mr. Fox  1   0   1  
Mr. Bailey  1   0   1  
Mr. Ivey  1   0   1  
Mr. Ostberg  1   1   0  
Mr. Young  2   0   2  
Mr. Dempster  1   0   1  
Mr. Heppermann  1   0   1  
Mr. Nicoletti  2   0   2  
Mr. Kellstrom  1   0   1  
Ms. Marle  1   1   0  
Mr. Dickerson  1   1   0  

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Partnership has no employees. The officers of our general partner manage the Partnership. Aside from restricted 
unit awards (discussed later), the executive officers of our general partner are compensated by MarkWest Hydrocarbon and 
do not receive compensation from our general partner or us for their services in such capacities. We reimburse MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon for a portion of their salaries.

The following table sets forth the cash and non-cash compensation earned for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 by 
each person who served as Chief Executive Officer of our general partner in 2005 and the four other highest-paid officers, 
whose salary and bonus exceeded $100,000 for services rendered during 2005.

Our general partner was created in January 2002 and our initial public offering closed in May 2002, at which point 
we commenced reimbursing MarkWest Hydrocarbon for selling, general and administrative expenses, including a portion of 
the Named Executive Officers’ compensation. Information included in the following table for the periods ended prior to 
May 24, 2002, is provided for comparability purposes.

Summary Compensation Table

  Annual Compensation  Long-Term Compensation  

Name and Principal Positions  

Fiscal 

Year

Salary

($) (1) 

Bonus

($) (2) 

Restricted

Unit

Awards 

($) (3)  

LTIP

Payouts 

($) (4) 

Other 

Compensatio

n

($) (5)  

              
Frank M. Semple  2005   $ 288,462   $ 143,000   $ 84,280   $ 22,634   $ 20,550  

President and Chief Executive   2004   280,385   47,250   108,750   20,500   52,838  
Officer  2003  36,346   6,413   279,000   4,800   623  

              
James G. Ivey (6)  2005   $ 218,846   $ 60,000   $ 27,567   $ 21,661   $ 18,965  

Chief Financial Officer  2004   126,154   5,979   251,500   8,640   37,408  
  2003  —   —   —   —   —  
              
Randy S. Nickerson  2005   $ 188,846   $ 97,000   $ 41,088   $ 9,536   $ 19,677  

Senior Vice President, 
Corporate  2004   181,155   30,625   108,750   5,363   13,686  

Development  2003  164,743   23,515   26,875   10,675   13,193  
              
John C. Mollenkopf  2005   $ 184,231   $ 95,000   $ 41,088   $ 6,336   $ 19,400  

Sr. Vice President, Southwest   2004   180,865   30,625   65,250   6,703   13,426  
Business Unit  2003  144,354   20,684   59,475   11,985   12,331  

              
David L. Young (7)  2005   $ 181,462   $ 72,000   $ 34,717   $ 7,699   $ 8,077  

Senior Vice President, 
Northeast  2004   161,538   25,521   77,000   4,380   —  

Business Unit  2003  —   —   —   —   —  
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(1) Represents actual salary paid in each respective fiscal year for services rendered on behalf of both the Partnership and 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

(2) Represents actual bonus paid in each respective fiscal year for services rendered on behalf of both the Partnership and 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon. Bonuses are paid in accordance with provisions of MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s Incentive 
Compensation Plan.

(3) Represents the value of the executive officer’s MarkWest Energy restricted unit awards plus the MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
restricted share awards (calculated by multiplying the closing market price of the corresponding securities on the date of 
grant by the number of units or shares awarded). As of December 31, 2005, the named executives held an aggregate of 
14,083 restricted units and 5,279 restricted shares with an aggregate market value of $770,205.

(4) Represents distributions received for restricted units and restricted shares.
(5) Represents actual MarkWest Hydrocarbon contributions under MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s 401(k) Savings and Profit 

Sharing Plan. Included in Mr. Semple’s and Mr. Ivey’s other compensation, in 2004, are relocation payments of $34,453 
and $37,408, respectively.

(6) Mr. Ivey became the Chief Financial Officer on May 25, 2004. Mr. Ivey is currently being paid an annual salary of 
$220,000.

(7) Mr. Young became the Senior Vice President of the Northeast Business Unit on February 2, 2004. Mr. Young is 
currently being paid an annual salary of $185,000.

Non-Competition, Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality Agreement and Severance Plan

Except for Frank Semple, each of our general partner’s named executive officers is a party to a Non-Competition, 
Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality Agreement. As a result of signing the Non-Competition, Non-Solicitation and 
Confidentiality Agreement, the named executive officers are eligible for the MarkWest Hydrocarbon 1997 Severance Plan. It 
provides for payment of benefits in the event that (i) the employee terminates his or her employment for “good reason” (as 
defined), (ii) the employee’s employment is terminated “without cause” (as defined), (iii) the employee’s employment is 
terminated by reason of death or disability or (iv) the employee voluntarily resigns. In the case of (i), (ii) and (iii) above, the 
employee shall be entitled to receive base salary and continued medical benefits for a period ranging from six months to 
twenty-four months, depending upon the employee’s status at the time of the termination. In the case of (iv) above, the 
employee shall be entitled to receive base salary for a period ranging from one month to six months and continued medical 
benefits for a period ranging from one month to six months. In either case, the aggregate amount of benefits paid to an 
employee shall in no event exceed twice the employee’s annual compensation during the year immediately preceding the 
termination.

Employment Agreement

Frank M. Semple

Mr. Semple entered into an executive employment agreement with MarkWest Hydrocarbon on November 1, 2003, 
pursuant to which Mr. Semple serves as MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s President and Chief Executive Officer and pursuant to 
which the Board of Directors of MarkWest Hydrocarbon appointed Mr. Semple to serve as the President and Chief Executive 
Officer of our general partner. The employment agreement may be terminated by either Mr. Semple or MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon at any time.

Under the employment agreement, Mr. Semple receives an annual base salary and is entitled to receive benefits for 
which employees and/or executive officers are generally eligible. In addition, Mr. Semple was awarded phantom units in our 
general partner under the general partner’s long-term incentive plan, and stock options under the MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
incentive stock option plan. Mr. Semple also agreed to purchase from MarkWest Hydrocarbon an interest in each of our 
general partner and the Partnership, subject to certain repurchase rights by MarkWest Hydrocarbon following the termination 
of his employment.

Under his employment agreement, in the event Mr. Semple’s employment is terminated without cause, or if he 
resigns for good reason, he is entitled to severance payments equal to his base salary for a period of thirty-six months. In 
addition, Mr. Semple is entitled to COBRA benefits for a period of twenty-four months. In the event Mr. Semple voluntarily 
resigns, he is entitled to receive severance payments equal to his base salary and COBRA benefits for a period of six months. 
In the event Mr. Semple is terminated for cause, he shall not be entitled to receive any severance or COBRA benefits.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

You should read Note 12 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this 
Form 10-K for a complete description of our Long-Term Incentive Plan, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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Reimbursement of Expenses of our General Partner

Prior to December 31, 2003, our general partner received no management fee or other compensation for its 
management of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Our general partner and its affiliates were reimbursed for expenses incurred 
on our behalf. These included the costs of employee, officer and director compensation and benefits properly allocable to us, 
and all other expenses necessary or appropriate to the conduct of the business of, and allocable to, us.

Effective January 1, 2004, we entered into a Services Agreement whereby MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., will act in 
a management capacity rendering day-to-day business operations and administrative services to the Partnership. For such 
management services, MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. will receive a $5,000 annual management fee.

Director Compensation

On January 27, 2006, the Board of Directors of the general partner approved director compensation for 2006. Each 
non-officer/employee director will receive an annual retainer of $20,000 and 500 restricted units per year. Chairs of the Audit
Committee, Conflicts Committee and Compensation Committee will receive an additional annual retainer of $4,000, $2,000 
and $2,000, respectively. In addition, each non-officer/employee director will receive compensation of $2,000 for either in-
person or telephonic attendance at meetings of the board of directors. Members of committees will receive $1,000 for each 
meeting.

Previously, each independent director received an annual retainer of $12,000 and 500 restricted units per year. In 
addition, each non-officer/employee director received compensation of $1,500 for in-person attendance and $700 for 
telephonic attendance at meetings of the board of directors or committees of the board of directors. The members of the Audit 
and Conflicts committees received compensation of $1,000 for each committee meeting. Additionally, members of the Audit 
and Conflict committees received an annual retainer of $3,000.

Each director will continue to be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses in connection with attending meetings of 
the board of directors or committees. Each director will also continue to be fully indemnified by us for actions associated 
with being a director to the extent permitted under Delaware law. As previously disclosed, officers or employees of our 
general partner who also serve as directors will not receive additional compensation.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

There are no Compensation Committee interlocks.

Compensation Committee Report

MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. has engaged MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. and its employees to provide all necessary 
service for MarkWest Energy Partners, L. P. The board of directors for MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., in the exercise of its 
fiduciary duties, reviews and determines the terms on which such services rendered to MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. are 
“fair and reasonable.” The compensation committee of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C is charged with the management and 
oversight of any incentive plan established by MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as well as the compensation (if any) paid by 
MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. or MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. to any of their officers or employees (if any).

Commencing in 2004, reasonably necessary business operating and administrative expenses incurred by MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon on behalf of the Partnership were reimbursed pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Services Agreement.

Compensation Philosophy

The executive compensation program is based on the following four objectives: (i) to link the interests of 
management with those of unitholders by encouraging ownership in the Partnership; (ii) to attract and retain superior 
executives by providing them with the opportunity to earn total compensation packages that are competitive with the 
industry; (iii) to reward individual results by recognizing performance through salary, annual cash incentives and long-term 
restricted unit based incentives; and (iv) to manage compensation based on the level of skill, knowledge, effort and 
responsibility needed to perform the job successfully.

The components of the compensation program for its executive officers include (i) base salary, (ii) performance-
based cash bonuses, and (iii) incentive compensation in the form of restricted units.

Base Salary.   The Committee annually reviews base salaries of executive officers, including the Named Executive 
Officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table. Industry compensation surveys are used to establish base salaries that 
are within the range of those persons holding comparably responsible positions at other similar-sized energy 
companies/partnerships, both regionally and nationally. The current compensation structure falls generally within the 
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midpoint salary range of compensation structures adopted by the other companies in the salary surveys reviewed. Executive’s 
salary may be increased based on (i) the individual’s increased contribution over the preceding year; (ii) the individual’s 
increased responsibilities over the preceding year; and (iii) any increase in median competitive pay levels.

Annual Cash Bonuses.   The Committee recommends the payment of bonuses from time-to-time to the employees, 
including its executive officers, to provide an incentive to these persons to be productive over the course of each fiscal year.
These bonuses are awarded only if the Partnership achieves or exceeds certain performance goals. The performance goals 
include both financial and non-financial measures. The Committee establishes the manner in which the performance goals are 
calculated and may exclude the impact of certain specified events from the calculation. The size of the cash bonus to each 
executive officer is based on the individual executive’s performance during the preceding year, as well as that level of 
combination of cash compensation and restricted units that would be required from a competitive point of view to retain the 
services of a valued executive officer.

Long-term Incentive Plan.   The Committee believes that a key component to the compensation of its executive 
officers should be through the issuance of restricted units. Restricted units utilized for this purpose have been designed to 
provide an incentive to these employees by allowing them to directly participate in any increase in the long-term value of the 
Partnership. This incentive is intended to reward, motivate and retain the services of executive employees.

Our general partner has adopted the MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan for employees and 
directors of our general partner. The long-term incentive plan consists of two components: restricted units and unit options. 
The plan currently permits the grant of awards covering an aggregate of 500,000 common units, 200,000 of which may be 
awarded in the form of restricted units. At December 31, 2005, the Partnership had granted 38,864 restricted units that are 
subject to vesting periods established from time to time by the Committee.

The Compensation Committee employs no particular set of mechanical criteria in awarding restricted units. Rather, 
it evaluates a series of factors including: (i) the overall performance of the Partnership for the fiscal year in question; (ii) the 
performance of the individual in question; (iii) the anticipated contribution by the individual on an overall basis; (iv) the 
historical level of compensation of the individual; (v) the level of compensation of similarly situated executives in the 
Partnership’s industry; and (vi) that combination of cash compensation and restricted units that would be required from a 
competitive point of view to retain the services of a valued executive officer.

CEO Compensation

In January 2006, the Compensation Committee established the Chief Executive Officer’s 2006 annual base salary at 
$350,000. Mr. Semple’s annual base salary is within the range of compensation structures of those persons holding 
comparable positions at similar sized partnerships/companies. In setting this amount, the Committee took into account the 
scope of Mr. Semple’s responsibility and the Board’s confidence in his skills and ability to implement the Partnership’s 
strategy and business model as evidenced by past performance. Mr. Semple took no part in discussions relating to his own 
compensation.

Compensation Committee of MarkWest Energy GP, L L.C.

Mr. Charles K. Dempster, Chairman
Mr. William A. Kellstrom
Mr. William P. Nicoletti
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_______________________

Source: FactSet.

(a) Includes: APL, XTEX, PPX and SXL.

Source: FactSet.

(a) Peer group companies include Crosstex Energy, L.P., Atlas Pipeline Partners L.P., Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. and 
Pacific Energy Partners L.P. Crosstex Energy, L.P., began trading on 12/12/02. The index is weighted based on market 
capitalization. Peer group companies were selected based on their business mix and market capitalization.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information, as of December 31, 2005, regarding our common units that may be issued 
upon conversion of outstanding restricted units granted under our Long-Term Incentive Plan to employees and directors of 
our general partner and employees of its affiliates who perform services for us. For more information about this plan, which 
did not require approval by the Partnership’s limited partners, you should read Note 12 of the accompanying Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Equity Compensation Plan Information (1)

Plan category  

Number of securities 

to be issued upon 

exercise of outstanding 

options, warrants and rights  

Weighted-average 

exercise price of 

outstanding options,

warrants and rights  

Number of securities 

remaining available 

for future issuance under 

equity compensation plans 

(excluding securities reflected in

column (a)) 

  (a)  (b)  (c) 

Equity compensation plans approved 
by security holders  —   $ —   —  

Equity compensation plans not 
approved by security holders  38,864   —   400,825  

       
Total  38,864   $ —   400,825  

(1) The amount in column (a) of this table reflects only restricted units granted but not vested as of December 31, 2005. No 
unit options have been granted. No value is shown in column (b) of the table, since the restricted units do not have an 
exercise price.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT - UPDATE

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of units as of December 31, 2005, held by beneficial owners 
of 5% or more of the units; by directors of our general partner; by each named executive officer listed in the summary 
compensation table included in this Form 10-K; and by all directors and officers of our general partner as a group.

Name of Beneficial Owner  

Common Units

Beneficially

Owned (1) 

Percentage of

Common 

Units

Beneficially

Owned 

Subordinated

Units

Beneficially

Owned  

Percentage of 

Subordinated

Units

Beneficially

Owned 

Percentage of

Total Units

Beneficially

Owned  

MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.  —   —   —   —   —   
MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. (2)  836,162   —   1,633,334   90.7 % 19.2 %
John M. Fox (3)  44,731   * 1,637,384   91.0 % 23.7 %
Kayne Anderson Capital Advisors, L.P (4)        

1800 Avenue of the Stars, Second Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90067  1,670,380   15.1 % —   —   13.0 %

Richard A. Kayne (4)        
1800 Avenue of the Stars, Second Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90067  1,670,380   15.1 % —   —   13.0 %

Tortoise Capital Advisors L.L.C. (5)        
10801 Mastin Boulevard, Suite 222 
Overland Park, KS 66210  966,704   8.3 % —   —   7.2 %

Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corporation 
(5)        
10801 Mastin Boulevard, Suite 222 
Overland Park, KS 66210  805,810   7.3 % —   —   6.3 %

Tortoise MWEP, L.P.  —   —   166,666   9.3 % 1.3 %
Frank M. Semple  13,734   *   *   
James G. Ivey  3,151   * —   —   *
Randy S. Nickerson  12,495   *   *   
John C. Mollenkopf  7,936   *   *   
David L. Young  136   * —   —   *
Keith E. Bailey  2,000   * —   —   *
Donald C. Heppermann  11,667   *   * *
William A. Kellstrom  4,042   * —   —   *
William P. Nicoletti  3,542   * —   —   *
Charles K. Dempster  1,542   * —   —   *
All directors and executive officers as a 

group (11 persons)  68,525   * 1,637,384   91.0 % 24.2 %

* Less than 1%
(1) Beneficial ownership for the purposes of the foregoing table is defined by Rule 13 d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act 

of 1934. Under that rule, a person is generally considered to be the beneficial owner of a security if he has or shares the 
power to vote or direct the voting thereof (“Voting Power”) or to dispose or direct the disposition thereof (“Investment 
Power”) or has the right to acquire either of those powers within sixty (60) days.

(2) Includes securities owned directly and indirectly through subsidiaries.
(3) Includes 1,633,334 subordinated units owned by MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its subsidiaries, and approximately 4,050 

subordinated units owned by Tortoise MWEP, L.P. in which Mr. Fox owns an equity interest. As of December 31, 2005, 
Mr. Fox beneficially owned approximately 43% of the voting securities of MarkWest Hydrocarbon. Mr. Fox currently 
serves as MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s Chairman of the Board. Mr. Fox resigned as President of MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
effective November 1, 2003, and as Chief Executive Officer effective January 1, 2004. As a result, Mr. Fox may be 
deemed to be the beneficial owner of the subordinated units owned by MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

(4) Information is based solely on a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by Kayne Anderson 
Capital Advisors, L.P. and Richard A. Kayne, on February 9, 2006, with respect to units held as of December 31, 2005. 
The Schedule 13G indicates that Kayne Anderson Capital Advisors, L.P. and Richard A. Kayne have shared voting 
power and dispositive power with respect to 1,670,380 units. The reported units are owned by investment accounts 
managed, with discretion to purchase or sell securities, by Kayne Anderson Capital Advisors, L.P., as a registered 
investment advisor. Kayne Anderson Capital Advisors, L.P. is the general partner of the limited partnerships and 
investment adviser to the other accounts. Richard A. Kayne is the controlling shareholder of the corporate owner of 
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Kayne Anderson Investment Management, Inc., the general partner of Kayne Anderson Capital Advisors, L.P. 
Mr. Kayne is also a limited partner of each of the limited partnerships and a shareholder of the registered investment 
company. Kayne Anderson Capital Advisors, L.P. disclaims beneficial ownership of the units reported, except those 
units attributable to it by virtue of its general partner interests in the limited partnerships. Mr. Kayne disclaims beneficial
ownership of the units reported, except those units held by him or attributable to him by virtue of his limited partnership 
interests in the limited partnerships, his indirect interest in the interest of Kayne Anderson Capital Advisors, L.P. in the 
limited partnership, and his ownership of common units of the registered investment company.

(5) Tortoise Capital Advisors LLC (“TCA”) acts as an investment advisor to Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corporation 
(“TYG”), a closed-end investment company. TCA, by virtue of an Investment Advisory Agreement with TYG, has all 
investment and voting power over securities owned of record by TYG. Despite its delegation of investment and voting 
power to TCA, however, TYG may be deemed to be the beneficial owner under Rule 13d-3 of the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1940, of the securities it owns of record because it has the right to acquire investment and voting power 
through termination of the Investment Advisory Agreement. Thus, TCA and TYG have reported that they share voting 
power and dispositive power over the securities owned of record by TYG. TCA also acts as an investment advisor to 
certain managed accounts. Under contractual agreements with individual account holders, TCA, with respect to the 
securities held in the managed accounts, shares investment and voting power with certain account holders, and has no 
voting power but shares investment power with certain other account holders. TCA may be deemed the beneficial owner 
of the securities covered by this statement under Rule 13d-3 of the Act. None of the securities are owned of record by 
TCA, and TCA disclaims any beneficial interest in such shares.

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of our general partner as of December 31, 2005, held by

MarkWest Hydrocarbon, the directors of our general partner, each named executive officer and by all directors and officers 
of our general partner as a group.

Name of Beneficial Owner 

Percentage of 

Limited Liability Company

Interests Owned  

MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.  89.3 %
John M. Fox (1)  90.9   
Frank M. Semple  2.0   
James G. Ivey  0.5   
Randy S. Nickerson  1.6   
John C. Mollenkopf  1.6   
David L. Young  —   
Keith E. Bailey  —   
Donald C. Heppermann  1.0   
William A. Kellstrom  —   
William P. Nicoletti  —   
Charles K. Dempster  —   
All directors and executive officers as a group (11 persons)  97.6   

(1) Includes a 1.6% ownership interest held directly by Mr. Fox and an 89.7% ownership interest held by MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon. As of December 31, 2005, Mr. Fox beneficially owned approximately 43% of the voting securities of 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon. Mr. Fox currently serves as MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s Chairman of the Board. Mr. Fox 
resigned as President of MarkWest Hydrocarbon effective November 1, 2003, and as Chief Executive Officer effective 
January 1, 2004. As a result, Mr. Fox may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of the ownership interests owned by 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

MarkWest Hydrocarbon controls our operations through its ownership of our general partner, as well as a significant 
limited partner ownership interest in us through its ownership of a majority of our subordinated units. As of March 1, 2006, 
affiliates of MarkWest Hydrocarbon, in the aggregate, owned a 21% interest in the Partnership, consisting of 836,162 
common units, 1,633,334 subordinated units and a 2% general partner interest.
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Distributions and Payments to our General Partner and its Affiliates

Our general partner owns the 2% general partner interest and all of the incentive distribution rights. Our general 
partner is entitled to receive incentive distributions if the amount we distribute with respect to any quarter exceeds levels 
specified in our Partnership Agreement. Under the quarterly incentive distribution provisions, generally our general partner is
entitled to 13% of amounts we distribute in excess of $0.55 per unit, 23% of the amounts we distribute in excess of $0.625 
per unit and 48% of amounts we distribute in excess of $0.75 per unit.

Agreements with MarkWest Hydrocarbon

We entered into various agreements with MarkWest Hydrocarbon on May 24, 2002, the closing of our initial public 
offering. Specifically, we entered into:

• an Omnibus Agreement;

• a Gas-Processing Agreement;

• a Pipeline Liquids Transportation Agreement;

• a Fractionation, Storage and Loading Agreement; and

• a Natural Gas Liquids Purchase Agreement.

Effective January 1, 2004, we entered into a Services Agreement whereby MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. will act in a 
management capacity rendering day-to-day business operations and administrative services to the Partnership.

These agreements were not the result of arm’s-length negotiations.

Omnibus Agreement

Concurrently with the closing of our initial public offering, we entered into an agreement with MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, our general partner and the Operating Company that governs potential competition and indemnification 
obligations among us and the other parties to the agreement.

Services. Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, we have designated each current or future employee of MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon who fulfills a job function on our behalf as our agent, with full power and authority to perform such job 
function.

Non-Competition Provisions. MarkWest Hydrocarbon agreed, and caused its affiliates to agree, for so long as 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon controls the general partner, not to engage in, whether by acquisition, construction or otherwise, the 
business of processing natural gas and transporting, fractionating and storing NGLs. This restriction will not apply to:

• the gathering of natural gas;

• any business operated by MarkWest Hydrocarbon or any of its subsidiaries at the closing of our initial 

public offering;

• any business that MarkWest Hydrocarbon or any of its subsidiaries acquires or constructs that has a fair 

market value of less than $7.5 million;

• any business that MarkWest Hydrocarbon or any of its subsidiaries acquires or constructs that has a fair 

market value of $7.5 million or more if we have been offered the opportunity to purchase the business for 
fair market value, and we decline to do so with the concurrence of our Conflicts Committee; and

• any business that MarkWest Hydrocarbon or any of its subsidiaries acquires or constructs where the fair 

market value of the restricted business is $7.5 million or more and represents less than 20% of the 
aggregate value of the entire business to be acquired or constructed; provided, however, that following 
completion of such acquisition or construction, we are provided the opportunity to purchase such restricted 
business.

License Provisions. Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon granted us nontransferable, 
nonexclusive, royalty-free right to use the “MarkWest” name and mark.
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The Omnibus Agreement may not be amended without the concurrence of the Conflicts Committee. The Omnibus 
Agreement, other than the indemnification provisions, will terminate if:

• a change of control of MarkWest Hydrocarbon occurs; or

• we are no longer an affiliate of MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

Gas-Processing Agreement

At the closing of our initial public offering, we entered into a Gas-Processing Agreement with MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon that governs the parties’ obligations with respect to the processing of natural gas at our Kenova, Boldman and 
Cobb processing plants.

Gas-Processing Services. Under the Gas-Processing Agreement, until 2012 and on a year-to-year basis thereafter, 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon has agreed to:

• commit to deliver, at specified locations, all of the natural gas that MarkWest Hydrocarbon has the right to 

process or has processed at our Kenova, Boldman or Cobb processing plants under its operating agreements 
with third party producers; and

• furnish all of the natural gas used as fuel in the operation of our Kenova, Boldman and Cobb processing 

plants.

We have agreed to:

• accept and process, at our sole risk and expense, all of the natural gas that MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers 

to our Kenova, Boldman or Cobb processing plants up to the then-existing design capacity of each 
processing plant;

• redeliver, for the account of MarkWest Hydrocarbon or for the parties designated by MarkWest 

Hydrocarbon, the residue gas to third-party producer’s in transmission facilities;

• deliver all NGLs recovered or extracted at each processing plant to MarkWest Hydrocarbon for further 

transportation to our Siloam fractionator facility;

• in the event the volumes delivered to any processing plant exceed the then-existing plant design capacity, 

use our reasonable, diligent efforts to process all the natural gas delivered by MarkWest Hydrocarbon to, or 
as near as possible to, the residue gas-quality specifications; and

• if at any time the volumes delivered to a processing plant exceed by 5% the daily average of volume that 

can be processed to residue gas for 60 days within a 90-day period, promptly begin and diligently complete 
the necessary work to increase the capacity of a processing plant.

As compensation for providing these services, MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays us a monthly gas-processing fee based 
on the natural gas volumes delivered at our Kenova, Boldman and Cobb processing plants. A portion of this gas-processing 
fee is adjusted on each anniversary of the effective date to reflect changes in the Producers Price Index for Oil and Gas Field
Services.

Indemnification Provisions. Under the Gas-Processing Agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon has agreed to indemnify 
us from any and all losses we incur arising from MarkWest Hydrocarbon facilities or its possession and control of the natural 
gas (except to the extent caused by our gross negligence or willful conduct). MarkWest Hydrocarbon will be in possession 
and control of the natural gas until it is delivered to one of our processing facilities and after our operating company 
redelivers the residue gas to MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

We have agreed to indemnify MarkWest Hydrocarbon from any and all losses incurred by MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
arising from our facilities or our possession and control of the natural gas (except to the extent caused by MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon’s gross negligence or willful conduct). We will be in possession and control of the natural gas after it is 
delivered to one of our processing facilities and until we redeliver the residue gas to MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

We will also pay MarkWest Hydrocarbon a penalty of $5,000 per day (unless MarkWest Hydrocarbon can establish 
actual damages in excess of $5,000 per day) if we fail to process the natural gas at any of our processing plants to meet the 
agreed specifications, or interrupt the NGL production process, unless the reason for the failure or interruption is:
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• the suspension of operations necessary for turnaround time, maintenance or repair time, not to exceed 

30 days per year;

• conditions of force majeure; or

• reasons related to safety considerations and the integrity of our processing plants.

If we interrupt processing at any of our processing plants for any reason for 30 consecutive days without making a 
good-faith effort to resume processing as soon as reasonably possible, or, if after notification from MarkWest Hydrocarbon, 
we are otherwise in default of any of the terms of the Gas-Processing Agreement for 25 days, then MarkWest Hydrocarbon, 
in its sole discretion and in addition to any other available legal or equitable remedies, may:

• satisfy any and all of our obligations and be reimbursed by us the amount paid, attorneys’ fees and annual 

interest;

• seek interlocutory equitable relief and perform or have performed our obligations at our sole risk, liability, 

cost and expense; or

• require us to specifically perform our obligations.

Pipeline Liquids Transportation Agreement

At the closing of our initial public offering, we entered into a Pipeline Liquids Transportation Agreement with 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon that governs the parties’ obligations with respect to the transportation of mixed NGLs to our Siloam

fractionation facility.

Transportation Services. Under this Transportation Agreement, until 2012 and on a year-to-year basis thereafter, 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers, at specified locations, all NGLs acquired from our Kenova processing facility, and any 
NGLs it desires to deliver from our Boldman extraction facility, or from other extraction plants or sources in the Appalachian 
region.

We maintain and operate our pipeline system, at our sole risk and expense, to transport all of the NGLs that 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers from our extraction facilities to our Siloam fractionation facility.

In return, MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays us a monthly transportation fee based on the number of gallons of NGLs 
transported to our Siloam fractionation facility. A portion of this fee is adjusted on January 1 of each year to reflect changes
in the Producers Price Index for Oil and Gas Field Services. Under the agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon will incur all 
incidental losses incurred at our facilities, or the losses or gains due to variations in measurement equipment.

Indemnification Provisions. Under the Transportation Agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon has agreed to indemnify 
us from any and all losses we incur arising from MarkWest Hydrocarbon facilities or its possession and control of the NGLs 
(except to the extent caused by our gross negligence or willful conduct). MarkWest Hydrocarbon will be in possession and 
control of the NGLs until they are delivered to our pipeline system.

We have agreed to indemnify MarkWest Hydrocarbon from any and all losses incurred by MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
arising from our facilities or our possession and control of the NGLs (except to the extent caused by MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon’s gross negligence or willful conduct). We will be in possession and control of the NGLs after they are 
delivered to our pipeline system.

Fractionation, Storage and Loading Agreement

At the closing of our initial public offering, we entered into a Fractionation, Storage and Loading Agreement with 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon that governs the parties’ obligations with respect to the unloading and fractionation of NGLs, and 
the storage of the NGL products at our Siloam facility.

Services. Under the Fractionation, Storage and Loading Agreement, until 2012 and on a year-to-year basis 
thereafter, MarkWest Hydrocarbon has agreed to deliver, at specified locations, all of the mixed NGLs produced at our 
Kenova, Boldman or Cobb processing plants for fractionation at our Siloam fractionation facility.

We have agreed to:

• unload any NGLs that MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers to our Siloam facility by railcar;
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• accept and fractionate into NGL products all of the NGLs that MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers;

• furnish and be responsible for all of the fuel needed in the operation of our Siloam facility;

• operate, maintain and, if necessary, replace all facilities for loading the NGL products for shipment;

• lease tracking rights on our Siloam railroad siding to MarkWest Hydrocarbon for no additional charge;

• at our sole risk be responsible for loading the finished NGL products for shipments as directed by 

MarkWest Hydrocarbon; and

• at the direction of MarkWest, store the finished NGL products in underground storage caverns at our 

Siloam facility and, if also directed by MarkWest Hydrocarbon, withdraw the products from such storage 
caverns.

As compensation for providing our fractionating, loading and above ground storage services, MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon pays us a monthly fractionation fee based on the gallons delivered to us for fractionation. As compensation for 
our storage of the NGL products in underground storage caverns, MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays us an annual storage fee. As 
compensation for unloading any NGLs that MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers to us by railcar, MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays 
us a monthly fee based on the gallons unloaded. A portion of each of the above fees is adjusted on January 1 of each year to 
reflect changes in the Producers Price Index for Oil and Gas Field Services. Under the agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
incurs all incidental losses incurred at our facilities, or the losses or gains due to variations in measurement equipment.

Indemnification Provisions. Under the Fractionation, Storage and Loading Agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon has 
agreed to indemnify us from any and all losses we incur arising from MarkWest Hydrocarbon facilities or its possession and 
control of the NGLs or NGL products (except to the extent caused by our gross negligence or willful conduct). MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon will be in possession and control of the NGLs until they are delivered to our Siloam facility, and of the NGL 
products after we load them into transportation facilities provided by MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

We have agreed to indemnify MarkWest Hydrocarbon from any and all losses incurred by MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
arising from our facilities or our possession and control of the NGLs or NGL products (except to the extent caused by 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s gross negligence or willful conduct). We will be in possession and control of the NGLs after they 
are delivered to our Siloam facility and of the NGL products until we load them into transportation facilities provided by 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

Natural Gas Liquids Purchase Agreement

At the closing of our initial public offering, we entered into a Natural Gas Liquids Purchase Agreement with 
MarkWest Hydrocarbon that governs the parties’ obligations with respect to the sale and purchase of NGL products we 
acquire under the Gas-Processing (Maytown) Agreement between a third party producer and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, which 
were assigned to us, as well as any other NGL products we acquire.

Purchase and Sale. Under the Natural Gas Liquids Purchase Agreement, until 2012, we have agreed to commit to 
deliver to MarkWest Hydrocarbon all of the NGL products produced from the NGLs we acquire under the Maytown 
Agreement, together with such other NGLs to be sold at our facility. MarkWest Hydrocarbon has agreed to receive and 
purchase all of these NGL products.

As consideration for the sale of NGL products, MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays us a monthly fee equal to the Net Sales 
Price per gallon (determined under the Maytown Agreement), times the number of gallons of NGL products contained in our 
NGLs.

Indemnification Provisions. Under the Natural Gas Liquids Purchase Agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon has 
agreed to indemnify us from any and all losses we incur arising from MarkWest Hydrocarbon facilities or its possession and 
control of the NGL products (except to the extent caused by our gross negligence or willful misconduct). As between the 
parties, MarkWest Hydrocarbon will be in possession and control of the NGL products after they are delivered to MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon at the designated delivery point.

We have agreed to indemnify MarkWest Hydrocarbon from any and all losses incurred by MarkWest Hydrocarbon 
arising from our facilities or our possession and control of the NGL products (except to the extent caused by MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon’s gross negligence or willful misconduct). As between the parties, we will be in possession and control of the 
NGL products until we deliver them to MarkWest Hydrocarbon at the designated delivery point.
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Services Agreement

MarkWest Hydrocarbon agreed to act in a management capacity rendering day-to-day operational, business and 
asset management, accounting, personnel and related administrative services to the Partnership.

The Partnership is obligated to reimburse MarkWest Hydrocarbon for all documented expenses incurred on behalf 
of the Partnership and which are expressly designated as reasonably necessary.

Relationship of Directors of our General Partner with MarkWest Hydrocarbon

William P. Nicoletti, who serves as a member of our general partner’s board of directors, is also a member of the 
board of directors of Star Gas LLC, the general partner of Star Gas Partners, L.P., a retail propane and heating oil master 
limited partnership. Star Gas’ propane division is a significant customer of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and accounted for 
approximately 11% of its revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004. The propane division of Star Gas Partners, L.P. 
was purchased by another entity in December 2004 and, therefore, Star Gas Partners, L.P. will not be a related party for the 
year ending December 31, 2005.

Keith E. Bailey, who also serves as a member of our general partner’s board of directors, is a member of the board 
of directors of Aegis, an insurance company. Aegis provides insurance to MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc and the Partnership as 
a named insured MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s policy.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND EXPENSES

For the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, Deloitte & Touche LLP’s and KPMG LLP’s accounting fees and 
services (in thousands) were as follows:

 2005  2004  

Audit fees  $ 2,555   $ 1,723  
Audit-related fees (1)  526   92  
Tax fees  —   —  
All other fees (2)  —   —  

     
Total accounting fees and services  $ 3,081   $ 1,815  

(1) Audit-related fees include fees for reviews of registration statements and issuances of consents, reviews of private 
placement offering documents, benefit plan audits, issuance of letter to underwriters, due diligence pertaining to potential 
business acquisitions and a review of risk management policies and procedures.

(2)  All other fees consist of a subscription to an on-line accounting research tool.

Pre-Approval of Audit and Permitted Non-Audit Services. The Audit Committee is responsible for appointing, 
setting compensation and overseeing the work of the independent public accountants. The Audit Committee established a 
policy that requires the Partnership to have the Audit Committee pre-approve all audit and permitted non-audit services from 
the independent public accountants. The Partnership’s management submits request to the Audit Committee for pre-approval 
of any such allowable services. The Audit Committee considers whether the provision of non-audit services by the 
independent public accountants is compatible with maintaining the accountants’ independence. The Audit Committee 
considers each engagement of the independent public accountants on a case-by-case basis. The Audit Committee pre-
approved the performance of the services described above.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements:

You should read the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for a 
list of all financial statements filed as a part of this report, which is incorporated herein by reference.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:  All omitted schedules have been omitted because they are not required or 
because the required information is contained in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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(3) Exhibits:

Exhibit Number  Description 

   
2.1 (2) Purchase Agreement dated as of March 24, 2003, among PNG Corporation, Energy Spectrum 

Partners LP, MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., MW Texas Limited, L.L.C. and MarkWest Energy 
Partners, L.P. 

   
2.2 (2) Plan of Merger entered into as of March 28, 2003, by and among MarkWest Blackhawk L.P., 

MarkWest Pinnacle L.P., MarkWest PNG Utility L.P., MarkWest Texas PNG Utility L.P., 
Pinnacle Natural Gas Company, Pinnacle Pipeline Company, PNG Transmission Company and 
Bright Star Gathering, Inc. 

   
2.3 (3) Asset Purchase-and-Sale Agreement dated as of November 18, 2003, by and between American 

Central Western Oklahoma Gas Company, L.L.C., MarkWest Western Oklahoma Gas Company, 
L.L.C. and American Central Gas Technologies, Inc. 

   
2.4 (4) Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of November 7, 2003, by and between Shell Pipeline 

Company, LP and Equilon Enterprises L.L.C., dba Shell Oil Products US, and MarkWest 
Michigan Pipeline Company, L.L.C. 

   
2.5 (8) Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement and addendum, thereto, dated as of July 1, 2004, by and 

between American Central Eastern Texas Gas Company Limited Partnership, ACGC Gathering 
Company, L.L.C. and MarkWest Energy East Texas Gas Company’s L.P. 

   
2.5 (15) Purchase and Sale Agreement effective as of January 1, 2005 between MarkWest Energy 

Partners L.P. and Enterprise Products Operating L.P. 
   

2.6 (16) Asset and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 16, 2005 Among MarkWest Energy Partners 
and El Paso Corporation. 

   
2.7 (16) Asset and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 16, 2005 Among MarkWest Energy Partners 

and Kerr-McGee Corporation. 
   

2.8 (16) Asset and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 16, 2005 Among MarkWest Energy Partners 
and Valero Energy Corp. 

   
3.1 (1)  Certificate of Limited Partnership of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. 

   
3.2 (5) Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., 

dated as of May 24, 2002. 
   

3.3 (1)  Certificate of Formation of MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C. 
   

3.4 (5) Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of MarkWest Energy Operating 
Company, L.L.C., dated as of May 24, 2002. 

   
3.5 (1)  Certificate of Formation of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. 

   
3.6 (5) Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., 

dated as of May 24, 2002. 
   

3.6 (12) Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement MarkWest Energy 
Partners, L.P. 

   
3.7 (20) Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement MarkWest Energy 

Partners, L.P. 
   

4.1 (6)  Purchase Agreement dated as of June 13, 2003, by and among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. 
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and Tortoise Capital Advisors, LLC as attorney-in-fact for the Purchasers. 
   

4.2 (6) Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June 13, 2003, by and among MarkWest Energy 
Partners, L.P. and Tortoise Capital Advisors, LLC as attorney-in-fact for the Purchasers. 

   
4.3 (8) Unit Purchase Agreement dated as of July 29, 2004 among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., and 

MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. and each of Kayne Anderson Energy Fund II, L.P., and MarkWest 
Energy GP, L.L.C. and each of Kayne Anderson Energy Fund II, L.P., Kayne Anderson Capital 
Income Partners, L.P., Kayne Anderson MLP Fund, L.P., Kayne Anderson Capital Income Fund, 
LTD., Kayne Anderson Income Partners, L.P., HFR RV Performance Master Trust, Tortoise 
Energy Infrastructure Corporation and Energy Income and Growth Fund as Purchasers. 

   
4.4(8) Registration Rights Agreement dated as of July 29, 2004, among MarkWest Energy Partners, 

L.P., and each of Kayne Anderson Energy Fund II, L.P., Kayne Anderson Capital Income Fund, 
LTD., Kayne Anderson Income Partners, L.P., HFR RV Performance Master Trust, Tortoise 
Energy Infrastructure Corporation and Energy Income and Growth Fund. 

   
4.5(9) Underwriting Agreement dated as of September 15, 2004, by and among the Partnership, the 

underwriters named therein and the other parties thereto related to the Common Units Offering. 
   

4.6(10) Purchase Agreement dated October 19, 2004, among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., 
MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation, the Guarantors named therein and the Initial Purchasers 
named therein. 

   
4.7(10) Registration Rights Agreement dated October 25, 2004, among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., 

MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation, the Guarantors named therein and the Initial Purchasers 
named therein. 

   
4.8(10) Indenture dated as of October 25, 2004, among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., MarkWest 

Energy Finance Corporation, the Guarantors named therein and Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as Trustee. 

   
4.9(10) Form of 6.875% Series A Senior Notes due 2014 with attached notation of Guarantees 

(incorporated by Reference to Exhibits A and D of Exhibit 4.8 hereto) 
   

4.10 (17)  Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 9, 2005 
   

4.11 (17)  Unit Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 9, 2005 
   

4.12 (18)  Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2005 
   

4.13 (18)  Unit Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2005 
   

10.1 (3) Credit Agreement dated as of May 20, 2002, among MarkWest Energy Operating Company, 
L.L.C (as the Borrower), MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. (as a Guarantor), and various lenders.

   
10.2 (3) Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 1, 2003, among MarkWest 

Energy Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as 
Guarantor, Royal Bank of Canada, as Administrative Agent, Bank One, NA, as Syndication 
Agent, and Fortis Capital Corp., as Documentation Agent, to the $140,000,000 Senior Credit 
Facility.

   
10.3 (5) Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, among 

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.; MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C.; MarkWest 
Energy GP, L.L.C.; MarkWest Michigan, Inc.; MarkWest Energy Appalachia, L.L.C.; West 
Shore Processing Company, L.L.C.; Basin Pipeline, L.L.C.; and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 

   
10.4 (5)  MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan. 
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10.5 (5)  First Amendment to MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan. 
   

10.6 (5) Omnibus Agreement dated of May 24, 2002, among MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.; MarkWest 
Energy GP, L.L.C.; MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.; and MarkWest Energy Operating 
Company, L.L.C. 

   
10.7 (5)+ Fractionation, Storage and Loading Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, between MarkWest 

Energy Appalachia, L.L.C. and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 
   

10.8 (5)+ Gas Processing Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, between MarkWest Energy Appalachia, 
L.L.C. and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 

   
10.9 (5)+ Pipeline Liquids Transportation Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, between MarkWest 

Energy Appalachia, L.L.C. and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 
   

10.10 (5) Natural Gas Liquids Purchase Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, between MarkWest Energy 
Appalachia, L.L.C. and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 

   
10.11 (5)+ Gas Processing Agreement (Maytown) dated as of May 28, 2002, between Equitable Production 

Company and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 
   

10.12 (5) Amendment to Gas Processing Agreement (Maytown) dated as of March 26, 2002, between 
Equitable Production Company and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 

   
10.13 (7) Services Agreement dated January 1, 2004 between MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. and 

MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 
   

10.14(8) Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 30, 2004 among MarkWest 
Energy Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as 
Guarantor, Royal Bank of Canada, as Administrative Agent, Fortis Capital Corp., as Syndication 
Agent, Bank One, NA, as Documentation Agent and Societe Generale, as Documentation Agent 
to the $315,000,000 Senior Credit Facility. 

   
10.15(8) First Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 20, 

2004, among MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy 
Partners, L.P., as Guarantor, Royal Bank of Canada, as Administrative Agent, Fortis Capital 
Corp., as Syndication Agent, Bank One, NA, as Documentation Agent and Societe Generale, as 
Documentation Agent. 

   
10.16(11) Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of October 25, 2004 among MarkWest 

Energy Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as 
Guarantor, Royal Bank of Canada, as Administrative Agent, Bank One, N.A., as Syndication 
Agent, Fortis Capital Corp., as Documentation Agent, U.S. Bank National  Association, as 
Documentation Agent, Societe Generale, as Documentation Agent, and Wachovia Bank, 
National Association, as Documentation Agent, RBC Capital Markets and J.P. Morgan 
Securities Inc., as Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, to the $200,000,000 Senior Credit 
Facility.

   

10.17(13) MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 1997 Severance Plan 

   

10.18(14) Executive Employment Agreement effective November 1, 2003 between MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, Inc. and Frank Semple. 

   
10.19 (19)  Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2005 

   
10.20 (20) Fifth amended and restated credit agreement dated as of December 29, 2005, among MarkWest 

Energy Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as 
Guarantor, Royal Bank of Canada, as Administrative Agent, Bank One, N.A., as Syndication 
Agent, Forties Capital Corp., as Documentation Agent, U.S. Bank National Association, as 
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Documentation Agent, Society General, as Documentation Agent, and Wachovia Bank, National 
Association, as Documentation Agent, RBC Capital Markets and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as 
Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, to the $615,000,000 Senior Credit Facility. 

   
16.1(21) Changes in registrants certifying accountants. MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. dismissed 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as its independent accountants. 
   

16.2(22) Changes in registrants certifying accountants. MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. dismissed KPMG 
LLP as the Partnership’s independent registered public accounting firm and engaged Deloitte & 
Touche LLP as its new independent registered public accounting firm.  

   
21.1*  List of subsidiaries 

   
23.1*  Consent of KPMG LP 

   
23.2*  Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

   
23.3*  Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP 

   
31.1*  Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act

   
31.2*  Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act 

   
32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer of the General Partner pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
   

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer of the General Partner pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

   
99  Additional Exhibits 

   
99.1 The 2005 Financial Statements of Starfish Pipeline Company, as required by Regulation S-X, 

Rule 3.09** 
   

99.2 The 2004 Financial Statements of Starfish Pipeline Company, as required by Regulation S-X, 
Rule 3.09** 

   
99.3 The 2003 Financial Statements of Starfish Pipeline Company, as required by Regulation S-X, 

Rule 3.09** 

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement (No. 33-81780) on Form S-1 filed January 31, 2002. 
(2) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 14, 2003. 
(3) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2003. 
(4) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 31, 2003. 
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 7, 2002. 
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 19, 2003. 
(7) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 10-K filed March 15, 2004. 
(8) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on form 8-K/A filed September 13, 2004. 
(9) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 20, 2004. 
(10) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 25, 2004. 
(11) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 29, 2004. 
(12) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 6, 2005. 
(13) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report of MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. on Form 10-Q filed 

November 13, 1997. 
(14) Incorporation by reference to the Current Report of MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. on Form 10-K filed 

March 30, 2004. 
(15) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 6, 2005. 
(16) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 21, 2005. 
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(17) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 16, 2005. 
(18) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed December 29, 2005. 
(19) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 7, 2005. 
(20) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 5, 2006. 
(21) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 1, 2004. 
(22) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 23, 2005. 

+ Application has been made to the Securities and Exchange Commission for confidential treatment of certain 
provisions of these exhibits. Omitted material for which confidential treatment has been requested and has 
been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

* Filed herewith. 
Identifies each management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 

** Pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X, separate financial statements of subsidiaries not consolidated and 50 
percent or less owned persons, the omitted financial statements of Starfish, a non-accelerated filer, that are 
required to be filed by us are expected to be filed by us by amendment to this report not later than 90 days 
after the end of our fiscal year. 

(b) The following exhibits are filed as part of this report:  See Item 15(a)(2) above.

(c) The following financial statement schedules are filed as part of this report:  None required.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly 
caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

  MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.  
  (Registrant) 
   
  By: MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.,  
  Its General Partner  
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/FRANK M. SEMPLE 

    Frank M. Semple 
    President and Chief Executive Officer 
    (Principal Executive Officer) 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities with MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., the General Partner of 
MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., the Registrant, and on the dates indicated.

Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/FRANK M. SEMPLE 

    Frank M. Semple 
    President and Chief Executive Officer 
    (Principal Executive Officer) 
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/JAMES G. IVEY 

    James G. Ivey 
    Chief Financial Officer 
    (Principal Financial Officer) 
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/NANCY K. MASTEN 

    Nancy K. Masten 
    Chief Accounting Officer 
    (Principal Accounting Officer) 
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/JOHN M. FOX 

    John M. Fox 
    Chairman of the Board and Director 
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/KEITH E. BAILEY 

    Keith E. Bailey 
    Director 
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/CHARLES K. DEMPSTER 

    Charles K. Dempster 
    Director 
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/DONALD C. HEPPERMANN 

    Donald C. Heppermann 
    Director 
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/WILLIAM A. KELLSTROM 

    William A. Kellstrom 
    Director 
   
Date: March 16, 2006 By:   /S/WILLIAM P. NICOLETTI 

    William P. Nicoletti 
    Director 
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 Year Ended December 31, 
 2005 2004 2003
Statement of Operating Data ($000)  
Revenues ___________________________________________________________________  $ 499,084 $ 301,314 $ 117,430
Net Income _________________________________________________________________  $ 2,355 $ 9,962 $ 4,759
General Partner’s Interest in Net Income _________________________________________  $ 2,113 $    (723) $         (654)
Limited Partners’ Interest in Net Income _________________________________________  $ 242 $ 10,685 $ 5,413
Net Income per Limited Partner Unit (Basic) ______________________________________  $ .02 $ 1.31 $ 0.95
Weighted Average Units Outstanding (Basic) _____________________________________  10,895 8,151 5,722
  
Cash Flow Data
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
   Operating Activities _________________________________________________________  $ 42,090 $ 42,275 $ 21,229
   Investing Activities __________________________________________________________  $ (469,308)  $ (273,176) $ (112,893)
   Financing Activities _________________________________________________________  $  423,060 $  (246,411) $ 97,641

Other Financial Data
Distributable Cash Flow* ______________________________________________________  $ 44,041 $ 37,014 $ 16,254
Declared Distributions per Limited Partner Unit ___________________________________  $ 3.24 $ 2.97 $ 2.47

Balance Sheet Data
Working Capital _____________________________________________________________  $ 11,944 $ 10,547 $ 2,457
Total Assets  _________________________________________________________________  $ 1,046,093 $ 529,422 $ 212,871
Long-Term Debt  _____________________________________________________________  $ 601,262 $ 225,000 $ 126,200
Total Partner Capital __________________________________________________________  $ 307,175 $ 241,142 $ 64,944 

Operating Data     
East Texas: (1)

 Gathering systems throughput (Mcf/d) ________________________________________  321,000  259,300  NA 
 NGL product sales (gallons) _________________________________________________  126,476,000 41,478,000   NA
Oklahoma:
 Foss Lake gathering systems throughput
  (Mcf/d) (2)  ______________________________________________________________  75,800 60,900  57,000  
 Arapaho NGL product sales (gallons) (3) ______________________________________  60,903,000 45,273,000   2,910,000
Southwest: __________________________________________________________________
 Appleby gathering systems throughput
  (Mcf/d) (4)  ______________________________________________________________  33,400 27,100  23,800 
 Other gathering systems throughput
  (Mcf/d) (4)  ______________________________________________________________  16,500 17,000  20,500 
 Lateral throughput volumes (Mcf/d) (5)  ________________________________________  81,000 75,500  32,100 
Appalachia:
 Natural gas processed for a fee (Mcf/d) (6)  ____________________________________  197,000 203,000   202,000
 NGLs fractionated for a fee (Gal/day)  ________________________________________  430,000 475,000  458,000 
 NGL product sales (gallons) _________________________________________________  41,700,000  42,105,000   40,305,000
Michigan:
 Natural gas processed for a fee (Mcf/d) _______________________________________  6,600 12,300  15,000 
 NGL product sales (Mcf/d) __________________________________________________  5,697,000 9,818,000   11,800,000
 Crude oil transported for a fee (Bbl/d) (7) ______________________________________  14,200 14,700  15,100

(1)  We acquired our East Texas System in late July 2004. Volumes are for the period of time we owned the facility during 2004.
(2)  We acquired our Foss Lake gathering system in December 2003.
(3)  We acquired our Arapaho processing plant in December 2003.
(4)  We acquired our Pinnacle gathering systems in late March 2003.
(5)  We acquired our Lubbock pipeline (a/k/a the Power-tex Lateral Pipeline) in September 2003 and our Hobbs lateral pipeline in April 2004. The Lubbock and Hobbs pipelines are the only laterals 

we own  that produce revenue on a per-unit-of-throughput basis. We receive a flat fee from our other lateral pipelines  and, consequently, the throughput data from these lateral pipelines is 
excluded from this statistic.

(6)  Includes throughput from our Kenova, Cobb, and Boldman processing plants.
(7)  We acquired our Michigan Crude Pipeline in December 2003.

*Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures to GAAP Measures (thousands) Year Ended December 31,
 2005 2004 2003
Net income _________________________________________________________________  $ 2,355 $ 9,962 $ 4,759 

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Distributable Cash Flow
   Depreciation, Amortization, & Accretion _______________________________________  29,349  19,209 7,548 
    Impairment _______________________________________________________________  -- 130 1,148
 Amortization of deferred financing costs ______________________________________  6,780 5,236 984
 Distributions in excess of earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries_______________  4,002 73 --
 Non-cash Compensation Expense ____________________________________________  3,131 3,342 2,269 
 Other ____________________________________________________________________  605 225 587
Sustaining Capital Expenditures ________________________________________________  (2,181) (1,163) (1,041)
Distributable Cash Flow _______________________________________________________  $ 44,041 $   37,014 $   16,254

Financial and Operational Summary

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., a master limited partnership, is a midstream 
energy company primarily engaged in the gathering, processing and 

transportation of natural gas and refinery off-gas; the transportation, 
fractionation and storage of natural gas liquids (NGLs); and the gathering 

and transportation of crude oil.  MarkWest charges fees for its services 
and in many cases retains a portion of the hydrocarbon product in 
exchange for services rendered.  During 2005, approximately 49% 
of the partnership’s net operating margin was derived from fee-
based contracts and 51% from the sale of retained gas or liquids.  
MarkWest’s operations are diversified both geographically and by 

activity.  In 2005, MarkWest completed two acquisitions and formed 
the Gulf Coast Business Unit.  The Gulf Coast Business Unit consists 
of gathering and processing facilities on the coast and offshore in 
Texas and Louisiana.  MarkWest’s Southwest Business Unit consists 
of natural gas gathering, transportation and processing facilities 

located primarily in Texas and Oklahoma.  Since 2003, MarkWest has 
expanded its Southwest Business Unit to include 17 gathering systems, 

two processing plants and four lateral pipeline systems.  MarkWest’s 
Northeast Business Unit owns or operates five gas processing facilities 
that generate stable cash flow streams from gathering and processing 
natural gas from long-lived gas reserves in the Appalachian Basin and from 
gathering, processing and transporting natural gas and transporting crude oil 
via its facilities in Michigan. 

MarkWest’s goal is to continue to grow the partnership and its distributions by 
pursuing a multi-tiered and risk-weighted strategy to increase its asset base and 

service capability.  The primary elements of this strategy include:

• Increasing utilization of existing facilities
• Expanding operations through incremental investment in core areas
• Completing strategic, accretive acquisitions and
• Improving stability of cash flow with long-term, fee-based contracts

The partnership is managed by MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., which is 89.2% owned 
by MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., an Englewood, Colorado-based energy company.  
Since its initial public offering of 2,415,000 common units at $20.50 on May 24, 
2002, MarkWest has raised nearly $300 million through a combination of public and 
private equity offerings.  There are approximately 12.9 million units outstanding as of 
March 15, 2006, which includes approximately 2.5 million units owned by MarkWest 
Hydrocarbon, Inc.  Common units of the partnership are listed on the American Stock 
Exchange under the symbol MWE.  

Disclaimer
The statements contained in this Annual Report contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Securities Act of 
1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended.  These forward-looking statements (which in many instances can 
be identified by words like “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “believes” and other comparable words), are based on the 
Partnership’s current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effects on the Partnership, but are not 
guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties.  You are urged to carefully review and consider the cautionary 
statements and other disclosures made in the Partnership’s enclosed Form 10-K for fiscal year 2005, including under the heading 
“Risk Factors,” which identify and discuss significant risks, uncertainties and various other factors that could cause actual results to vary 
significantly from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements.
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MarkWest Core Principles

MarkWest believes every employee is important to the company and its success, and we 
are committed to build a culture based on trust, accountability, safety and teamwork. 

MarkWest is focused on delivering best-of-class service.  MarkWest will seek true 
understanding of our customers’ requirements and will strive to provide solutions 
exceeding their expectations.

MarkWest will aim for innovative concepts in all that we do, and the company will support 
and encourage the search for innovation at all levels. Creation of substantial value will be 
the primary criteria for any new endeavor.

MarkWest seeks a fair profit and will maintain a strong balance sheet and appropriate 
expense controls through continuous process improvement.

MarkWest’s reputation rests on our ability to act with honesty, integrity and trustworthiness.  
To that end, we have adopted and communicated our Code of Conduct & Ethics as the 
cornerstone of our business.

155 Inverness Drive West, Suite 200
Englewood, CO 80112-5000
Tel: 800.730.8388
Fax: 303.290.8769
www.markwest.com

MarkWest doubled its asset base in 2004 and...

2005 Annual Report

We did it again in 2005.
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